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COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

1000 COMMONWEALTH AVENUE

NEWTON CENTRE, MA 02459-1449
TELEPHONE (617) 796-1305
FAX (617) 796-1196
dwilkinson@newtonma.gov

DAVID C. WILKINSON
COMPTROLLER

November 26, 2012

Members of the Board of Aldermen
Mayor Setti D. Warren
Citizens and Taxpayers of the City of Newton

I am pleased to transmit to you the City of Newton’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2012. This report has been prepared by the Comptroller’s Office of the City in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as presctibed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is designed both to protect the assets of the City from loss, theft, ot misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements
will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assett that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all matetial respects.

‘The City’s financial statements have been audited by Sullivan, Rogers & Company, LLC, a firm of licensed certified
public accountants, who have been hired by and repott to the City’s Board of Aldermen. The independent auditots’
unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012 is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report on pages 1 and 2.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit”
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fait presentation of the financial statements, but also on the
audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal tequirements, with special emphasis on internal
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These repotts are available in the
City’s separately issued Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Compliance and Federal Award
Programs.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MDD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.



History and Profile

The City of Newton was settled in 1639 and incorporated as a City in 1873. The City is located approximately seven
miles from downtown Boston and is bordetred by the West Roxbuty section of Boston on the southeast, the Town of
Needham on the southwest, the Towns of Wellesley and Weston on the west, the City of Waltham and Town of
Weston on the north; and the Town of Brookline and the Allston-Brighton sections of Boston on the east.

The City has a population of 85,146 according to the 2010 federal census and occupies a land area of 18.33 square
miles. The City is principally suburban-residential in character and consists of 13 distinct villages — Auburndale;
Chestnut Hill; Newton Centre; Newton Corner; Newton Highlands; Newton Lower Falls; Newton Upper Falls;
Newtonville; Nonantum; Oak Hill; Thompsonville; Waban; and West Newton. Open space comprises 19.6% of the
City’s total land area, of which 55% is publicly owned.

Newton has a diversified economic base with approximately 45,500 individuals employed in 3,700 establishments
within the boundaries of the City, with an estimated annual payroll of $2.2 billion. Businesses are generally small and
service oriented with retail and wholesale trade and services accounting for 74% of all jobs.

Commercial uses occupy 4.1% of the City’s land area. Nearly 24% of commercial land patcels are office uses; 21%
are small retatl uses; and 6% are storage or warehouse uses. Only 1.1% of the City’s land area is industrial. Newton is
a desirable community to live and work in due to its proximity to Boston; an excellent public school system; multiple
transportatton systems; attractive neighborhoods; high property values; and well managed local government. Newton
has an award winning public library and a City museum that was a stop on the Underground Railroad.

Otrganizational Structure

The City is governed under a home-rule charter, which vested executive authority and responsibility in an elected
Mayor, who serves a four-year term. Legislative authority is vested in a 24-member Board of Aldermen, of which
eight members are elected from the City’s eight wards and sixteen are elected at large. Members of the Board of
Aldermen are clected every two years. An eight member school committee is elected every two years and 1s
responsible for appointing the Superintendent of Schools, who has responsibility for the daily administration of the
Newton Public Schools.

Services

The City provides a complete range of municipal services including education, public safety, public works, recreation,
library, cultural and health and human services. The Massachusetts Watet Resources Authority provides public water
supply and sewerage treatment services.

Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements along with the combining statements and schedules included in this report relate to the
activities under the direction and control of the Mayor, Board of Aldermen and School Committee. The activities of
the Newton Contributory Retirement System ate included in this report as a blended component unit as prescribed by
GAAP. 'The activities of the Newton Community Development Authority; Newton Commonwealth Foundation;
and Newton Community Farm Inc. are discretely presented component units. The Newton Housing Authority is
excluded from this report because it falls outside the direction and control of the Mayot and Board of Aldermen.
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Financial Management

The Mayor is responsible for the preparation of the City’s capital improvement plan, and annually recommended
capital and operating budgets. The Board of Aldermen is responsible for review and approval of all appropriations
that are recommended by the Mayor. An eight member Finance Committee of the Board of Aldermen oversee
financial policy and a majority of the membership of the Finance Committee also serves on the Audit Subcommittee.

The City’s senior financial management team consists of the Chief Opetating and Financial Officers, who serve on the
Mayor’s staff; the Treasuret/Collector and Chief Assessor who are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the
Board of Aldermen, and the Comptroller who is appointed by the Board of Aldermen.

The City’s three-member Board of Assessots, appointed by the Mayor, is responsible for maintaining accurate real
estate and personal property values. Property values are adjusted annually to capture changes in the local real estate
market and to make certain the City’s assessed valuations are fair and accurate.

The Treasurer/Collector is responsible for revenue collections, cash and debt management, and the administration of
parking violations. Real estate and personal property taxes are billed quartetly, thereby eliminating the need to borrow
in anticipation of revenue. A lock-box system is used for the majortity of real estate, personal property, motor vehicle

and utility cash collections.

The Comptroller is responsible for maintaining the City’s accounting recotds, and teporting the City’s financial
activity and position. Detailed monthly revenue and expenditure information is provided on-line to operating
departments. Quartetly comparative financial management reports are issued to the Mayor, Board of Aldermen and
public on the Comptroller’s page of the City web site. Un-audited budgetary basis year-end financial reports are issued
within 60 days of the close of the fiscal yeat, and audited financial statements are issued prior to the end of the
calendar yeat.

Economic Condition and Outlook

While Newton is not immune to regional and national economic development trends, the City is characterized as a
self-sustaining and stable local economy. Historically, Newton has housed a mytiad of economic activities ranging
from manufacturing to high-tech industries that have served not only local residents, but also the Greater Boston area,
and in some cases national and international markets. The City’s proximity to Boston; location on major regional
highway systems; existing building stock; and solid and extensive physical infrastructure make Newton an attractive
place for metro-area regional and national investments ranging from corporate headquarters to light manufacturing
and regional retail.

The majority of the City’s business establishments are located in the 13 village centers, as well as in some of the
principal traffic corridors such as Needham, Boylston, and California Streets. Thete are two major concentrations of
light manufacturing and non-setvice related industries, both of which atre located on the edges of the City; one in
Nonantum along the Watertown line, and a second in Newton Upper Falls, along the Needham line.
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Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls to:

e Properly safeguard assets.

e Provide reasonable assurance on the accuracy and teliability of the accounting recotds used in the preparation of
the basic financial statements.

e Provide reasonable assurance relative to compliance with legal and contractual constraints on the custody and use
of assets.

Departmental expenditure budgets are prepared and accounted for on a line item basis. However, legally binding
appropriations are made for Personal Services, Expenses, Fringe Benefits, Debt Service and Capital Outlay. Line item
transfers within an expenditure category may be made with the approval of the Depattment Head and Comptroller.
Transfers between expenditure categories require the approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures are
recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the Governmental Funds to maintain
budgetary control.

An analysis of all legally adopted operating and capital budgets are presented on pages 98 - 121 of this report.

The City’s books on fiscal year 2012 were closed within 60 days of yeat end and on September 7, 2012 the
Massachusetts Department of Revenue certified the City’s June 30, 2012 free cash (General Fund fund balance
available for appropriation) at $4,939,145.  Of this sum, §1,850,000 has been transferred to the City’s Rainy Day
Stabilization Fund, bringing the total amount accumulated in this resetve to slightly mote than $8 million —
approximately half the City’s target funding level. All statutory filings have also been made with the Massachusetts
Department of Revenue.

Cash Management

Quarterly billing of real estate and personal property taxes coupled with timely water and sewer utility billing has
eliminated the need to borrow in anticipation of revenue. Idle cash is invested by the Treasurer/Collector and
governed by the Municipal Finance Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Trust Fund, Permanent Fund and Internal Service Fund assets, which the City does not expect to liquidate for current
operations, are invested in U.S. Government, fixed income and/or equity secutities. Professional investment
managers oversee the City’s long-term investments,

The Retirement System’s assets are segregated from other City assets and are managed by a vatiety of professional
investment managers who have been selected by the Retitement Board, with the assistance of an investment
consultant, in order to achieve the Board’s asset allocation policy. An independent custodian bank holds all of the
System’s investments. The City’s Retirement Board voted at its May 2007 meeting to transfer investment
management responsibility for the system’s investment portfolio to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Pension
Reserve Investment Trust effective July 1, 2007.
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Risk Management

The City is self-insured for group health, workers” compensation, building and general liability insurance. Individual
Internal Service Funds are maintained for purposes of accumulating sufficient assets to meet fund liabilities.

The City purchases property insurance from a commercial insurance company but funds annual premiums from
earnings on the building self insurance fund assets. All other risk exposures ate self insured by the City.

In accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45, the City
began to recognize the cost of health benefits in the same manner that has been required for pension benefits for the
past several years in the year ended June 30, 2008. This means that instead of recognizing the cost of health benefits
as they are being paid out, the cost of these benefits are now recognized as they are earned. Although there are no
requirements that the City change the method of funding these benefits, the cumulative impact of the change in
financial reporting is a $147.9 million increase in expenses in the government-wide financial statements and a
corresponding decline in unrestricted net assets.

Newton, like most communities in Massachusetts and for that matter New England, does not currently have a plan
for funding health benefits on a basis other than the historical pay as you go approach. As a tesult of two small prior
year appropriations, the City had accumulated a total of $312,973 for this purpose as of June 30, 2012. Beginning on
July 1 of 2012 the City began making a contribution of 2.5% of compensation for all new health plan participants.
The 2.5% contribution level is expected to be reviewed annually and gradually adjusted to come closer to the actuarial
required contribution to fund normal cost for the health benefits. Please refer to note 12 (pages 62-65) for more
detailed information on the City’s health benefit obligations.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

During fiscal year 2012 the City entered into three year collective bargaining agreements with all employees of the City
and the Newton Public Schools. All contracts contain changes in health cate plan design that are intended to keep the
total annual increase in salaries/wages and health care benefits to not more than 2.5% per year for fiscal years 2012;
2013; and 2014.

Audit Committee

In order to strengthen the City’s internal controls and financial reporting, the Board of Aldermen has established a
permanent audit committee, consisting of both representatives of the Boatrd of Aldermen and Newton residents with
financial management and audit education and expetience. Appointments to the City were made in fiscal year 2012
and the Committee held a number of meetings with management and the City’s independent auditors. A complete
accounting of the work of the Audit Committee is documented on their page of the City web site. Special thanks to
Audit Committee Chair Alderman Ruthanne Fuller for all of her wotk in organizing the City’s new audit committee.

Awards and Acknowledgments

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City maintained a Aaa credit rating with Moody’s Investor Service.



Before concluding, I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the exceptional work and professional
commitment of the staff of the Comptroller’s Office, including: Julie Zakak (tetired August 31, 2012); Regina
Zegarelli; Mary Santoes; Denise Paone; Ann-Marie Daley and Maria Mastroinni. I’d also like to thank the Chait of
the Finance Committee, Alderman Leonard Gentile, and members of the Finance Committee for their assistance and
suppott over the past year. Special thanks also go to the public accounting firm of Sullivan, Rogets & Company for
the efficient completion of this yeat’s audit and for all of their advice and assistance in the preparation of this report
and over the course of the year.

Respectfully,

-

David C. Wilkinson
Comptroller
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SULLIVAN, ROGERS & COMPANY, LLC
Corporate Place I, Suite 204 » 99 South Bedford Street
Burlington, Massachusetts 01803

P« 781-229-5600 F +781-229-5610 www.sullivan-rogers.com

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Board of Aldermen and Mayor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Newton, Massachusetts (City), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (except for the Newton
Conttibutory Retirement System, the Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm,
Inc., which ate as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011), which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc, and the Newton Community Farm,
Inc., which represent 32.4% and 5.1%; 32.0% and 5.1%; and 56.2% and 32.6% of the assets, net assets and revenues,
respectively, of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements wete furnished to us, and our
opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the
Newton Community Farm, Inc., are based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm, Inc. wete not audited in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditots, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City as of June 30, 2012 (except for the Newton Conttibutory Retirement System, the Newton
Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm, Inc., which ate as of and for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011), and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof
and the budgetary compatrisons for the general fund and community preservation fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26, 2012, on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis (located on pages 3 through 16) and certain pension and other postemployment benefits information
(located on pages 74 through 75) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained duting our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, additional information and statistical section ate presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules and additional information are the responsibility of management and were detived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the undetlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

TRBAL N R Gl

November 26, 2012
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Newton (the City), we offet teaders of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the City (primary government) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Financial Highlights:

Total assets of the City exceeded total labilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $238.3 million (nes assess).
The City has negative untestricted net assets totaling ($93.5 million) in the City’s governmental activities and $21.1
million in unrestricted net assets in its business type activities (water & sewer utilities).

The City’s total net assets decreased by $11.5 million ot 4.6% in fiscal year 2012. Net assets of governmental activities
decreased by $19.3 million, a 10.7% decline from fiscal year 2011, while net assets of business-type activities increased
by $7.8 million, or 11.3%, from the prior fiscal year.

Untestricted governmental net assets decreased by $28.2 million to ($93.5) million at June 30, 2012. The decline in
unrestricted governmental activities net assets continues to be the result of the recognition of new liabilities associated
with the City’s post-tetitement health benefit (OPEB) obligations. Duting the fiscal year just ended, $29.1 in new
liabilities were recognized, bringing the total OPEB liability that has been recognized since the implementation of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 45 to $144.3 million.

The total cost of all City services for fiscal year 2012 was $429.8 million, $389.7 million (90.7%) of which was for
governmental services, and $40.1 million (9.3%) of which was for business type services. The total cost of City
services declined by $5.0 million or 1.1% from the total cost of services in the previous fiscal year, largely as a result of
a lesser demand for snow and ice control spending and a reduced level of community preservation and development
activity.

A total of $94.0 million or 24.1% of governmental services were financed from program revenue, leaving 75.9% to be
financed from general revenues and inter-fund transfers. Real estate and personal property tax revenue continues to
represent the single largest source of general revenue.

At June 30, 2012, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $59.0 million. The combined -
governmental funds fund balance decreased by $1.7 million (2.8%) from the prior year’s ending fund balance.

The City’s general fund reported total fund balance of $28.2 million at the end of fiscal year 2012, a $2.5 million (8%)
decrease from the total fund balance at June 30 of the prior fiscal year. The unassigned portion of the fund balance,
however, increased by $763,017 to $14.9 million ot 4.5% of total general fund revenues and other financing sources.
The unassigned fund balance includes $6.2 million that the City set aside over the course of the two most recent fiscal
yeats as a “Rainy Day” Stabilization fund and $4.9 million in “Free Cash” that has been certified as being available for
appropriation by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue.

The City’s total bonded debt (bonds and notes) declined by $4.1 million or 1.8% to $217.6 million during the year.
Newton Notth project debt accounted for $134.1 million ot 61.6% of the City’s total bonded debt.

Ovetview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements consist of thtee components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and
3) notes to the financial statements. This repott also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in 2 manner similat to a private sector business. The statement of net assets (pages 17 and 18)
presents information on all of the City’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as ez
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
City is improving or deteriorating.



The statement of activities (pages 19 and 20) presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the undetlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses reported in this statement for some items will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements summarize functions and programs of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions and programs that are
intended to tecover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees ot charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City include the broad functions of general government; public safety; education; public works;
health & human services; culture and recteation; debt service — interest, and the major services provided within each functional
category. The business-type activities of the City include two enterprise activities: the water system and the sanitary sewer
system. Trend information for all years since the City’s adoption of the current reporting model can be found on pages 123-
126 of this report.

Fund financial statements: A find is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-relate legal tequitements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions and programs reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Howevet, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluation a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is natrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities. These reconciliations may be found on pages 22 and 24.

The City maintains 19 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance
sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the
community preservation fund and the high school improvements fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the
other 16 funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation under the caption non-major governmental funds. A brief
description and individual fund data fot each of the non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements beginning on page 76 of this report. The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 21-26 of
this report. Trend information may be found on pages 127 and 128 of this report.

Proprietary funds: The City maintains two different types of proptietaty funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for water and sanitary sewer activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate the
costs internally among the City’s vatious functions, including employee health benefits; workers’ compensation; public
building insurance; and general liability self-insurance activities. The setvices provided by these funds predominately benefit
the governmental rather than the business-type functions. Accordingly, the internal service funds have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
proptietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sanitary sewer activities, which are
considered major funds of the City. Conversely, all internal setvice funds ate combined into a single, aggregate presentation in
the proptietary fund financial statements. A brief description of each fund and individual fund data for the internal service
funds is provided in the form of cwmbining statements beginning on page 87 of this report. The basic proprietary fund financial
statements can be found on 27-29 of this repott.



Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are »of included in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of the funds are oz
available to support the City’s own functions and activities. The accounting used for fiduciaty funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds financial statements provide separate information for the pension trust fund of the City. All other
fiduciary funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary funds financial statements
under the captions “private purpose trust funds” and “agency funds”, respectively. A brief description of each fund and
individual fund data for the private purpose trust funds and agency funds are provided in the form of combining statements
beginning on page 91 of this report. The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 30 and 31 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full undetstanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on
pages 34-73 of this report. A brief description of new fund balance terminology required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement 54 for governmental funds is presented on page 40 along with a detailed analysis of the major
components of each fund balance account on page 67.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information regarding the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and post-
retitement health benefits to its employees. Such information is located on pages 74 and 75 of this report.

The combining statements previously referred to are presented immediately following the notes to the basic financtal
statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis:

Net Assets: The City’s total assets exceeded total liabilities by $238.3 million at June 30, 2012. This represents a $11.5 million
ot 4.6% decline from total net assets at June 30 of the ptior year, and a decline of $74 million or 23.7% since fiscal year 2008
when the City first began recognizing post-employment health benefit liabilities in its external financial statements. Trend
information for total net assets and its major components over the past five year petiod is summarized graphically below:

Net Asset Trends for Primary
Government - Last Five Years
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The following table presents current and prior year data regarding the City’s net assets:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Current assets.........ooveveiiiien v S 126,635,436 S 125,823,990 S 33,584,864 S 27,888,030 S 160,220,300 S 153,712,020
Noncurrent assets (excluding
capital assets).....ovouiiiininnn. 10,389,494 10,688,161 1,886,096 2,118,841 12,275,590 12,807,002
Capital assets (net).................. 407,523,975 402,588,420 76,316,320 74,231,617 483,840,295 476,820,037
Total a8Sets. . vuvvreieriennaens 544,548,905 539,100,571 111,787,280 104,238,488 656,336,185 643,339,059
Liabilities
Current liabilities
(excluding debt). ............... 39,489,312 39,525,888 1,646,618 2,257,614 41,135,930 41,783,502
Noncurrent liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 155,495,193 127,028,965 3,793,774 3,077,306 159,288,967 130,106,271
Cutrent debt......................... 9,596,167 9,408,367 4,458,055 4,610,497 14,054,222 14,018,864
Noncurrent debt..................... 178,724,266 182,586,433 24,867,962 25,113,517 203,592,228 207,699,950
Total liabilities.................. 383,304,938 358,549,653 34,766,409 35,058,934 418,071,347 393,608,587
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
(net of related debt)............ 220,231,642 211,763,420 49,055,462 46,802,526 269,287,104 258,565,946
Restricted. .....oovrniiscniiin, 34,560,724 34,096,760 6,834,944 7,321,657 41,395,668 41,418 417
Unrestricted....oovvoiiiiinioniinnnns (93,548,399) (65,309,262) 21,130,465 15,055,371 (72,417,934) (50,253,891)
Total net a8sets. ................ S 161,243,967 S 180,550,918 S 77,020,871 S 69,179,554 § 238,264,838 S 249,730,472

The largest portion of the City’s total net assets, $269.3 million, represents the investment in capital assets (e.g., land and land
improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, road netwotk, water system, sewer system and
construction in progtess) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens therefote the assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment
in capital assets is repotted net of related debt, it should be noted that the resoutces to repay debt must be provided from
other sources, since capital assets themselves, cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Please refer to note 6 (page 53) for a
detailed calculation of the City’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets, $41.4 million, represents resources that are subject to restrictions placed on how
they may be used by patties external to the City, of which $13.7 million (33.3%) represents resources restricted for capital
project financing and $9.3 million (22.5%) teptesents resoutces restricted to community preservation purposes. A summary of
all major components of the restricted net assets may be found on the face of the Statement of Net Assets, which can be
found on page 18 of this report.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, total unrestricted net assets declined by $22.2 million as a direct result of the
recognition of $29.8 million new post-retitement health benefit liabilities ($29.1 million in governmental activities and $0.7
million in business type activities). All governmental activities untestricted net assets have been consumed over the past five
years with the recognition of liabilities required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 45. Pages 02
through 65 of this repott provide more detailed information on the City’s post retitement health liabilities that have given rise
to the change in financial positions over the past five years.



Changes in net assets:

The following table presents current and prior year data regarding the City’s changes in net assets:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Fees, fines and charges for services................... S 25732,684 S 21,915225 S 48273768 S 45171479 S 74,006,452 S 67,086,704
Operating grants and contributions................... 65,780,261 66,976,636 646,975 847,004 66,427,236 67,823,640
Capital grants and contributions...................... 2,519,356 1,764,258 489,333 24,182 3,008,689 1,788,440
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes.............. 249,340,011 239,761,554 - 249,340,011 239,761,554
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................. 10,514,832 10,541,624 - 10,514,832 10,541,624
Hotel room occupancy taxes.........oooovvvivinnn. 1,814,792 1,588,882 1,814,792 1,588,882
Meals taXeS...v.iiuii s 1,403,261 1,308,191 1,403,261 1,308,191
Penalties and interest on taxes......oovvvvvviiiiainnn. 1,146,496 1,038,225 - 1,146,496 1,038,225
Payments in lieu of taxes.......covvvivinineanariin. 529,294 515,471 529,294 515,471
Community preservation surcharges.................. 2,431,863 2,352,389 e 2,431,863 2,352,389
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs.............. L R - 5,263,525 5,596,391 5,263,525 5,596,391
Unrestricted investment income................c..... 278,106 454,365 - 278,106 454,365
Gain/(loss) on sales/disposals of capital assets. ..... - 32,280 - - 32,280
Other oo 2,169,238 3,002,856 - - 2,169,238 3,002,856
Total revenues..........ovviviii i 368,923,719 356,848,347 49,410,076 46,042,665 418,333,795 402,891,012
Expenses
General government.... ..o 21,992,988 26,974,952 21,992,988 26,974,952
Public safety.......cooocoiii i 56,061,495 55,800,259 56,061,495 55,800,259
Education. .....o.oviviiaiii e 252,922,994 252,413,006 - 252,922,994 252,413,006
PUblc WOLKS. .. o veveeee e 24,221,365 28,410,758 . - 24,221,365 28,410,758
Health and human services 10,684,932 10,757,372 10,684,932 10,757,372
Culture and recreation.......o.ocoiii i 16,216,945 15,092,035 - 16,216,945 15,092,035
Debt service - HIterest. ... vviiiiiii e 7,559,469 7,670,746 s - 7,559,469 7,670,746
R = N - . 15,185,784 14,260,631 15,185,784 14,260,631
S eWE £ AT T: - SETTTERT, » « I o i o « SET0s o ST I v e e a e o - : 24,953,457 23,468,371 24,953,457 23,468,371
Total eXxpenses. yuseyenrsmmesmommaexnrasemssemss e 389,660,188 397,119,128 40,139,241 37,729,002 429,799,429 434,848,130
Change in net assets before transfers........cocviiviiiiici, (20,736,469) (40,270,781) 9,270,835 8,313,663 (11,465,634) (31,957,118)
Transfers, MEt. .. ..viuiie et 1,429,518 1,240,538 (1,429,518) (1,240,538) - -
Change in Net aSSELS.. . vvunreirrminrineiiinianiariaerireesrsvraees (19,306,951) (39,030,243) 7,841,317 7,073,125 (11,465,634) (31,957,118)
Net assets - beginning of year................ooivii, 180,550,918 219,581,161 69,179,554 62,106,429 249,730,472 281,687,590
Net assets - end of year.........oooii S 161,243,967 S 180,550,918 S 77,020,871 S 69,179,554 S 238,264,838 S 249,730,472

The City’s total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2012 increased by $15.4 million (3.8%) from the prior year. Property
taxes and water and sewer utility charges for service wete tesponsible for a large majority of the increase. The 4% increase in
propetty taxes represents a combination of a 2 2% increase allowed in the tax levy plus new growth. Water and sewer rates
are adjusted annually in an effort to generate sufficient revenue to meet all water and sewer expenses and to provide sufficient
flexibility to off-set the impact of weather related consumption volatility.



The following chart illustrates the distribution of total cutrent year revenues for the primary government, by major source.

FY 2012 TOTAL REVENUE BY SOURCE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
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Total expenses declined by $5.0 million or 1.1% during the year. General government and public works function spending
reductions accounted for most of the overall reduction in spending. The general government spending decline occurred
principally in the planning and development activities and was related to reduced levels of activity in the Community
Preservation Fund, and in federal housing and community development grant funds. The decline in public works spending is
principally a function of the fact that snow and ice control costs were limited to less than $1.0 million during fiscal year 2012,
compared with total spending for this purpose in the prior year amounted to $4.3 million.

At the same time that expenditures declined in general government and public works functions, increased spending occurred
in cultural and recreation and water and sewer functions. Parks and recreation and water utility spending increased by $0.9
million each, and sanitary sewer utility spending increased by $1.5 million. The Patks and recreation spending increase was
principally related to increased demand for emergency tree maintenance activities resulting from two significant storms in the
late summer and eatly fall of the year; the water utility increase was related to an inctease in depreciation expense associated
with the new meters and watet distribution system improvements; and the $1.5 increase in sewer utility spending was entirely
a function of an inctrease in the Massachusetts Water Resoutces Authority (MWRA) charges for sewage collection and
treatment.

Public education continues to be the function receiving the largest commitment of City resoutces. For the year ended June 30,
2012, total spending for education putposes was §252.9 million or 58.8% of total spending, and 64.9% of governmental
activity spending.



The following chart illustrates the distribution of expenses by major function for the primaty government for the year ended
June 30, 2012.

FY 2012 TOTAL EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
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Governmental activities — Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $19.3 million or 10.7% dutring fiscal
2012, for the reasons cited previously. A summaty of revenues and major functional expenses is included in the tables
presented previously. In order to assist the reader in understanding more completely the full cost of the major services
provided by the City within each of the broad functional classifications identified above, the Statement of Activities, presented
on pages 19 and 20 of this report, provides a detailed accounting of all major service expenses, related revenues, and each
service’s consumption of general revenues (principally property taxes).

As has been the case in all years since the City has adopted this reporting model, all governmental activity services, except for
inspectional services, relied on subsidies from general revenues to one degree or another during fiscal year 2012. Inspectional
service department program revenues exceeded total program expenses by $2.9 million for the year.

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $7.8 million ot 11.3% during fiscal year
2012. This is primarily the result of increased user charge revenue resulting from a rate increase that was put in place effective
July 1, 2011; enhanced revenue collections from the City’s new watet metets; and a decline in the value of abatements for prior
meter reading errors.

Financial Analysis of Govetnmental Funds:
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2012, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance totaling $59.0 million, a $1.7 million
(2.8%) decrease from the prior year reported financial position. All three major governmental funds reported reduced levels
of fund balance as of June 30, 2012, while the combined fund balance of all non-major funds increased by $4.8 million.



High School Improvement Fund expenditures exceeded fund revenues by $3.2 million for the year as final athletic field and
site work was completed on the North High School project. All project financing had been completed prior to the start of
2012. Subsequent to year end the Board of Aldermen amended the project budget to account for the fact that final project
costs are $6.0 million less than the $197.5 million budget previously approved for the project. This action also means that a
$2.3 Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) grant receivable balance (withheld by MSBA pending final close out
and audit of the project) will be used to retire existing MSBA intetest subsidized loans, instead of funding project construction
costs. ‘The intergovernmental receivable has therefore been reclassified from the capital project fund to the City’s General
Fund.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the Community Preservation Fund’s financial position declined by $0.8 million.
This is a result of the fact that during the year project expenditures were incurred against appropriations funded in prior fiscal
years. The fund ended fiscal year 2012 with $8.6 million in fund balance. A total of $2.3 million (26.7%) of this sum consists
of unexpended multi-year appropriations. The remaining $6.3 million (ot the equivalent of two years of fund revenue) is
available for appropriation for community presetvation purposes.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City, and at June 30, 2012 reported a total fund balance of $28.2 million,
$2.5 million or 8.1% less than the total fund balance for the previous fiscal year. The unassigned portion of fund balance,
however, continued to improve, increasing from $14.1 million or approximately 4.4% of total fund tevenues and other
financing sources at June 30, 2011 to $14.9 million or 4.5% of fund revenues and other financing sources at June 30, 2012.
Note 14, on page 67 of this report provides a detailed analysis of the major components of each fund balance category.

City of Newton, Massachusetts
General Fund
Fund Trends ~ Fiscal year 2012 and (5) previous fiscal years

2012 2011 (1) 2010 2009 2008 2007
Total fund balance S 28,224,341 30,773,574 $ 19,312,545 § 20,169,278 $ 19,433,216 % 23,609,407
Less: Fund balance restrictions for:
Dbl SErvICe. v vv it i e 617,572 683,320 749,640 881,707
CaPItal.gyys e ereon e omamsrasiussens mrs b gheeescoseonsrnsniny 7,729 108,107 -
Other postemployment benefits..............vioeaniin 312,973 137,295 -
Tess: Fund balance committed for:
Subsecquent year's expenditures. ..o vveniiiiii 2,565,748 2,066,320 2,675,133 5,051,017 2,900,000 3,400,000
CapHal, v T 5,049,725 9,714,755 . . : :
Continued apPropratonS. ...cvvvveus vt ciiieaae 2,201,193 3,096,013 3,192,017 2,335,964 2,223,358 2,438,391
| ess: ['und balance assigned for:
Encumbrances.........ccoves.. e TP 2,435,508 727,814 1,804,606 1,377,372 867,806 1,446,323
Capitalun..coowimnvenize mismsmensnsns A 147,553 116,627 . - - -
Unassigned fund balance...............c.c.cevereene. s, 14,886,340 14,123,323 10,891,149 10,523,218 13,442,052 16,324,693
Total revenues & other financing sources..........c.oovvvins 3 329,962,477 321,055,179 § 318,872,777 § 310,562,043 § 296,667,211 $ 286,109,886
Total fund balance as % total revenues and ofs................ 8.6% 9.6% G.1% 6.5% 6.6% 8.3%
Unassigned fund balance as % total revenues and ofs.......... 4.5% 4.4% 3.4% 3.4% 4.5% 5.7%

(1) Starting in fiscal year 2011 general fund balance is being teported in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement #54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
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Total fiscal year 2012 general fund revenues and other financing sources increased by $8.9 million or 2.8%, to $330.0 million.

% Increase/ %
Source Amount of Total (Decrease) Change

Real estate and personal property taxes......................... S 248 503,570 75.3% S 7,770,923 3.2%
Motor vehicle eXCiSe taXeS. ... vveeeere it iiiie it eiaeiiianns 10,567,479 3.2% 103,683 1.0%
Hotel room occupancy taxes.......oovveeveianiiinninenn.. 1,814,792 0.5% 225910 14.2%
Meals taxesa.s i i b s e S R R S 1,403,261 0.4% 95,070 7.3%
Penalties and interest on taxes.........ocvvvveviiiiann.,. e 1,117,001 0.3% 105,996 10.5%
Licenses and permits. ... ..o 5,416,982 1.6% 286,844 5.6%
Intergovernmental............oooi 50,925,414 15.4% 390,580 0.8%
Charges for SErviCes. ..ot 1,739,638 0.5% 116,034 7.1%
Fines and forefitures. ..o i 2,000,386 0.6% 102,973 5.4%
Investment INCOME. .. .v it et i i e 261,298 0.1% (170,046) -39.4%
Payments in lieu of taxes.................ooc, 479,617 0.1% 39,896 9.1%
Special asSESSNENES. ......iviviei 73,537 0.0% (57,513) -43.9%
MASCEIANEOUS . 1 ie ettt ii i et e s 681,078 0.2% (380,176) -35.8%

TOtal TEVEMUCS. .+t v et ittt ettt 324,984,053 98.5% 8,630,174 2.7%
Premium from issuance of bonds/notes.............ccoo.n.... 131,379 0.0% (36,768) -21.9%
Sale of capital assets..........oooiiiiiiiiiii 35,048 0.0% 18,610 113.2%
Transfers from other funds.......ooo 4,811,997 1.5% 295,282 6.5%
Total revenues and other financing sources.................... S 329,962,477 100.0% S 8,907,298 2.8%

Property tax growth of $7.8 million accounted for 87.2% of all revenue growth for the yeat.

Intetgovernmental revenue includes $30.7 million in Commonwealth of Massachusetts on-behalf payments for Newton
participants in the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System.

A detailed schedule of inter-fund transfer activity is presented in note 7, on page 55 of this report.
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Total general fund expenditures and transfers to other funds totaled $332.5 million, an increase of $7.1 million or 2.2% over
the previous fiscal year.

% Increase/ %
Amount of Total (Decrease) Change
General government. ..o S 13,869,244 4.2% 1,452,076 11.7%
PUBKC Safety.c. . ovvves i ieieeieeeeieee e 35 348,087 10.7% 585,088 1.7%
Education. ......covie i 169,673,728 51.0% 3,863,131 2.3%
Public works. ..o 18,197,012 5.5% (3,258,3006) -15.2%
Health and human services............ocooviiiiiie. ., 3,732,746 1.1% (58,171) -1.5%
Culturc and recreation......o.oooiiiii i 9,439,177 2.8% 476,439 5.3%
Retirement benefits..........ooo i 56,055,483 16.9% 2,898,326 5.5%
Workers' compensation insurance............ . 1,149,375 0.3% 101,361 9.7%
Property and liability insurance.............o..o 409,899 0.1% 12,110 3.0%
Claims and judgements............oo 58,504 0.0% (102,229) -63.6%
State assesments and charges.............o 5,503,956 1.7% 31,469 0.6%
Debt service
Principal.......ooooi e 8,653,367 2.6% (52,133) -0.6%
THECIESE ot ca ettt e 7,471,534 2.2% 89,619 1.2%
Total expenditures..........o.ooooviiiiiiiinennn.. 329,562,112 99.1% 6,039,680 1.9%
Transfers to other funds.....ocovvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieniin. 2,949,598 0.9% 1,094,670 59.0%
Total expenditures and transfers...........oooiniit, S 332,511,710 100.0% S 7,134,350 2.2%

The two functions reporting the largest growth in spending (in dollar terms) were Education and Retirement benefits.
General fund public education spending for the year increased by $3.9 million or 2.3% to $169.7 million.

Expenditures for retirement benefits (including pay-as-you-go post retirement health and life benefits and the
Commonwealth’s on behalf contribution to the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System for Newton educators) increased
by $2.9 million or 5.5% for the year. This amounted to 40.8% of total spending growth for the City’s General fund for the
year. The $2.9 million increase in retirement spending consisted of $1.0 million (6.7%) in additional contributions to the
Newton Retitement System; $1.3 (4.5%) in additional Commonwealth of Massachusetts on-behalf payments made to the
Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System for Newton educators; and a $0.6 million (6.5%) in increased pay-as-you-go
retitee health premium growth.

Public building maintenance and operation spending accounted for §1 million of the $1.5 million increase in General
Government function spending and $403,500 of this sum represented water and sewer use charges for public school buildings
that had previously been budgeted and reported as Education expenditures. The remaining $0.5 increase in General
Government spending represents statutory interest on personal property tax refunds that were made to Verizon
Communications as a result of an unfavorable court decision regarding the taxation of certain communication personal
propetty. All refunded taxes had previously been classified as refunds payable and wete fully reserved in the Board of
Assessor’s Allowance for Abatements and Exemptions (ovetlay accounts).

The $3.3 million (15.2%) reduction in public works spending is entirely related to the decline in the demand for snow and ice
control spending in 2012, which was related to the lack of inclement weather during the winter and the $476,439 increase in
culture and recreation spending was primarily storm related emergency tree activities.

The votets of the City elected to implement the Community Preservation Act (CPA), with a 1% surcharge on all real estate tax

bills, in November 2001. Duting the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City realized $3.1 million in CPA fund revenue, $2.4
million (77.4%) of which came from the local property tax surcharge. State matching funds amounted to $0.6 million. Fund
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expenditures totaled $3.8 million for the yeat, $2.0 million (52.6%) of which was for historic preservation project purposes and
$0.9 million (23.7%) was for debt service on two land acquisition projects.

The high school improvements fund was established to account for major renovations to the City’s Newton South High
School and the construction of a new Newton North High School. Both projects are now complete and the fund ended the
fiscal year with a fund balance of $88,270.

The overall financial position of all non-major governmental funds increased by $4.8 million (27.7%) during the year. Spectal
revenue funds, notably receipts reserved for appropriation; school state grant funds; and revolving funds accounted for $3.8
million or 79.2% of the increase. Parking meter receipts; cable television license fees; and the reservation of $555,023 in
storm related state and fedetal grant reimbursements for future year inclement weathet setvice needs, accounted for the
increase in the receipts reserved for appropriation. The Newton Public school’s reservation of an additional $1.3 million in
special education citcuit breaker reimbursements for future year special education services was tesponsible for the increase
fund balance in the school state grant fund

Proprietary funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same information found in the government-wide statements, but
in slightly more detail. Restticted proprietary net assets represent capital grant funds whose purposes are restricted for
improvements to the physical infrastructure of the City’s water and sewer systems. Proprietary fund net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt represents principally the City’s watet supply and distribution system and the sanitary sewer
collection system.

The financial position of the City’s sewer fund increased by $4.5 million to $41.0 million at June 30, 2012. This resulted from
a combination of a July 1, 2011 sewer use charge rate inctease and improved billings and collections resulting from the
installation of new meters. A total of $24.6 million or 60% of the fund’s net assets tepresent investments in capital assets (net
of debt) and another $2.9 million represents resources legally restricted for future sewer system capital improvements.
Untestricted fund net assets amounted to $13.5 million at June 30, 2012, the equivalent of 6 months of operating expenditures.

The financial position of the City’s water fund also improved duting the last fiscal year from $32.7 million at June 30, 2011 to
$36.0 million at June 30, 2012. The $3.3 million improvement in the financial position of this fund was also a function of the
July 1, 2011 water rate increase and improved billings and collections resulting from the installation of new water metets.

A total of $24.4 million or 67.8% of the total fund net assets represents the City’s investment in water system capital assets
(net of debt) and another $4.0 million represents resoutces legally restricted for future watet system capital improvements.
Unrestricted fund net assets were $7.6 million, also approximately 6 months of operating expenditures.

The financial position of the City’s Internal Service Funds increased by $2.1 million, or 16.2%, to $15.1 million during the year
ended June 30, 2012. Internal service funds are used to account for the City’s self-insured group health insurance; workers
compensation; and general liability risk exposures and to fund propetty insurance premiums for $741.0 million in insured City
buildings and contents. Detailed information on the self-insurance funds is presented on pages 87-90.

The financial position of the City’s group health self -insurance fund imptroved by $2.4 (23.1%) during the year and accounted
for all of the improvement in the financial position of the internal service funds. The improvement resulted principally from
the fact that paid claims declined by $1.5 million (3.1%) and the City’s estimated of incurred, but unreported claims liability
decteased by $0.6 million. The year-end net asset balance of $12.8 million represents approximately 3.4 months of average paid
claims fot the year. As noted in the notes to the financial statements, the City implemented several changes in health plan
design over the past year through the collective bargaining process. These plan design changes are intended to limit the City’s
total employee compensation cost growth (exclusive of pension and OPEB) to not mote than 2.5% per year over the next
three fiscal years.

The financial position of the City’s workers’ compensation self- insurance fund improved by $128,161 during the year
ptincipally as a result a reduction in the actuarial accrued liability of the fund and increased employer fund contributions made
during the year to off-set the impact of decreased investment income earnings. 'The June 30, 2012 fund equity of $1.7 million
ptovides a cushion against volatility in investment performance and extraordinary and unforeseen claims experience, the latter
of which is particulatly important because the City does not purchase any commercial stop loss insurance on workers’
compensation program claims.
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The financial condition of the City’s building insurance fund continued to decline as a result of the fact that fund investment
income does not match the resources withdrawn from the fund each year for commercial property insurance premiums. The
$434,300 June 30, 2012 net asset balance is sufficient to pay approximately one year of building insurance premiums.

Fiduciary funds — The net assets of the City’s contributory retirement system declined by $8.0 million (3.3%) to $233.3
million during the system’s fiscal year that ended December 31, 2011, entirely as a result of poor investment performance.
According to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission’s 2011 Annual
Report, the Newton Contributory Retirement System’s investment pottfolio teturned 0.58% for the year. This is largely the
result of the fact that the Massachusetts Pension Reserve Investment Trust’s (PRIT) cote pottfolio teturned only 0.14% for
the year and all but two real estate investments are managed by the PRIT fund. The 2011 return is significantly below
Newton’s 7.75% assumed rate of return.. The City made its actuarially requited conttibution to the fund in full. More specific
information about the local retirement system may be found on pages 68-71 of this repott.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

The difference between the original General Fund budget of $305.7 million (including ptior yeat encumbrances and
continuing appropriations) and the final amended budget of $311.5 million amounts to 1.9% and can be summarized as
follows:

Description Amount

Rainy Day Stabilization fund........................ $ 2,500,000
Capital Outlay and improvements.................. 1,161,949
Municipal collective bargaining...................... 737,917
School SPED tuitions. .....ovvevieeiiniiaeernnneenn. 670,292
Property tax revaluation...............cooeeiiiannn, 250,000
OPEB fund contrdbution.........cocevvieeviiininnn. 175,000
Emergency tree maintenance........................ 90,862
Veteran benefits.......ooovviiiiiiiin i, 75,000
State asSeSSMENtS....vviveiiiii i, 38,830
Police bullet resistant vest teplacement............ 36,000
Conservation land maintenance..................... 27,048
Fire prevention activities.........coooovvveeanian..n. 11,277

Total supplemental approptiations................ g 5,774,175

There were no deficits incurred in the appropriations of the various departments of the City, although we did record a
$493,719 liability for statutory interest on a series of personal propetty tax abatement related refunds that had not been
provided for in an appropriation recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Board of Aldermen by June 30, 2012.
Subsequent to year end, an appropriation for this amount was voted by the Boatrd of Aldermen and funds were disbursed. All
but $1.9 million (0.6%) of total appropriations were expended, encumbeted, or continued into fiscal year 2013 for completion
of the appropriated purposes at June 30, 2012. Please refer to pages 99108 for a complete accounting of budget to actual
experience for all City departments, at their legal level of control.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The City’s investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities, net of accumulated

depreciation of $212.0 million, as of June 30, 2012, amounts to $483.8 million. The investment in capital assets includes land
and land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress.

Land and improvements............
Intagible assets........oovvviiiiiien
Buildings and improvements.......
Machinery and equipment,.........
Infrastructure.............ooooeinie

Construction in progress...........

Total capital assets.........ivveennns

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
22,226,126 S 22,226,126 S 284,785 S 284,785 S 22510911 S 22,510,911
1,270,000 - - - 1,270,000 -
318,092,734 309,965,778 2,286,314 2,359,102 320,379,548 312,324,880
18,577,977 18,725,294 10,472,627 2,214,077 29,050,604 20,939,371
44,064,082 42,311,034 63,267,749 62,128,469 107,331,831 104,439,503
3,293,056 9,360,188 4,345 7,245,184 3,207,401 16,605,372
407,523,975 S 402588420 S 76316320 S 74231,617 S 483,840,295 S 476,820,037

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $7.0 million or 1.5%. Major capital asset events during 2012

included the following:

e Business-type activity net capital assets increased by $2.1 million, principally due to the ongoing water meter

replacement program, but also due to water and sewer system improvements funded with Massachusetts Water

Resources Authority grants and interest free loans.

¢ Governmental activity capital assets (net) increased by $4.9 million, principally as a result of $3.2 million in project
close out activity at the new Newton North High School facility and the recognition of $1.3 million in intangible

assets related to the acquisition of a historic presetvation restricton on the Durant Kenrick museum site.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets may be found on pages 50-53 of this report.

Debt outstanding — At June 30, 2012, the City had total long tetm debt outstanding of $217.6 million, $188.3 million for
governmental activities and $29.3 million for business-type activities. There were no bond anticipation notes outstanding at

June 30, 2012. All debt is a general obligation of the City, although water and sewer debt service payments are made from the
resources of the enterprise funds and community preservation fund project debt service payments are made from resources of

the community preservation fund.

City of Newton, Massachusetts

General Obligation Bonds and Notes Outstanding — by Purpose

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Education buildings................ N 167,402,333 S 169,600,000 S - S - S 167,402,333 S 169,600,000
Municipal buildings................ 10,250,000 11,045,000 10,250,000 11,045,000
Departmental equipment.......... 7,040,000 6,755,000 7,040,000 6,755,000
Landfill closute...ovvevereiannnnn.. 1,028,100 1,169,800 1,028,100 1,169,800
Street reconstruction. .. 325,000 395,000 325,000 395,000
Land acquistion............i. 2,275,000 3,030,000 2,275,000 3,030,000
Water syStem. . .. ooeiiuiviiiannn. 18,179,039 20,046,257 18,179,039 20,046,257
Sanitary sewer system.. 11,146,978 9,671,757 11,146,978 9,677,757
Total bonds and notes...... e ) 188,320,433 S 191,994,800 S 29,326,017 S 29,724,014 S 217,646,450 S 221,718,814
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During the year just ended, the City added $9.9 million in new bonds and retited $14.0 million in existing bonds. General fund
interest and principal payments amounted to $16.1 million or 4.9% of fund revenues and other financing sources. Community
Preservation Fund interest and principal payments amounted to $857,906, ot 27.9%, of fund revenues.

All existing long-term debt of the City’s existing debt will be repaid in full by the year 2041.

At June 30, 2012 the City’s authorized and unissued long term debt amounted to §36.8 million, an increase of $21.4 million
(139%) from June 30, 2011, Subsequent to year end, a total of $6.3 million in bonds that had been authorized for the
construction of the new Newton North High School were rescinded by vote of the Board of Aldermen since they were not
needed to complete the project.

The City’s bonds are rated Aaa by Moody’s Investor Services Inc.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found on pages 56-62 of this report. In addition, debt trend
information is available on pages 133-136 of this repott.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

® According to the U.S Census Bureau, the 2010 median household income for the City was $112,728. This compares
favorably with the Massachusetts median household income of $67,950, and the U.S median household income of
$54,595. The City’s per capita income was $59,877 compared with $33,704 for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts,
and $26,505 for the nation as a whole.

¢ According to the U.S Bureau of Labor Statistics, the unemployment rate for the City as September 30, 2012 was 4.1%,

which compared favorably with the statewide unemployment rate of 6.5% and the national unemployment rate of
7.8%.

® According to the City’s Board of Assessors, the 2012 median value of a single family home in Newton was $680,500;
the median value of a commercial property was $760,500; and the median value of industrial property was $854,900.

The City of Newton’s fiscal year 2013 general fund operating budget, as amended through the date of this report, amounts to
$317.8 million. This represents an increase of $6.3 million, or 2%, from the final fiscal year 2012 budget total.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of those with an interest in the
City’s finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information

should be addressed to the Comptroller, City of Newton, 1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton, Massachusetts 02459 ot
dwilkinson@newtonma.gov.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
ASSETS Activities Activities Total Units
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents........ooooi i 49,460,156 S 11,891,457 61,351,613  § 690,299
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 52,003,252 6,834,944 58,838,196 143,656
[nvestments. . ..ovoeiviiiinianns . . . -
Restricted InVESHMEIES. cu .o ivneinecieiiiianaaiieaiineis 8,964,272 8,964,272 -
Interest and dividendsiusiciiiiesss i cana. oes sisssvisasass - soet s iawaniase 30,922 30,922 442,968
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes.... 3,433,709 - 3,433,709
Tax and utility liens. ....co.oiiniiiianeanns 7,643,146 317,485 7,960,631
Motor vehicle excise.s. . cnms . suipewus: 615 « icew pasnies T - s . ok 778,620 . 778,620
Community preservation surcharges. .....ooivvviiiioniviniiiann, 31,244 . 31,244
Charges for service.........oo..io. 799,815 14,314,015 15,113,830 .
Departmental and other... 756,210 - 756,210 11,841
Intergovernmental....... 2,300,862 226,963 2,527,825 -
Special ASSESSMENTS. . .iauivuiniiiuinsenvabmnsooe e iinseia e aes 695 695 -
L 0N . g & 2 R e i S S b D - 84,933
Other aSSetS..uvrnrmrrerieenaarerioarirnnrs 37,500 B 37,500 457
Due from fiduciary funds. ... ..o, 17,601 17,601 .
Prepaid expenses.iara e anla il Uit nid s s e e v 4,078
o T - - 782
Working capital deposit. . ....uiiieuiiiiimamuiiimiismiaiiaiian 377,432 377,432
TOEAl CUITENE ASSEES. - v o v oe e e e e e e e e 126,635,436 33,584,864 160,220,300 1,379,014
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted INVESIMENTS .. ouiviiveneiiiiiiiiiiaiinn 67,354 - 67,354
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate tax deferrals........oovveivivaiiiniiinenn, 2,909,782 - 2,909,782 -
Departmental and other... 4,240,896 - 4,240,896
Intergovernmental. ... 2,576,389 1,838,196 4,414,585
Special assessments. .. : iz ae Tugn . 595,073 47,900 642,973 -
OIS 5uyaa w0 i 8 A O A W W B A BN - - 4,114,515
Capital assets:
Nondepreciables it siuisinaiin s R i b iiiidaianiatiu 26,789,182 289,130 27,078,312 -
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 380,734,793 76,027,190 456,761,983 2,161,375
Total NONCULTENE ASSELS. - v owuveuieiunviinieniaiiuiiariianiiins 417,913,469 78,202,416 496,115,885 6,275,890
TOtAl ASSEES. .+ evivuavneueransnnre e carararenas e rnrasaense 544,548,905 111,787,280 656,336,185 7,654,904
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable. . ... 3,323,460 477,213 3,800,673 129,274
Accrued liabilities. ... ...... 5,822,506 413,631 6,236,137 104,083
Accrued payroll,........... 12,165,411 44,924 12,210,335 .
Revenue refunds payable......ccoiiiniiiiiiiiniiiiininn R ; 5,049,803 - 5,049,803
Health claims payable........oouiiiiimiiii e 3,674,387 . 3,674,387
Other liabilities. ....... 2,398,522 49,199 2,447,721
Accrued interest...... - 1,784,421 181,340 1,965,761
Abandoned property......ccoiiiiiiins 789,373 - 789,373 .
Liabilities payable from restricted assets.........c.ovvieiimamiiviiniiann. 247,349 452,713 700,062 .
Bonds payableiuiiiiiaa siiniog . S . Siaiiniin a 9,596,167 4,458,055 14,054,222 .
Landfill closure and other environmental liabilities..................... 99,000 . 99,000 -
Compensated abSences;aussissananassassssbioiansasasraasssinssaissiding 2,825,574 27,598 2,853,172
Workers' compensation benefits................. 1,309,506 - 1,309,506
Total current liabilities. . ... .oouiiuioii e 49,085,479 6,104,673 55,190,152 233,357
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)

JUNE 30, 2012
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable............... R S 178,724,266 % 24867962 $ 203,592,228 §
Landfill closure and other cnvuonmenta] l|ab|lmes ] 645,000 . 645,000
Compensated absences. ...........eeveiiiainns 5,337,470 248,380 5,585,850
Net OPEB obligation. . ..........ocoivinian. 144,333,034 3,545,394 147,878,428
Workers' compensation beneﬂts U 5,179,689 5,179,689
Total noncurrent liabilities. ........cccoooians 334,219,459 28,661,736 362,881,195 -
Total HabiHHES. . ...vviiviieiansieiseiensrneins 383,304,938 34,766,409 418,071,347 233,357
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............. 220,231,642 49,055,462 269,287,104 2,161,375
Restricted for:
Capital purposes. .. . . . 6,860,156 6,834,944 13,695,100
Community preservation ACHVIHES. .. usvi vem.iiirmiimsoaiiens s 9,315,701 9,315,701
Education activities.. LS 3,778,746 3,778,746
Other post employmcnt bcncﬁts ...... 312,973 312,973
Debt serviceszaizai. auassie . n . vouriag - iikasbaitins - b ianssn sbvnas s - 2,946,430 2,946,430
Perpetual funds:
Expendable.................. 742,711 742,711
Nonexpendable. .. . . — 446,818 446,818
Otherspecnﬁcpurposes ANETBRNENE S « SRR S E AR T RAERA N - To 10,157,189 10,157,189 -
Unrestricted. . ZVALES (93,548,399) 21,130,465 (72,417,934) 5,260,172
TOAl N ASSCLS. «vuvaaanemsrrensamnmnsne s venan e rnnnernnnnreenre O 161,243,967 S 77,020871 § 238,264,838 S 7,421,547

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Fces, Fines, and Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Legislative & €XECUHVE...uiiiiiiiiiinii i, S 2,584,686 S 648,649 S 318,423 S 6,961 (1,610,653)
Blections. . ... .. vomn .. 755,458 1,461 14,462 - (739,535)
Financial administration.. 3,924,282 231,109 3,994 (3,689,179)
Administrative support... 4,530,320 396,819 7 - (4,133,494)
Planning & development.....c.occiuiiimamiiii i, 5,909,983 782,457 3,733,563 - (1,393,963)
Public building maintenance & operation. ... ............. 3,794,540 35,626 8,762 . (3,750,152)
Interest on property tax refunds......vevrvnsririessnrenans 493,719 - - . (493,719)
Public safety
POLCC. . ... iim: . Shiwamtin akias shvayas snavapasd anay KEkN Sumawayn £y avEaSs 28,938,264 5,262,616 497,947 - (23,177,701)
Fireccsiasiszo.. o ASTHR R B neee s $B s ees B T 25,464,496 601,532 43,844 - (24,819,120)
InSpectional SCIVICES. i ruruieriamsirasieisioisiaiennsionsasis 1,549,348 4,477,703 - 2,928,355
Other public safety...........cooiiiiiniiieraene 109,387 22,604 . - (86,783)
Education.....cccoiiiirimiin 252,922,994 7,547,398 59,482,585 (185,893,011)
Public works
Streets & sidewalks.......... 13,974,227 2,994,871 84,800 2,512,395 (8,382,161)
Control of snow & iCe...., wrueeny,.. . 1,041,222 - . - (1,041,222)
Collection & disposal of solid Waste.......covvieviisiinnn 7,473,428 44,776 55,027 - (7,373,625)
Engineering e saaakaassosuiaaisspauaaisaias « 6everereriorne 1,732,488 37,601 . - (1,694,887)
Health & human services
Public health & human services. .. ..oooieiiiiiiiiaiininnns 9,317,270 109,238 201,623 - (9,006,409)
Senior services 910,089 8,976 247,749 - (653,364)
Veleran SCIVICES yessrsnnssssvsrssvessnrsvassvarssavasisnarssasns 457,573 - 349,005 - (108,568)
Culture and recreation
Libraricsmakm m s e e s v 7,164,558 120,763 410,945 . (6,632,850)
Parks & 1€Creaton.......vivciiiiaiiniii i aaas 8,191,526 2,408,485 149,416 (5,633,625)
Newton History muscum... . 860,861 - 1,891 (858,970)
Debt SEIVICE = IIEEIESE. .1\t ve v vrvrvrineriss et eretersiieearenn 7,559,469 - 176,218 - (7,383,251)
Total governmental aCHVIHES,,.av v viviiviiniininiiiinns, 389,660,188 25,732,684 65,780,261 2,519,356 (295,627,887)
Business-type activities:
WaleTuunsannanmunssoeornpansnss S ELETIET: » ST el ST A . 15,185,784 19,695,478 317,607 12,866 4,840,167
SOV % 3 5 38 555 K< 4 E AR 65 SR SN BOT A OHEe DH 24,953,457 28,578,290 329,368 476,467 4,430,668
Total busincss-type activities,. ... 40,139,241 48,273,768 646,975 489,333 9,270,835
Total Primary GOVernmMent. u.euvrauirers i, S 429,799,429 S 74,006,452 S 66,427,236 S 3,008,689 (286,357,052)
Component units:
Newton Commonwealth Foundaton, Inc...........ccooviviiiiinnnn. S 229,474 S 269,488 S 4,496 S - 44,510
Newton Community Development Authority.......o.ooii, 122,192 - 74,633 - (47,559)
Newton Community Farm, InC...evrvareanniiienvninnn, 147,744 108,528 48,726 - 9,510
Total Component UnitS,ssisisssses - iesssianisnsspnsisnssnenie. ssnona.nee S 499,410 S 378,016 S 127,855 S - 6,461
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Changes in net assets:
Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page)........ocvieeeeeevnnern..

General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
levied for general purposes......ocoicvivveiiiiiii
Real estate and personal property taxes,
levied for community preservaion purposes............,....
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..........c.oveveieiiaaiians
Hotel room OCCUPANCY tANCS. .. anmnmimirimnaaire e easiaineannns
MEAlS TANES . ..t vttt it
Penalties and INterest OM tAXES. .. ovuviaiviauieneeiiraieaianeanany
Payments in lieu of taxes.............oooo
Grants and contributions not restricted to
[elEletilel ol dotos cbe TN
Unrestricted iNVeStMENt INCOME. ««v . vvvueesisrasiammmimsnsanneans

Change in NEEassetS. ... viviviiiuiuine s
Net assets - beginning of yeat..........o.ooiiiiiiiin i,

Net assets - end of year............ooooiiiiiiiiiii e

See notes to basic financial statements,

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Actvities Total Units
(295,627,887) ' S 9,270,835 S (286,357,052) S 6,461
249,340,011 - 249,340,011
2,431,863 - 2,431,863
10,514,832 - 10,514,832
1,814,792 - 1,814,792
1,403,261 - 1,403,261
1,146,496 - 1,146,496
529,294 - 529,294
5,263,525 - 5,263,525
278,106 - 278,106 -
2,169,238 - 2,169,238 53,828
1,429,518 (1,429,518) - -
276,320,936 (1,429,518) 274,891,418 53,828
(19,306,951) 7,841,317 (11,465,634) 60,289
180,550,918 69,179,554 249,730,472 7,361,258
161,243,967 S 77,020,871 S 238,264,838 S 7,421,547
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents....
Interest and dividends el

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property BXes. ... verreereererrrrnranan
Real estate tax deferrls...
Tax Hens..oooueivienerian
Motor vehicle excise...uuariinieiiaias
Community preservation surcharges. .,
Charges for services..........o.vu
Departmental and other. .
Intergovernmental.,......oceiieimieimieinminminimae s
Special ASSESSTNNES. . wonuiwviiiiusiinvureisiaiasimniessiensssnnnniinns
Due from other funds.. .. -oovvuiicivimminnrmiairiee
Due from fiduciary funds,
Other assets...v.oviierrioarns
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.....cc.ooieisioviniiion s

Investments.....iivieanioiiinn

TOTAL ASSETS.atiai dabuiinaistatinslaltiaa haiai
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable. ... ooouioviiiniiiiniaiimr i .
Accrued liabilities.. . ...

Accrued payroll oo

Revenue refunds payable...... .

Other liabilities....coiovininrin.
Abandoned property.........
Liabilities due depositors. .....
Deferred revenue......
Due to other funds....

TOTAL LIABILITIES. .....coviviiniciiinns

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendables.se: sersrmsrssssresssrersmmmreres sasars svarmssmsans
Restricted. ...

Assigned
Unassigned.

TOTAL FUND BALANCES......icicviiiiaiiiiaiiennns

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. ...

See notes to basic financial statements.

Nonmajor Total
Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds
49,460,156  § S - S 49,460,156
- 2,297 2,297
3,433,709 3,433,709
2,909,782 - 2,909,782
7,638,519 4,627 7,643,146
778,620 - - - 778,620
. 312+ - 31,24
50,083 - 749,732 799,815
4,948,940 - 7,940 4,956,880
3,150,936 652,294 1,055,781 4,859,011
595,768 595,768
240,400 - 240,400
17,601 . 17,601
7,500 30,000 37,500
938,274 8,745,965 336,789 22,857,006 32,878,034
- 530,429 530,429
74,170,288 § 9,429,503 336,789 § 25,237,812 $§ 109,174,392
2,365,300 S 112,878 35813 $ 522434 S 3,036,425
4,022,588 . 212,706 555,323 4,790,617
11,632,823 924 . 520,H2 12,154,191
5,049,803 - 5,049,803
. 948,905 948,905
789,373 789,373
247,349 247,349
21,838,709 679,631 365,405 22,883,745
- - 240,400 240,400
45,945,947 793,433 248,519 3,152,909 50,140,808
- - . +H6,818 +H6,818
938,274 8,636,070 88,270 19,892,876 29,555,490
9,816,666 1,745,209 11,561,875
2,583,061 . 2,583,061
14,886,340 - - 14,886,340
28,224,341 8,636,070 88,270 22,084,903 59,033,584
74,170,288 $ 9,429,503 336,789 S 25,237,812 S 109,174,392
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Total governmental fund balances (page 21).......ooi i

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds......... i e

In the staterent of net asscts, interest is acctued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due........oovvvii i

Long-term liabilities are not duc and payable in the current petiod and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Bonds and notes payable. ... e
Landfill closure and other environmental Habilities. ........o.vvint vttt
Compensated aDSEIICES. ..ot
Net OPEB OBUZAtON. 1. .. e et e e e e e e

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance,
workers' compensation, building insurance and liability insurance activities. The assets

and liabilities of the internal service funds are reported as governmental activities in the
T 00T i) e L o T 3 O

Net assets of governmental activities (page 18)........ .. i e e

See notes to basic financial statements.

59,033,584

407,523,975

22,883,745

(1,784,421)

(188,320,433)
(744,000)
(8,163,044)
(144,333,034)

15,147,595

‘ 161,243,967
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES

Real estate and personal property taxes. ........

Motor vehicle excise taxes

Hotel room occupancy taxes, .......ieu.
Meals taxes . - .
Community preservation surcharges..

Penaltes and interest on taxes........r- .

Licenses and permits......
Intergovemmental
Charges for services..
Fines and forfeitures. ...
Investment inCOME. . vuviei vev e
Contributions and donations........
Payments in lieu of taxes
Miscellaneous. . ..o
Special assessments. ...

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:

Legislahve & execulive.. .. ..ovion.

Elections .
Financial admlmsn':mon
Adrmunistrative support..
Planning & development..

Public building maintenance & opemnons

Interest on property tax refunds..
Public safety:
Police.
Fire....
Inspectional services. .
Other public snfety
Education......
Public works:
Streets & sidewalks. .
Control of snow & ice,......

Collection & dlsposal of solid waste, .

Vehicle maintenance. .
Engineering. .. " v
Administration & support
Health and human services:
Health & human services

Senior SEIVICES - oviivs o ieiiiinicn v e

Veteran services. ..
Culture and recreation:
Libraniesssrsssssisseisnis
Parks & recreaion.....oo..oio
Newton History museum .
Retirement benefits.
Workers' compensation insurance
Property and liability insurance ...

Claims and judgments. v..evewviee i

State assessments & charges....
Debt service:

Prncipal. o

Interest, .

TOTAL EXPENDITURES....

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES. .......

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in.

Issuance ofgenera] ob]lgzmon bonds RO A
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes. ..
Sale Of ASSEES v beiisimssbsssvarmssnnsssinsssmassmban

Transfers out..oveeeviiiiinn

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).....

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. ......covunn

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

See notes to basic financial statements

Nonmajor Total
Community High School Governmental Governmental
Generl Preservation Improvements Funds Funds
§ 248,503,570 § § s $ 248,503,570
10,567,479 10,567,479
1,814,792 1,814,792
1,403,261 . 1,403,261
. 2,427,905 . 2,427,905
1,117,001 29,495 1,146,496
5,416,982 - 664,406 6,081,388
50,925,414 625,763 21,485,529 73,036,706
1,739,638 15,600,829 17,340,467
2,000,386 16,699 2,017,085
261,298 23,768 (13,816) 271,250
- 1,299,748 1,299,748
479,617 . 479,617
681,078 541,153 1,222,231
..... 73,537 277,102 350,639
324,984,053 3077436 - 39,901,145 367,962,634
1,813,159 1,813,159
461,392 36,263 497,655
2,828,920 2,828,920
3,403,169 - - 3,403,169
939,781 1,002,280 3,567,594 5,509,655
3,929,104 140,508 2,600,476 6,670,088
493,719 493,719
17,691,819 - 3,566,751 21,258,570
16,516,085 - 770,446 17,286,531
1,063,722 B 2,025 1,065,747
76,461 - - 76,461
169,673,728 3,209,330 23,603,427 196,486,485
6,391,291 3,667,140 10,058,431
920,327 - 920,327
6,557,584 15,066 6,572,650
1,922,730 1,437 1,924,167
1,057,945 37,601 1,095,546
1,347,135 1,347,135
2,829,423 170,020 2,999,443
569,105 - 220,732 789,837
334,218 334,218
4,768,650 3,087 392,546 5,164,283
4,437,079 11,503 2,152,308 6,600,890
..... 233,448 1,833,964 6,461 2,073,873
56,055,483 56,055,483
1,149,375 - 1,149,375
409,899 409,899
58,504 58,504
5,503,956 3,503,956
8,653,367 755,000 - - 9,408,367
7,471,534 102.906 - - 7,574,440
329,562,112 3,849,248 3,209,330 40,810,293 377,430,983
(4,578,059) (771,812) (3,209,330) (909,148) (9,468,349)
4,811,997 3,601,440 8,413,437
- - 5,734,000 5,734,000
131,379 - 131,379
35,048 . . 32,562 67,610
(2.949,598) (1,922) (1 (3,633,665) (6,585,196)
2,028,826 (1,922) (11) 5,734,337 7,761,230
(2,549,233) (773,734) (3,209,341) 4,825,189 (1,707,119)
30,773,574 9,409,804 3,297,611 17,259,714 60,740,703
$ 28,224341  § 8,636,070 $ 88,270 $ 22,084,903 § 59,033,584




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 23).. ... iuiiiiiiiiiiiiiirce e
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. [Towever, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.
Capital outlays
Depreciation

In the statement of activities, only the loss on the disposal of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds there is no use of financial resources.
As a result, the change in net assets differs from the change in

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(1.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, ctc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue.........oovirioveiiorieii e
The 1ssuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
impact on net assets, Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. Thesc amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.
Bond proceedSigaii - fa o oov e e e R S R AR RAE + « « -+« < ST TR e P p S KR S Bl e e ee e e oERE
Bond maturities

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable.....ov.viiii i

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

These amounts represent the net changes in accruals:
Landfill closure and other environmental liabilities. ..

Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance, workers' compensation,

building insurance and liability insurance activides. The net activity of the internal service funds
is reported with governmental activities

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (page 20)

See notes to basic financial statements.

(1,707,119)

19,258,312
(14,263,189)

(59,568)

864,715

(5,734,000)
9,408,367

14,971

61,000
(225,335)
(29,062,471)

2,137,366

(19,306,951)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes
Motor vehicle excise taxes
Hotel room occupancy taxes
Meals tax
Penalties and interest on taxes
Licenses and permits
Tntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Payments in lieu of taxes
Miscellaneous
Special assessments

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative & executive
Elections
Financial administration
Admunustrative support.
Planning & development
Public building maintenance & operations
Interest on property tax refunds
Public safety:
Police
Fire
Inspectional services
Other public safety
Education
Public works:
Streets & sidewalks
Control of snow & ice
Collection & disposal of solid waste
Vehicle maintenance
Engineering
Admunisteation & support
Health and human services:
Health & human services
Senior services
Veteran services
Culture and recreation:
Libranes
Parks & recreation
Newton History museum
Retitement benefits
Workers' compensation insurance
Property and liability insurance
Claims and judgments
Reserve fund
State assessments & charges
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes
Sale of assets
Transfecs out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR .

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

See notes to basic financial statements

e
Variance
Actuat to Final Budget
Onginal Final Budgetary Positive/
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative]
$ 247,767,871 247,532,017 S 248,246,368 S 714,351
10,100,000 10,000,000 10,382,196 382,196
1,800,000 1,650,000 1,814,792 164,792
1,300,000 1,300,000 1,403,261 103,261
1,010,000 1,010,000 1,117,001 107,001
4,874,820 4,874,820 5,416,982 542,162
19,554,749 20,109,496 20,679,982 570,486
1,502,675 1,541,136 1,739,638 198,482
1,911,392 1,911,392 2,000,386 88,994
750,000 270,000 244,319 (25,681)
405,000 430,000 479,617 49,617
91,015 677471 831,929 154,458
110,000 110,000 73,537 (36,463)
291,177,522 291,416,352 294,430,008 3,013,656
2,104,090 1,876,528 1,813,159 63,369
572,136 461,392 110,74+
3,366,551 2,828,920 537,631
4,091,535 3,403,169 688,366
996,542 939,781 56,761
4,215,610 3,929,104 316,506
. 493,719 (493,719)
17,595,847 17,736,139 17,676,253 59,886
16,488,785 17,308,554 16,840,925 467,629
1,130,032 1,134,473 1,063,722 70,751
75,586 76,628 76,461 167
171,222,112 171,323,146 169,673,728 1,649,418
6,873,390 6,921,591 6,423,540 498,051
1,000,000 960,709 920,327 40,382
6,517,577 6,581,941 6,557,584 24,357
2,584,745 2,339,950 1,922,730 417,220
1,055,015 1,098,448 1,064,520 33,928
1,403,647 1,419,439 1,347,135 72,324
2,968,122 3,009,416 2,842,923 166,493
569,826 572,091 569,105 2,986
292,498 369,138 334,218 34,920
5,026,438 4,976,760 4,768,650 208,110
4,481,963 5,397,581 4,437,079 960,502
248,974 250,555 233,448 17,107
25,279,149 25,412,669 25,352,632 60,037
950,000 1,149,375 1,149,375 -
437,184 437,184 409,899 27,285
100,000 100,000 58,504 41,496
1,861,225 361,225 - 361,225
5,550,761 5,589,591 5,503,956 85,635
8,610,165 8,610,165 8,610,164 1
7,446,535 7,446,535 7,445,108 1427
304,537,486 305,732,225 299,151,230 6,580,995
(13,359,964) (14,315,873) (4,721,222) 9,594,631
8,607,806 9,213,287 9,107,375 (105,912)
y y 131,379 131,379
. s 35,048 35,048
(1,170,240) (5,749,676) (5.749,676) -
7,437,566 3,463,611 3,524,126 60,515
(5,922,398) (10,852,262) (1,197,096) 9,655,166
22,932,920 22,932,920 22,932,920
$ 17,010,522 $ 12,080,658 S 21,735,824 § 9,655,166




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Community preservation surcharges.............oonin
Intergovernmental ..........oooiiiiiiiii i
Investment COMEe. ... . eeiiit vt

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Planning & development.......cooveiiviieiieiieiie i e,
Public building maintenance & operations
Culture and recreation:

LADLATIES . vttt ettt e e e e

Parks & recreation. iumsie sl  Fauivaii Sk . ca . swveeblin e dh o

Newton History museum. ......ovuiviiiiiiiiniie s

Reserve fund
Debt service:

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiii

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers OUL....ovveniennennenn e oo bR st N s e 2 A AN AT S
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE.......ooiviiiiiev e
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.......coocivviiiiiiinn

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR ...cciiiiiiiiie e

See notes to basic financial statements.

Variance
Actual to Final Budget
Original Final Budgetary Positive/
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
2,411,094 2,303,097 S 2,444,331 141,234
517,766 625,763 625,763 -
- - 23,768 23,768
2,928,860 2,928,860 3,093,862 165,002
1,636,605 1,693,685 1,002,280 691,405
672,921 656,693 140,508 516,185
12,168 4,308 3,087 1,221
22,929 11,503 11,503 -
2,958,070 2,958,070 1,833,964 1,124,106
1,926,704 2,043,138 - 2,043,138
755,000 755,000 755,000 -
102,907 102,907 102,906 1
8,087,304 8,225,304 3,849,248 4,376,056
(5,158,444) (5,296,444) (755,386) 4,541,058
. : (1,922 (1,922)
(5,158,444) (5,296,444) (757,308) 4,539,136
9,389,472 9,389,472 9,389,472
4,231,028 S 4,093,028 S 8,632,164 S 4,539,136
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Govemmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Water Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........cocovii e ST S 7,051,158 S 4,840,299 11,891,457
Restricted cash and cash equivalents,...vvewiuienieiiveiimiei. 2,861,041 3,973,903 6,834,944 19,125,219
Restricted MVESEMENES. 1 v meiiwsiimsrmsseaanssssanasoesanaensmmasisrmen . 8,501,197
Interest and dividends. -, cevvveer i NN SRR R 28,625
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollecables:
Charges for service. 8,475,823 5,838,192 14,314,015
Utility Hens......ccooeeveeennnann 192,225 125,260 317,485 -
Departmental and other. casten - - - 40,227
Intergovernmental........oovveiuiaiminiinionas 226,963 226,963 18,239
Working capital depositiziziasmii it e saaied s srissas i - - 377432
TOtAl CUITENE ASSELS, o1 vevrasesrseeanrnrmnnrensessenssmssanseeras . 18,807,210 14,777,654 33,584,864 28,090,939
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Special ASSESSTICIILS. . iivu.ihiriusiiorisimiiiatir i tisberassniennss 47,900 - 47,900
Intergovernmental. . cooue vier i iiiecosiimnns s s eaa reeas 1,838,196 - 1,838,196
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable s veiar. svsisisisnssavaarssisrassaivinn i 26,245 262,885 289,130
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 33,680,896 42,346,294 76,027,190
Total NONCULTEINT ASSELS. . 1vvrvameivinrneinsnsmmnsmnssnesmsmassnns 35,593,237 42,609,179 78,202,416
Total assets............. 54,400,447 57,386,833 111,787,280 28,090,939
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable....... v 108,796 368,417 477,213 287,034
Accrued liabilities. ...oovieuiiiins 26,647 386,984 413,631 1,031,890
Accrued payroll 21,117 23,807 44,924 11,220
Other liabilities. ........ .. - K aipy 4,634 44,565 49,199 1,449,618
Liabilities payable from restricted asSets. .....oiuiimuiiriianiiiniasiians 158,904 293,809 452,713
Accrued interest.....coiuiiiiiinn o 126,600 54,740 181,340 -
Accrued health claims payable..... 3,674,387
Workers' compensation claims.. - - - 1,309,506
Compensated absences 15,266 12,332 27,598
Long-term bonds and notes payable.. ... ....ooiiiniiiaiiinniviinina 1,353,219 3,104,836 4,458,055
Total current HAbIHEES., ..« vveoevmvyeniioisisisiemeiemrerneeenins 1,815,183 4,289,490 6,104,673 7,763,655
Noncurrent liabilities:
Workers' compensation claims. ..., cive s, . . . 5,179,689
Compensated absences. .. 137,396 110,984 248,380
Net OPEB obligation. ... = 1,646,392 1,899,002 3,545,394
Long-term bonds and notes payable.....evveiiiiiniiiiiiinan . 9,793,759 15,074,203 24,867,962 -
Total noncurrent liabiliies. ........icveeuriiiiiinioinn. 11,577,547 17,084,189 28,661,736 5,179,689
Total BabiiHes. . vovrxeerineeisesivneiiamsnseessnmmmsaeons 13,392,730 21,373,679 34,766,409 12,943,344
FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.....ocuiiiiiiaiiiiiiiin 24,625,322 24,430,140 49,055,462 -
Restricted for:
Capital purposes........ 2,861,041 3,973,903 6,834,944 -
Unrestricted 13,521,354 7,609,111 21,130,465 15,147,595
Total net assetsiioiiidleihoaid Wi i s N ARl Sl § 41,007,717 S 36,013,154 77,020,871 15,147,595

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Govemmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Water Taoral Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services. ..o FdanTan S 28,569,871 S 19,695,479 S 48,265,350 S -
Special ASSESSMENS. 1 ovuvnnnny rrumrarsmnrmnsarsarsanra s res s ns s s arra s rnnas 8,420 - 8,420 -
Employer contributions........... o F O —— . - - 41,927,793
Plan member contribuions. - iuiezueiieieeieiiimmrierieramieia s - - - 10,125,077
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES........oooiiiivin 28,578,291 19,695,479 48,273,770 52,052,870
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and ernployee benefits.. . .ouuveeiisiiosininiiiiiiciininiiiena 2,899,697 3,146,699 6,046,396 .
Other operating eXpenses........ooo.viiervivieiinonnns x 780,392 757,089 1,537,481 3,261,925
MWRA assessment....... 5 19,546,086 8,939,785 28,485,871 -
Workers' COMPENSAHON. .\ .ivvviiiiiiiiiiii i s e . 194,884 233,016 427,900 -
Self insurance claims..... - - - 46,271,212
Depreciation........... ST 1,084,407 1,546,813 2,631,220
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES. ..o iiiiiiiiiianiiamiiiiiiiaaianes 24,505,466 14,623,402 39,128,868 49,533,137
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). ... +oveiviiiinaeiieisieseieiiseone oo 4,072,825 5,072,077 9,144,902 2,519,733
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INtergO Ve rnm e talyus sws s i sswes svineeas 575w s3 S A a3 N TS A T WA 759,856 317,607 1,077,463 -
Investment inCOME...v.vuviieivaian 5,767 12,866 18,633 16,356
Premium from issuance of bonds. . i 40,212 - 40,212 -
Interest €Xpense. .. ocumrevnssresnsans . (447,992) (553,397) (1,001,389) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets. ... ....oiviievviiiiesenrvnienn, « (8,986) (8,986) .
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET....... 357,843 (231,910) 125,933 16,356
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS. «..1 v vsersesanansssismenes 4,430,668 4,840,167 9,270,835 2,536,089
TRANSFERS
Transfers in....ooovvvciiiiciianiicne . RYRTAVCTa O P PO T T T T 808,330 - 808,330 -
Transfers Oubi G duivaidil sl iat il e (679,518) (1,558,330) (2,237,848) (398,723)
TOTAL TRANSEERS  c4 i ttuiaiiiiiiiiiiiiiine s 128,812 (1,558,330) (1,429,518) (398,723)
CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS.c...00evveieriieeesiiveeeeiseesieensinnn oo 4,559,480 3281,837 7,841,317 2,137,366
FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.....cccocoiiiiiiiiinnns 36,448,237 32,731,317 69,179,554 13,010,229
FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR . ....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiiiiiinins S 41,007,717 $ 36,013,154 S 77,020,871 S 15,147,595

See notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Busmess - Enterpose Fund Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Watee Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users. ........ooiiiiiii i .. S 28,441,128 S 19,767,117  $ 48,208,545 § 10,125,077
Receipts from interfund services provnded . 41,869,327
Payments to vendors/providers S T (21,456,473) (11,311,822) (32,768,295) (49,008,603)
Payments 10 CMPIOYeES,. cuasitinaiiotsis iuns-axvavaiesiianesnabia (aaiesbamiiiniaiinsie iisaassiavante (1,778,448) (1,84,742) (3,623,190) -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..o viiimiiiniiiiiimiiniicieeiannnie 5,206,207 6,610,833 11,817,060 2,985,801
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in. 808,330 - 808,330
Transfers out, . .......ooue (679,518) (1,558,330) (2,237,848} (398,723)
NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.... 128,812 (1,558,330) (1,429,518) (398,723)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes, ...c..owviiiimmirniiiiin p— 2,852,300 1,360,200 4,212,500
Premium from the issuance of bonds and notes... 40,212 40,212
Capital contributions. ... 470,759 470,759
Acquisition and construction of capital assets, .. (1,553,361) (3,171,548) (4,724,909)
Principal payments on boads and notes.. (1,153,317) (3,227,418) (4,380,735)
Tnterest eXPenSC. vmrrimntiumivrririnianiinsiis R EEERE e Creen ATy (156,382) {238,991) (395,373)
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......... 500,211 (5,277,757 (4,771,546)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales of investments. N - 453,599
Investment income. .. 5,767 12,866 18,633 19,208
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .iiiiicimiimimieiiimieiimmeemiaiisniioe 5,767 12,866 18,633 472,807
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS......ccuciimmmnsrmmmrmiimnnnes 5,840,997 (212,368) 5,628,629 3,059,885
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Includes$1,015,966 and $6,305,691 reported as restricted in the sewer and water
enterprise funds, 1eSPECHVElY). couivriumniiiiiamniin st s e . 4,071,202 9,026,570 13,097,772 16,065,334
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $2,861,041, $3,973,903 and $19,125,219 reported as restricted 1n the sewer,
water enterprise funds and internal service funds respectively). ..ovvuruiierrins i s 9,912,199 $ 8,814,202 § 18,726,401 $ 19,125,219
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating inCOMe (JOSS)11rvrvemrrmmransrmrrranrsrerrmrssssreamsassrererremnsarsresrrsarerens 9 4,072,825 § 5,072,077 $ 9,144,902 $ 2,519,733
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities not requiring current cash flows:
D DIECIAtO N s suswininaiasd wan ok 55 So o e Su wws w6 AuaiHN Eamn s G5 b N B OAN SHR i 1,084,407 1,546,813 2,631,220
Net OPEB obligation. TP TS TR Ve PR TT AN T O P SRR TN 336,551 416,586 753,137
Changes in assets and liabilities requiring current cash flo
Utility liens. 80,068 71,149 151,217
Water fees, - 789 789
Sewer fees.. e (251,679) . (251,679)
Special assessments, . 34,448 34,448 :
Departmental and OthE( - (40,227)
Intergovemmental.... (18,239)
Working capital depos . . - - - 122,987
Warrants payable...... . . 2,958 (93,259) (90,301) 266,942
Accrued liabilities. ... (122,372) (486,359} (608,731) 910,327
Accrued payroll,,. (12,481) (8,780) (21,261) (6,493)
Other liabilities... 4,634 44,565 49,199 106,948
Liabilities payable &om restncted assets (7,039) 71,903 64,864 .
Accrued health claims payable. - (348,462)
Workers' compensation........ - - (527,715)
Accrued compensated absences...... (16,113) (24,631) (40,744) -
Total AdJUSTMEIIES s tanassasiaissormiesssiassasnsesisssomsanssnn et sasasassnsssssnsessnin 1,133,382 1,538,776 2,672,158 466,068
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (i i aiuivinitinmisiiorisssimeanesiviassinsisenion: 3 5206207 § 6,610,853 $ 11,817,060 §$ 2,985,801
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental debt subsidies (MWPAT and MWRA) . ...coicirmmimeriinniiinicnecocnneneeas $ 518,860 $ 317,607 $ 836,467 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Pension Private
Trust Fund Purpose Agency

ASSETS (As of 12/31/11) Trust Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents.............ocooo e S 6,712,517 § 1,907,619 1,959,284
Investments. ......ooeoii i - 7,173,923 .

BUQUIBCS . v e et e e 123,577,397 ;

Mutual bond funds. ... 47,609,455 -

Real 8tate. . oot 30,453,055 -

Alternative. ... 24,452,181 -
Intetest and dividends. ... ..ccooooiiiiiii i - 19,060
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Departtaental and othet....coimimniiami i, - = 18,452

Intergovemnmentali, oo imiiiine s s se i s s S e e 536,859 - -

LORORs asivies sarwmvan s siaiimsamews A R R R R - 19,663 -
Prepaid eXpenses. ... ouioeeiiiii i 11,272 -

Total asSets. ..o 233,352,736 9,120,265 1,977,736

LIABILITIES

Warrants payable...............oo 9,522 1,000 1,054

Payroll withholdings. ... - 2 819,485

Other labilities. ... oo - 1,157,197

Due to the general fund.................. - 17,601 -

Total HabIliHES. . 1vuvueiiniesssieansvesiiin e s s ssas e rarne 9,522 18,601 1,977,736

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes................. S 233343214 3% 9,101,664 -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FFOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS

Contributions:

Net investment income:
Net appreciation/(depteciation) in fair value of investments
Interest........ooooiiiii i,

Total investment income (loss)

Less investment expense
Net investment income (loss)
Intergovernmental
Transfers from other systems

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Retirement benefits
Refunds of contributions & transfers to other systems
Administration expense
Educational scholarships & awards

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

See notes to basic financial statements.

Pension Private
Trust Fund Purpose
(As of 12/31/11) Trust Funds

16,307,878

7,730,262 <

: 88,431

19,437 -

24,057,577 88,431

(5,727,152) -

7,471,170 317,760

1,744,018 317,760

(1,219,337)

524,681 317,760
1,055,702
764,205

26,402,165 406,191
31,870,521

2,306,155 -

254,761 31,989

e 351,464

34,431,437 383,453

(8,029,272) 22,738

241,372,486 9,078,926

233343214 § 9,101,664




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Component Units
Newton Newton Newton
Commonwealth Community Community
Foundation, Inc. Development Farm, Inc.
(As of 12/31/11) Authonty (As of 12/31/11) Total
ASSETS
Curtrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......... 546,438 - S 143,861 S 690,299
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.......ooveviiieieriiiiicenanieenans 140,162 3,494 143,656
Interest and dividends.......ovvviiiiiienicaianiie et 442,968 . 442,968
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Departmental and other............ooviiiiiiiiiiiii i 2,672 - 9,169 11,841
LOA0S - et e - 84,933 - 84,933
(@10 S O E . 457 457
Prepaid eXpenses. ......oivuiiiiiniiii e e 1,980 2,098 4,078
INVENTOLY e i v rerererenvanrionenriiereirenen s siiens o iR AT - 782 782
Total CUITENE ASSELS. 1\ vvutvererererieererreenraseesinsnsainsanses 551,090 668,063 159,861 1,379,014
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Loans. . sai@afumiuminit . o il v aadei@sldlilie  Ti e b B 4,114,515 - 4,114,515
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation...............oo.eis 1,928,106 - 233,269 2,161,375
Total NONCULTENE ASSELS - vemvnsmeaenreretereerneneneiaananen 1,928,106 4,114,515 233,269 6,275,890
TOtal ASSEES. . uurniuniasinininnsnnananineniaaireneenns 2,479,196 4,782,578 393,130 7,654,904
LIABILITIES
Current habilices:
Warrants payable...........ooiii 102,997 11,660 14,617 129,274
Accrued liabilities - 104,083 104,083
Total liabilities.......c.cooiviririiiiiiiiirein e 102,997 115,743 14,617 233,357
FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.................cooiinin 1,928,106 - 233,269 2,161,375
Unrestricted. oo oo e e 448 093 4,666,835 145,244 5,260,172
Total DEt asSEts. .. viv i e e 2,376,199 4,666,835 S 378513 S 7,421,547

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Charges for services
Contributions.......

OPERATING EXPE

OPERATING REVENUES

NSES

Salaries, wages and employee benefits...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiin
Other Operating eXpenSes. .. .uu . vueieriiisireiesiastiensinareaeriaar

Depreciaionaistsie e s Sieail L i il lia i dbnddiilids e s

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.....icciiiiirniinnieniiinnns

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....vviviiniiinniniecsiansiaiienie e

Intergovernmental. .
Investment income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......

CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS.......coooiiiiiii i

FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........covaiisanieriananes

FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.........ooviiiiiiiiiiicnneanen

See notes to basic financial statements.

Coruponent Units

Newton Newton Newton
Commonwealth Community Community
Foundation, Inc. Development IFarm, Inc.
(As of 12/31/11) Authority (As ol 12/31/11) Total
269,488 S - 108,528 S 378,016
- - 47,707 47,707
53,828 - 53,828
269,488 53,828 156,235 479,551
32,040 - 128,821 160,861
50,000 122192 - 172,192
147,434 - 18,923 166,357
229,474 122,192 147,744 499,410
40,014 (68,364) 8,491 (19,859)
- 74,625 . 74,625
4,496 8 1,019 5,523
4,496 74,633 1,019 80,148
44510 6,269 9,510 60,289
2,331,689 4,660,566 369,003 7,361,258
2376,199 S 4,666,835 378,513 S 7,421,547
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Newton, Massachusetts (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Mayor, who serves a four -
year term, and a twenty-four member Board of Aldermen, who setve two-year terms. Sixteen of the membets of the Board of
Aldermen are elected at large, and eight members are elected from one of the City’s eight wards. The current city charter was
approved by the voters of the City on November 2, 1971, and became effective January 1972.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting ptinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP), applicable to governmental units. ‘The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the standard setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting.

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City and its component units, legally sepatrate organizations
for which the City 1s financially accountable or integrated.

Blended Component Unit
The following component unit provides setvices or benefits exclusively ot almost exclusively to the City or its employees and
is therefore blended and reported as if it were part of the City:

The Newton Contributory Retirement System (the System) was established to provide retirement benefits to City employees,
Newton Housing Authority employees and their respective beneficiaties. The System is governed by a five member board
comprised of the City Comptroller (ex officio); an appointee of the Mayor; two members elected by the active and retired
members of the System, and one member appointed by the other four members. The System is presented using the accrual
basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary funds financial statements.

The System does not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available unaudited financial
report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Public Employee Retirement
Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by contacting the System located at 1000 Commonwealth Avenue,
Newton, Massachusetts 02459,

Discretely Presented Component Units

The following component units are discretely presented in the government-wide financial statements because of the nature
and/or significance of their relationships with the City. Each of the component units desctibed below are considered major
component units.

The Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was established for the management of the Newton Commonwealth
Golf Course on the site formerly known as the Chestnut Hill Country Club. The Foundation is governed by a fifteen member
board appointed by the Mayor and are subject to confirmation approval by a majority of the Board of Aldermen. The annual
operating budget of the Foundation is subject to approval by the Mayor. Complete audited financial statements may be
obtained by writing to the Foundation Chairman at Newton City Hall, 1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton, Massachusetts
02469.

The Newton Community Development Anthority (the Authority) was established in 1975 pursuant to Chapter 705 of the Massachusetts
General Laws to develop housing programs for low and moderate income families, the eldetly and handicapped residents of
the City. The Authority is governed solely by the City’s Director of Planning and Development, who is appointed by the
Mayor, subject to confirmation approval by a majority of the Board of Aldermen. The Authortity does not issue a separate
audited financial statement.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The Newton Community Farm, Inc., a non-profit organization, was established in 2005 to presetve the histotic Angino Farm,
including its open space, buildings, and farm structutes. The farm, building, and structures ate owned by the City of Newton
and licensed out to the organization. Complete audited financial statements may be obtained by wtiting to the Newton
Community Farm’s administrative office located at 303 Nahanton Street, Newton, Massachusetts 02459.

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government (the City) including its blended component units. These statements include the financial activities of the
overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a compatison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-
type activities of the City and for each major function/service program of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated with a program and, therefore, ate cleatly identifiable to a patticular service. Vehicle
maintenance; retirement benefits; workers’ compensation; propetty and liability insurance; health insurance subsidies; claims
and judgments; other; and state assessments and charges costs have been allocated to major functions/ptrograms in order to
present a more accurate and complete picture of the cost of City setvices. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the major programs and (b) gtants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requitements of a particular program. Revenues that ate not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component unit. Separate statements for each fund categoty — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and entetptise funds, with each displayed in a
separate column in their respective governmental fund and proptietary fund financial statements. All remaining governmental
funds are aggregated and reported in a separate column.

Internal service funds of the City (which provide services primarily to other funds of the City) ate presented, in summary
form, as part of the proprietary funds financial statements. Since the principal users of the intetnal services are the City’s
governmental activities, financial statements of the internal service funds are presented in the governmental activities column
when presented at the government-wide level. The costs of these setvices ate allocated to the appropriate function/program
(general government, public safety, education, public works, health and human setvices, and cultute and recteation) in the
statement of activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonopetating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from exchange transactions (charges for services) associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition, such as intergovernmental subsidies and investment eatnings, are repotted as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The fund is used to account for and report all financial resoutces not accounted for and reported in another

fund.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Community Preservation Fund: This fund accounts for the 1% local property tax surcharge that the voters of the City
approved in November of 2001 for open space, historic resource and affordable housing purposes. The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts currently matches (in the subsequent fiscal year) local surcharge revenue on a percentage basis that can change
annually.

The Board of Aldermen has appropriation authority over all community presetvation funds; however, all appropriation
recommendations must originate with the nine member community preservation committee.

High School Improvements Fund: This fund accounts for major improvements that are being made to the City’s two high
schools, and are being financed by the sale of long term debt and state grants.

The non-major governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are aggregated
and presented in the non-major governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial statements. The following
desctibes the general use of these fund types:

Special revense funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue soutces that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt setvice or capital projects.

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resoutces that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital
projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in
trust for individuals, private organizations, ot other governments.

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resoutces that ate restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not
ptincipal, may be used for purposes that support the government’s programs and benefit the government or its citizenry.

The City also reports the following major enterprise funds:

Sewet Fund: This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sanitary sewer collection and disposal system.
The City is charged an annual assessment by the Massachusetts Watet Resoutrces Authority (MWRA) for disposal of sanitary
sewerage.

Water Fund: This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water supply and distribution system.
The City is charged an annual assessment by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) for water supply.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds account for group health, wotkers” compensation, building and general liability insurance
protection to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

Pension Trust Fund: This fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources for defined
benefit pension benefit payments to qualified employees and retitees and theit sutvivors. This fund is excluded from the
City’s government-wide financial statements.

Private Purpose Trust Funds: These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for the benefit of persons and
otganizations othet than the City. Since such funds can not be used fot putposes of providing City services, they are excluded
from the City’s government-wide financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Agency Fund: This fund is used to account for monies held on behalf of parties other than the City, such as state and federal
agencies; independent not-for-profit organizations for which the City collects ptivate donations; the Metro Fire District; and
public school student activities. This fund is excluded from the City’s government-wide financial statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide, proptietary, and fiduciary

funds financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time that liabilities are incurted, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (ot teceives) value without directly receiving
(or giving) equal value in exchange, include property, motor excise and hotel room occupancy taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Derived tax revenues, such as hotel room occupancy taxes, that result from assessments imposed by the City on exchange
transactions are recognized when the underlying exchange occurs. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requitements have been satisfied.

For the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements, all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30, 1989, are applied, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncemments.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements: Governmental funds are teported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Undet this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The City considers revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available when they are
collectible within the current pertod or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the cuttent period. For this purpose, the
City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes, motor excise taxes,
charges for service, investment income, and in lieu of tax payments are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Revenue from
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized when all eligibility tequirements have been satisfied and they ate measurable
and available.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long term
debt, compensated absences, landfill post closure monitoring costs (and other environmental liabilities) and claims and
judgments, which are recognized as expenditures only to the extent that they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long term debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are reported as other financing sources.

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are cattied at fair value.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Permanent fund cash and cash equivalents and investments and cash and cash equivalents associated with certain development
and water and sewer utility deposits are classified as restricted. Other assets are classified as restricted when their use is
testricted by third-party covenants.

Receivables

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful collections. Outstanding personal property
taxes, motor excise taxes and parking violations that are three or more yeats old have been classified as uncollectible for
financial reporting purposes.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Based upon an analysis of water and sewer receivable activity over the past three years, 6.2% and 5.7% of outstanding water
and sewer user chatges receivable have been assigned to an allowance for doubtful collections. Real estate taxes receivable are
secured by tax liens, and therefore are considered 100% collectible. Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100%
collectible.

Property taxes: The City is responsible for assessment and collection of all propetty taxes. The Boatd of Assessors determine
the estimated fair value of all real and personal property, subject to the propetty tax, each January 1. Taxes are then levied on
each property based upon the budget that is adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldetmen net of the amount of state aid and
other revenues. Property taxes are due in quartetly installments - August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1, and subject
to penalties and 14% interest if not paid by the due date. Taxes due on August 1 and November 1 are estimated based upon
the prior year tax bill since the tax rate is generally not finalized until late November or December. The February 1 and May 1
tax bills are adjusted to reflect the actual tax levy. Itis the City’s policy to petfect tax liens on delinquent properties within
one year of the date that the tax is levied.

Motor vehicle excise taxes: Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the City and are
recotded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is tesponsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000
of value.

Water and Sewer User Charges: User fees are billed quartetly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties
and interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed in December of every year
and are included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Water and sewet chatges and related liens are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. Unbilled amounts are estimated based upon actual billing amounts subsequent to
year-end.

Intergovernmental: Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes ate applied for and received annually.
For non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. For
expenditure driven grants, receivables are recognized when the qualifying expenditures ate incutred and all other eligibility
requirements have been met.

Inventoties
The amount of inventories is not material to the government-wide and fund financial statements of the City and therefore is

recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase.

Capital Assets
Purchased ot constructed capital assets are recorded at cost ot estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at

their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repaits that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend the assets’ useful
lives ate not capitalized.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $15,000 ot more and an estimated useful life of
mote than a single year. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 7-20 years
Buildings and improvements 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years
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Inter-fund Transactions

Inter-fund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbutsements, or transfers. Loans are reported as
receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination in the government-wide statements. Services provided,
deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the approptiate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other intet-fund transactions are treated as transfers and are reported “gross” in the fund financial statements. Transfers
between governmental funds are eliminated in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements, while transfers
between governmental and proptietary funds are reported “net”.

Defetred Revenue

Deferred revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents receivables that do not meet the available
ctiterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Defetred revenue, if appropriate, is recognized as revenue in the convetsion to the government-wide (full accrual) financial
statements.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

Government — wide financial statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (INet Assets) — Net assets are reported as restricted
when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Net assets have
been reported as restricted for the following purposes:

e Capital purposes represent unspent proceeds of bonds, notes and grants that are restricted for specific capital
projects.

e Community preservation activities represent amounts restricted by state statute for open space; historic
preservation, and affordable housing under the Community Presetvation program.

e Education activities represent amounts received from the U.S. Depattment of Education, the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts” Department of Education, and various private donots for public education services.

¢  Other postemployment benefits represent amounts restricted for othet postemployment benefits.
e Debt service tepresents amounts accumulated from Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for future
payment of long-term debt setvice costs associated with school construction. This amount will be amortized over

the next 15 fiscal years.

¢ DPerpetual funds — expendable represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

e Perpetual funds — non-expendable represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be
expended.

e  Other specific purposes represent restrictions placed on assets by other outside parties.
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Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances)
The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendable — tepresents amounts that cannot be spent either because they ate in nonspendable form (i.e., prepaid amounts)
ot because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e., principal of permanent fund).

Restricred — represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantots, conttibutors, ot the laws or regulations
of other governments.

Committed — represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal action of the Board of
Alderman, which is the highest level of decision-making authotity for the City. Committed amounts may be established,
modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by the Board of Alderman.

Assigned — represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as testricted or committed but are intended to be
used fot specific purposes. Under the City’s structure, only authotized assighments for non-contractual encumbrances can be
made by individual department heads.

Unassigned — represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assignhed fund balance amounts.

In citcumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund balance
classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Encumbrance amounts have been assigned for specific putposes for which resources already have been allocated.

Long term debt

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements — Long term debt is reported as a liability in the government wide and
proprietary fund statements of net assets. Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or discount.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements — The face amount of governmental funds long term debt is teported as other financing
sources in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Bond premiums are repotted as other financing sources and bond
discounts ate reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether ot not withheld from the actual bond proceeds, are
reported as General Government (financial administration) expenditutes.

Investment Income
Excluding the permanent funds, investment income detived from major and non-major governmental funds is legally assigned
to the General Fund, unless otherwise directed by legal or contractual provisions.

Investment income from proprietary funds is retained in the funds.

Compensated Absences

Embployees are granted vacation leave, special leave (sick, religious obsetvance, petsonal leave), and enhanced longevity
benefits based upon collective bargaining agreements and city ordinance. These benefit costs are accrued when earned in the
government-wide and proprtietaty fund financial statements. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only if the
benefit had been earned at June 30 as a result of a retitement, resignation, ot termination, and the benefit is expected to be
paid immediately after the statt of the new fiscal year. Vacation pay is classified as a cutrent liability, while special leave and
school enhanced longevity benefits are classified as non-current liabilities.
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Post Retitement Benefits
In addition to providing pension benefits and as mote fully desctibed in Note 12, the City provides health and life insurance
coverage for current and future retirees and their spouses.

Use of Estimates

The ptepatation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requites management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the basic financial statements and the repotted amounts of the revenues and expenditures/expenses during the fiscal
yeat. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

Total Column

Government-wide financial statements — The total column presented in the government-wide financial statements represents
consolidated financial information.

Fund financial statements — The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A. Budget Information

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts tequite that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen adopt a
balanced budget each fiscal year. The City Chatter requires that the Mayor submit a recommended budget to the Board of
Aldermen and that the Boatd adopt the budget, with ot without amendments, within forty-five days following the day the
budget is received. The Board of Aldermen may approve, reduce or reject any budget recommendation of the Mayor by
majority vote, but may not increase an appropriation without the concuttence of the Mayor. Annual appropriations are
recommended and approved for the General Fund and Community Preservation Fund for personal services (salaries and
wages), expenses (supplies and services), debt service and capital outlay/improvements, and fringe benefits. A single bottom-
line appropriation budget is recommended and voted for the Newton Public Schools.

Amendments to the otiginal budget; transfers between municipal departments; and transfers between departmental
apptroptiation units requite prior approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, and in the case of a transfer from one
department to another, the approval of the head of the depattment from which funds are being transferred is also required.

The Comptrollet’s Office has responsibility for making certain that the budget is executed in accordance with the plan
approved by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, and monthly appropriation status reports are provided to the Mayor and
Board. Budgetary control is exercised on a line item basis for all municipal departments and transfers between line items
within depattmental appropriation units requite advance approval of the Comptroller. Encumbrance accounting is used as an
additional control measure. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities since goods and services have not been received.

Although unobligated annual appropriation balances generally lapse at year-end, it is the City’s policy to continue certain
approptiations into the following year under certain limited circumstances. These are limited to amounts voted as special
(multi-year) appropriations (generally capital outlay and improvements), capital maintenance funds, property tax revaluation
program apptopriations and funds included in the annual budget for settlement of collective bargaining contracts that have not
been settled at year-end.
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An annual budget is adopted in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original fiscal year 2012 General Fund
and Community Preservation Fund budgets authotized $305,707,726 and $8,087,304 (including ptiot year encumbrances and
continuing appropriations), respectively, in appropriations and othetr amounts to be raised. During the fiscal year, the Mayor
and Board of Aldermen authorized supplemental appropriations for the General Fund and Community Preservation Fund
totaling $5,774,175, and $138,000, for total budgets of $311,481,901 and $8,225,304, respectively.

Total General Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds totaled $304,900,906, and $4,636,701 in appropriation balances
were carried forward into fiscal year 2013 to support encumbrances and continuing approptiations.

Total Community Preservation Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds were $3,851,170, and $2,296,493 in
appropriation balances were carried forward into fiscal year 2013 to support encumbrances and continuing appropriations.

B. Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Accounting principles followed for purposes of preparing the financial statements on a budgetary basis differ from those used

to present financial statements in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of the budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for
the General Fund and Community Preservation I'und for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are presented below:

General Fund
Other Financing
Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses)
Budgetary basis as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual................o $ 294,430,008 $ 299,151,230 § 3,524,126
Reclassifications
Activity of stabilization fund recorded in the general fund
for GAAP PUIPOSES....uvvviiriiiiiiiii e 445,159 - (1,670,300)
Activity of other postemployment benefits fund recorded
in the general fund for GAAP purposes..............ccouenne. 677 - 175,000
Adjustments
Net change in recording 60-day receipts.............coevnnn.. (620,235) - -
Net change in recording tax refunds payable.................... 1,062,720 - -
To recotd activity for landfill closure subsidy................... 69,629 69,629 -
To tecord activity of MTRS on-behalf payments............... 30,702,851 30,702,851 -
Net change in recording other revenues...............c..o.e.... (1,106,756) = -
Net change in recording other expenditures..........cocevinnn, . (361,598) -
GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances...................... $ 324,984,053 § 329,562,112 § 2,028,826
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Community
Presetvation
Fund
Revenues
Budgetary basis as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual..................o $ 3,093,862
Adjustment
Net change in recording 60-day receipts............ccoovinnnn. (16,426)
GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances...................... $ 3,077,436

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments
A. Summary of Deposit and Investment Balances

City (Excluding the Pension Trust Fund)

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authotize the City to invest temporatily idle cash in bank term deposits and
certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government, with maturities of one year or
less; U.S. treasuty ot agency tepurchase agreements with matutities of not more than 90 days; money market accounts; and the
state treasurer’s investment pool — the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and opetates in accordance with applicable state laws and
tegulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair
value of pool shares.

"The municipal finance laws allow the City to invest private purpose trust funds in securities other than mortgages or collateral
loans that are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value.
The City maintains a cash and short term investment pool that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and

investments. The deposits and investments of ptivate purpose and pensions trust funds are held separately from other City
funds.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be recovered. The

City does not have a policy for custodial ctedit tisk of deposits. As of June 30, 2012, $68,414,478 of the City’s bank balance of
$94,158,675 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

43



Investments Summary

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The City’s investments at June 30, 2012 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type, with debt

securities presented by maturity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasuries. . ....oovvevannanen. . 3,439,349 § 867,124 § 1,711,640 $ - $ 860,585
U.S. Agencies.........ocoovinnnnn. 750,973 25,090 725,883 - -
Corporate bonds.....ccovvienennnn. 211,829 95,595 90,419 25,815 -
Money market mutual funds....... 665,401 665,401 - - -
Mutual bond funds................. 1,748,055 1,748,055 - - -
Certificate of deposits.............. 196,267 112,019 84,248 - -
External investment pools......... 36,652,427 36,652,427 - - -

‘Total debt securities............... 43,664,301 § 40,165,711 § 2,612,190 $ 25815 § 860,585
Other Investments:
Equity securities.................... 9,747,876
Equity mutual funds................ 261,080
Real estate investments............. 550,863

Total other investments.......... 10,559,819
Total investments................... 54,224,120

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in intetest rates of debt secutities will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The City does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.
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Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that ate in the possession of an outside party. The City does not
have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of June 30, 2012, $7,856,674 of the City’s investments of $54,224,120
wete uninsured, not registered in the name of the City and exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Held by
Fair Held by Counterparty's

Investment Type Value Counterparty Trust or Agent
U.S. Treasuties.....ooovverneeinnnnnn.. $ 430,092 § 430,092
U.S. Agenicies.....ooeiviiviiiinnnn e, 208,945 - 208,945
Corporate bonds...................... 211,829 - 211,829
Money market mutual funds......... 627,142 627,142 -
Mutual bond funds.................... 1,188,025 - 1,188,025
Equity secutities..........ooooviiinii 4,182,431 4,182,431
Equity mutual funds.................. 261,080 - 261,080
Certificates of deposit................. 196,267 196,267 -
Real estate investments............... 550,863 - 550,863
Total..oooiiiii $ 7,856,674 § 823409 $ 7,033,265

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuet or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its obligations. The
City does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30, 2012, the credit quality ratings of the City’s
investments in debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings*
Fair
Investment Type Value AA+ AA A BBB+ Unrated
Cotporate bonds.................. $ 211,829 § 16,527 $ 25,815 § 27,063 $§ 95596 § 46,829 § -
Money market mutual funds..... 665,401 - - - = - 665,401
Mutual bond funds............... 1,748,055 - - - - - 1,748,055
Cettificates of deposit............ 196,267 - - 196,267
External investment pools....... 36,652,427 - 3 - - - 36,652,427
Total..oovioi e, $ 39473979 $ 16,527 § 25815 $§ 27,063 § 95596 $ 46,829 $§ 39,262,150

* Per the rating scale of Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s (national credit rating organizations)
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Pension Trust Fund (The Systern)

Pension trust fund investments (more fully described in note 17), include a combination of public and ptivate real estate
limited partnership investments, which represents 13.1% of the Pension Fund’s total investments. The structute, tisk profile,
return potential and marketability of these investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments.
Determination of the value of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value can be
determined only by negotiation between the parties to a sales transaction. The City has determined the value of these
investments from investment advisors, based upon independent year end appraisals.

The Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT) meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance
with applicable state laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee and provides regulatory
oversight. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the City’s position in pool shates.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits 1s the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System’s deposits may not be recovered.
The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of December 31, 2011, the System is not exposed
to custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The System’s investments at December 31, 2011 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type, with
debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment

Maturities

(in Years)

Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1
Debt Secutities:

Money market mutual funds (PRIT)......... $ 200,025 § 200,025
Mutual bond funds (PRIT)................... 47,609,455 47,609,455
External investment pools.................... 6,512,492 6,512,492
Total debt secutities............oovveneennn.. 54,321,972 $ 54,321,972

Other Investments:

Equity mutual funds (PRIT).................. 123,577,397
Real estate investments (PRIT)............... 20,178,985
Real estate investments (non PRIT)......... 10,274,070
Alternative investments (PRIT).............. 24,452,181

Total other investments...................... 178,482,633
Total investments........c...coeeeeinneenn.... $ 232,804,605
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Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in intetest rates of debt secutities will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The System’s policy is that at least 15%, but no more than 30% of the portfolio must be invested in fixed
income securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the countetpatty, the System will not be able
to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The System does
not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. The custodial arrangements are reflective of the fact that System
assets are invested in pooled funds as opposed to individual securities. As of Decembet 31, 2011, the System’s investments
were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterpatty to a debt security will not fulfill its obligations.
The System’s policy is that bonds shall have a minimum quality rating of Baa ot equivalent as rated by one or mote recognized
bond rating services, however, 5% of the total investment portfolio may be invested in bonds with a minimum quality rating
of CCC as rated by Standard & Poor’s Corporate and Municipal Rating Setvice. As of December 31, 2011, the credit quality
ratings of the System’s debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings*
Fair
Investment Type Value Unrated
Money market mutual funds (PRIT)....... $ 200,025 $ 200,025
Debt security mutual funds (PRIT)........ 47,609,455 47,609,455
External investment pools.................. 6,512,492 6,512,492
Total. oo $ 54,321,972 § 54,321,972

* Per the rating scale of Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s (national credit rating organizations)
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Note 4 - Receivables

At June 30, 2012, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and non-majot governmental, internal service and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including applicable allowances for amounts estimated to be uncollectible, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes.......... $ 3,751,182 § (317,473) § 3,433,709
Real estate tax defetrals..............ociiiiil, 2,909,782 - 2,909,782
Tax Hens..c.oooiii i 7,643,146 - 7,643,146
Motor vehicle excise taxes.............covvuvnnnn. 1,997,747 (1,219,127) 778,620
Community preservation surcharges............. 31,244 - 31,244
Charges for ServiCes.......oovvvviiiiiiineiiiieans 799,815 - 799,815
Special assessments. ..o 595,768 - 595,768
Departmental and other................cooen. 8,064,995 (3,049,437) 5,015,558
Intergovernmental. ... 5,414,110 - 5,414,110
Loans......oooi 19,663 - 19,663

$ 31,227452 $ (4,586,037) $ 26,641,415

At June 30, 2012, receivables for the Enterprise Funds consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Charges for services........ooovieiiiniiiiiininn. $ 14,815,873 $§ (501,858) $ 14,314,015
Utdlity lenis......ooovoii 317,485 - 317,485
Special assessments.............ccooiiiiiiinn . 47,900 - 47,900
Intergovernmental............oooooii, 2,065,159 - 2,065,159

$ 17,246,417 $ (501,858) $ 16,744,559
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Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At June 30, 2012, the vatious components of defetrred revenue reported
in the governmental funds were:

Community Nonmajor
General Preservation Governmental
Fund Fund (Major) Funds Total
Receivable type:

Real estate and personal propetty taxes............. $ 2872817 § - 8 - § 2872817
Real estate tax deferrals.........ooooviein 2,909,782 = - 2,909,782
Tax Hens. oo 7,638,519 - 4,627 7,643,146
Motor vehicle eXCiSe tAXeS. v vvvvvierieriiiieneeinn.s. 44210 - - 44,210
Community preservation surcharges................ - 27,337 - 27,337
Charges for services..............ovi, 50,083 - 107,838 157,921
Special aSSeSSMEIES. . vttt 595,768 - - 595,768
Departmental and other................oo 4,879,005 - 7,940 4,886,945
Intergovernmental (state school consttuction). ... . 2,328 858 - - 2,328,858
Intergovernmental (other state and federal)........ 519,667 652,294 245,000 1,416,961

Total. vt $ 21,838,709 $ 679,631 § 365,405 § 22,883,745

The MSBA has approved a grant totaling $46,577,166 for the Newton Notth High School project. The grant amount
represents 60% of total eligible project costs, not to exceed the approved amount. The City has teceived $44,248,308 of such
assistance. An intergovernmental receivable and corresponding defetred revenue for the remaining balance of $2,328,858 has
been recorded in the General Fund’s financial statements for future debt service payments. The deferted revenue has been
recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements.
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Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Construction i progress. .............o....
Intangible assets.............coviiinn,
Sub-total ...

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements...............
Equipment and machinery.................
Road netwotk............cooooiii

Sub-total

Less: accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements...............
Equipment and machinery.................
Road network.. ...

Sub-total........cooiviiii

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Govermnmental capital assets, net.............

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
................... $ 22,226,126 § - - $ 22,226,126
9,360,188 3,062,759 (9,129,891) 3,293,056
- 1,270,000 - 1,270,000
31,586,314 4,332,759 (9,129,891) 26,789,182
411,548,173 17,437,806 - 428,985,979
58,686,527 3,294,240 (559,094) 61,421,673
64,677,419 3,323,398 - 68,000,817
534,912,119 24,055,444 (559,094) 558,408,469
(101,582,395) (9,310,850) . (110,893,245)
(39,961,233) (3,381,989) 499,526 (42,843,690)
(22,366,385) (1,570,350) - (23,936,735)
(163,910,013) (14,263,189) 499,526 (177,673,676)
371,002,106 9,792,255 (59,568) 380,734,793
................... 5 402,588,420 $ 14,125,014 § (9,189,459) $ 407,523,975
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Depreciation was charged to governmental fund programs in the Statement of Activities as follows:

Legislative & executive........oiviveiiiiiiiiii e S 3,585
BleCtOnS. .o ov et 25,861
Administrative SUPPOLt. .....ooiviiiiiii e 130,095
Public building maintenance and operations.................. 148,459
POHCE. ettt 480,675
S 693,422
Inspectional services... ..o 12,085
Other public safety..............ocooi 1,541
Education........ooovieiiii i 9,340,542
Streets and sidewalks.......ocoovviiiii i 2,177,300
Control of snow and iCe........oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiie i 13,250
Solid Waste. ... v 998
Public health............coo 3,600
MO SEIVICES. 1ottt ettt ettt e et e e e rnens 50,004
LaADtaties . oo s 946,664
Parks and recreation.........oooiiiiiiiiii 223417
Newton history museum...........oovviiiiiiiiiiininn e 11,691

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

S 14,263,189

Capital asset activity for individual enterprise funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Water system:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Construction M1 PLrOGLESS. . ..uuuiirirtiet e eaiaeanaannenen.
Sub-total ...

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements...............oooc
Equipment and machinery.............oooon
Water SYSTeITL ..ot ii i e
Sub-total. ...

Less: accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements...............oooiii
Equipment and machinery................ooo

Total capital assets being depreciated, net.....................

Water systemn capital assets, net............cocoeviiiiiiinnnnn.

Beginning Ending

Balances Increases Decreases Balances
258,540 $ . $ - $ 258,540
7,245,184 1,779 (7,242,618) 4,345
7,503,724 1,779 (7,242,618) 262,885
2,203,492 - . 2,203,492
4,431,632 8,081,441 (99,969) 13,313,104
40,638,641 1,430,946 2 42,069,587
47,273,765 10,412,387 (99,969) 57,586,183
(1,048,033) (33,162) - (1,081,195)
(3,417,188) (706,190) 90,983 (4,032,395)
(9,318,838) (807,461) - (10,126,299)
(13,784,059) (1,546,813) 90,983 (15,239,889)
33,489,706 8,865,574 (8,986) 42,346,294
40,993,430 § 8,867,353 % (7,251,604) § 42,609,179
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements..........
Equipment and machinery.............
Sanitary sewer Systefm...................

Sub-total...........oooo

Less: accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and imptrovements...........
Equipment and machinery.............
Sanitary sewer systemi........o.oveenn..

Sub-total..............

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Sewert system capital assets, net...........

Newton Commonwealth Foundation (Golf coutse):

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements.....................

Buildings and improvements

Equipment and machinery..............
Sub-total........cooeviii

Less: accumulated depreciation:

Land improvements......................

Buildings and improvements

Equipment and machinery..............
Sub-total...............o

Golf course, net

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
....................... $ 26,245 § = $ - S 26,245
........................ 1,867,659 - 1,867,659
....................... 2,404,649 139,756 2,544,405
....................... 46,973,305 1,413,605 48,386,910
....................... 51,245,613 1,553,361 52,798,974
....................... (664,016) (39,126) (703,142)
....................... (1,205,016) (147,471) (1,352,487)
....................... (16,164,639) (897,810) (17,062,449)
....................... (18,033,671) (1,084,407) (19,118,078)
..................... 33,211,942 468,954 33,680,896
...................... $ 33238187 468,954 $ - $ 33707141
Capital asset activity for individual component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
...................... 8 2,656,251 § 253,644 $ -8 2,909,895
....................... 69,481 . 69,481
...................... 61,281 1,559 62,840
...................... 2,787,013 255,203 3,042,216
..................... (874,802) (141,219) (1,016,021)
...................... (49,144) (1,943) (51,087)
...................... (42,730) (4,272) . (47,002)
...................... (966,676) (147,434) - (1,114,110
..................... $ 1,820,337 $ 107,769 $ - s 1,928,106
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Newton Community Farm:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment and machinery..................ooooL $ 301,862 $ 7,829 $ - $ 309,691
Less: accumnulated depreciation:
Equipment and machinery......................ooo (57,499) (18,923) - (76,422)
$
Newton community farm capital assets, net................... $ 244363 § (11,094) - $ 233,269
Note 6 — Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt at June 30, 2012 is summarized as follows:
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation..............ccovvenene. $ 407,523,975
Less: total long-term debt outstanding..............cooiiiiiiiiiinnn, (188,320,433)
Add: long-term debt outstanding not related to asset acquisition...... 1,028,100
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....................ol $ 220,231,642
Business-Type Activities Total
Enterprise Funds/
Business-Type
Water Sewer Activities
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation....... $ 42,609,179 $ 33,707,141 § 76,316,320
Less: total long-term debt outstanding................. (18,179,039) (11,146,978) (29,326,017)
Add: grant receivable to fund capital debt............. - 2,065,159 2,065,159
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.......... $ 24,430,140 § 24,625322 § 49,055,462
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Note 7 — Inter-fund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Receivables and payables between funds at June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Federal ARRA grant fund - non major governmental fund $ 240,400 {1}
General Fund Chaffin education - private purpose trust fund 17,601 {2}

Total 258,001

{1} Advance funding pending receipt of Federal ARRA grant reimbursement.
{2} Advance funding pending receipt of Chaffin fund reimbursement.
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Inter-fund transfer activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Community 1Iigh School Non-Major Water Sewer Internal
General Presenvation Improvement Governmental Enterpose Enterprise Service Total
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Funds All Funds

Building insurance fuading - transfer from Building Insurance Fund ..o $ 398,723 § - S -5 - s - S - S (398723 §
Stormwater fund reimbursement to General Tund. ... vivcieiiiinin s imiiciine s 16,356 - - (16,356) - -
Sewer fund reimbursement to General Fund........... 679,518 - - - - (679,518)
Water fund reimbursement to General Fund...... 750,000 - - - (750,000 -
Water fund resmbucsement to Sewer Fund (admin & support). - - (808,330) 808,330
Parking meter receipt funding of parking & traffic control acuvities sis 1,325,000 - (1,325,000) - -
Sale of Recyclable materials funding of rubbish collection activities... ZiEes an e nRah 39,725 - (39,725} - -
Automated trash collection program income funding for rubbish collection, . 175,000 - (175,000) - -
BAA Marathon contribution funding for recreation activiticS.vvwivvieess 53,000 . - (53,000) - - -
CATY receipts funding for CATV regulation and contract activities 198,000 - (198,000 - - -
CPA fund reimbursement of enginecring support services for CPA project 1,922 (1,922) - - s
School Athletic Revolving Fund subsidy - school budget.... (886,411 . - 886,414 - - . e
School Food Service Fund subsidy - school budget.... (190,000) - 190,000 - - H !
Federal Safc School grant match - school budget.,.... (125,750} - 125,750 - -
Fire prevention program activities funding from fine revenue... 11,277 - - (11,277) - -
Forestry vehicle purchase funded with tree ordinance receipt: 258,000 - - (258,000 - -
E-rate receipt appropriation - school technology purposes.... 212,666 E - (212,666) - -
Transfer completed Angier boiler balance to Bowen boiler project budget. ... - (32421) - - (32,421)
Transfer completed Angier boiler balance to Bowen boiler project budget. ... - 32421 N - 32421

BAA Marathon funding for park and playground improvements......cooouiviiiiiiiins 45,000 F - (43,000) - - )
(12,176) - - . (12,176)

T'ransfer completed .Angier boiler balance to Countryside boiler project budget... -

Transfer completed Williams boiler balance to Countryside boiler project budget........ - (12,824) - - (12,824)
“T'ransfer completed Countryside clevator balance to Countr) side boiler project budget - (235,000) - - (25,000)
Transfer - Countryside boiler project.. RN - 30,000 - - 50,000
CSF appropriation for Lincoln-Eliot mechanu:al system |mpro\ement< (250,000) - 250,000 - -

CSF appropriation for Bowen masonty repairs. couiiviemiiiniiniiiiin (60,000 - 60,000 - &

CSF appropnation for Bure mechanical system improvements ,............ (250,000) . - 250,000 - -

Anger School reconstruction feasibility study (school operating budget) {750,000) . - 750,000 - -

Encrgy conservation audit funding from CSF. . uveiiiieaciciniiiins (148,181) - 148,481 - ~

Lower Falls Community Center improvements from CSF, o . 3 (104,826) . - 104,826 - -

Lower Falls Community Center improvements from CSFuveeiiiveieciiieraivesinienss (H,624) - - 44,624 - -

Lower Falls Community Center ADA compliance study (25,000) - 235,000 - - - -
Police station lobby improvements from CSF........... (74,503) z - 74,503 - -

AManet Rd communication building improvement design ... (40,000) - 40,000 - -

Intersection improvements - Development mitigation receipt: 50,000 - (50,000) - -

Bicycle racks - Development mitigation receipts.. SR 1,490 - (1,490) - =

Conservation Land mantenance - FEMA relmburccmcnt

27,048 - (27.048) - -
FEMA/MEMA grant reimbursements to Inclement W mthcr rccmplc reserve ed N a - (535,021) - = (35
FEMA/MEMA grant ceimbursements to Inclement Weather receipts reserved. ......... . S 555,021 - - . 535,021

PY reimbursement - federal ARRA grant - bicycle rack installation.... 23,400 - (23,400) -

PY reimburscment - state police dispatch grant. ..o 39,218 - (39,248) - -

PY reimb - police asset forfeiture grant exp on behalf of state teimb grant. - (]4)400) - - (14,400
PY reimb - police asset forferture grant exp on behalf of state reimb grant... . - 14400 - - . 14,400
Close completed FA Day HVAC project balance to CSF......iiiiaiie 3,150 g (5,150} - = .

Close completed Burr window project balance to CSF.. 264,008 - (264,008) - S

Close completed Angier boiler project balance to CSI 2,652 - (2,652) - -

Close completed Williams boiler project balance to CSF. 1,160 . - (1,160) - -

Close completed Coutryside elevator project balance to CSF, 15,868 - (15,868) - -

Close completed Bowen boiler project balance to CSF.......... 2,597 . - (2,597) - -

Close completed Countryside boiler project balance to CSF.... 16,508 - - (16,508) - - =

Close completed Education Center gencrator project balance to CSF..... 150,000 - (150,000) - -

Close completed NSHS renovation project balance to CSF...... 1 (11) ~ ~ ~

Close completed Automated trash collection cart balance to CSF, 598 - N (398) _

Close completed Trommel screen equipment project balance to CSF.. 5,500 - - (5,500) -

Close completed Fire Station #+4 landscaping project balance to CSF,uvvveiaiiiieieiniiias 367 - (567) -

Close completed DPW’ fuel system project balance to CSF............. 33,266 - (33,266) N :
Closc completed Energy conscrvation system project balance to CSF, 6,739 - - (6,739) N = E
Transfers from other funds.....v ieveemiins oo ae e s eennaaaes 9 4,811,997 § - S - S 3,601,440 § - S 808330 § - S 9,221,767
Transfers 10 Other FUNAS. ... c.viuuiues sttt ieaitiaiaaeesoitcacsiaiici s S (2,949,598) § (1,922 3 ans (3.633,663) $__ (1,538,330) S (679,518) S (398,723) §_ (9,221,767)

Note 8 - Short-Term Debt
Shott term debt may be authorized and issued to fund cutrent operating costs ptiot to the collection of revenues through the
issuance of revenue (RAN’s) or tax anticipation notes (I'AN’s), ot to finance capital project expenditures prior to the issuance

of permanent long-term debt, through the issuance of bond (BAN’s) or grant anticipation notes (GAN’s).

The City has no short term debt outstanding at June 30, 2012, and did not issue ot retite any short term debt during the fiscal
year.
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Note 9 - Long-Term Obligations

The follow represents a summary of changes that occurted in long-term obligations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Current
2011 Increases Decreases 2012 Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable....................... $ 191,994,800 % 5,734,000 § (9,408,367) $ 188320433 $ 9,596,167
Landfill closure and other environmental. ... 805,000 - (61,000) 744,000 99,000
Wortkers' compensation........................ 7,016,910 1,334,587 (1,862,302) 6,489,195 1,309,506
Compensated absences......................... 7,937,709 225,335 - 8,163,044 2,825,574
Net OPEB obligation..............ocoooeinnnn, 115,270,563 45,246,158 (16,183,687) 144,333,034 -
Total. oo § 323024982 § 52,540,080 $  (27,515356) $ 348,049,706 $ 13,830,247
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable....................... $ 29,724,014 $ 4,212,500 $ (4,610,497) § 29,326,017 $§ 4,458,055
Compensated absences......................... 316,722 - (40,744) 275,978 27,598
Net OPEB obligatiofi............cccociiinnnn, 2,792,257 1,172,527 (419,390) 3,545,394 -
Total. .o $ 32,832,993 § 5,385,027 $ (5,070,631) $ 33,147,389 § 4,485,653

Intetnal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, the internal service fund’s long-term
liabilities are included as part of the governmental activities totals above. At fiscal year-end, $6,489,195 of the internal service
funds accrued liabilities (wotkers’ compensation claimns) is included above.

The outstanding long-term debt related to land acquisition (Kesseler Woods, Angino Farm and Rogers Street) will be funded
from the community preservation fund (major fund).

Except for the amounts related to the internal service funds and community preservation fund, the governmental activities
long term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.

Note 10 - Long-Term Debt

The City’s long term debt at June 30, 2012, along with future year debt service requirements, is as follows:
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Bonds Payable — Governmental Funds

Date of Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Rate (%) July 1, 2011 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2012
MWPAT landfill closure.............. 02/15/1998 4.60 S 1,169,800 S - S (141,700) S 1,028,100
School renovations..........c..o.o.v... 08/15/2001 3.65 410,000 - (410,000) -
School renovations..................... 08/15/2003 3.06 1,710,000 - (570,000) 1,140,000
Land acquisition (CPA)................ 12/15/2003 2.0-3.4 1,500,000 - (500,000) 1,000,000
School renovations..................... 02/15/2005 3.0-4.0 7,000,000 - (500,000) 6,500,000
School renovations..................... 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 8,485,000 - (610,000) 7,875,000
Road improvements................... 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 250,000 - (50,000) 200,000
Public works equipment............... 02/15/2006 3.0-43 550,000 - (60,000) 490,000
Fire equipment..........coooooinn... 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 550,000 - (55,000) 495,000
School renovations..................... 02/01/2007 4.0-5.0 6,825,000 - (515,000) 6,310,000
Fire station improvements............ 02/01/2007 4.0-5.0 240,000 - (25,000) 215,000
Public works equipment............... 02/01/2007 4.0-5.0 510,000 - (60,000) 450,000
Land acquisition (CPA)................ 11/01/2007 3.98 1,530,000 - (255,000) 1,275,000
Fire station improvements............ 11/01/2007 3.98 410,000 - (30,000) 380,000
School renovations..................... 11/01/2007 3.98 170,000 - (10,000) 160,000
School new construction.............. 11/01/2007 3.98 16,105,000 - (955,000) 15,150,000
School new construction.............. 06/15/2008 4.37 22,195,000 - (460,000) 21,735,000
School renovations..................... 06/15/2008 3.80 1,870,000 - (110,000) 1,760,000
Fire equipment. .. ..cociviiniiiiiiannn. 06/15/2008 3.80 360,000 - (30,000) 330,000
Public works equipment............... 06/15/2008 3.80 480,000 - (40,000) 440,000
School new construction. ............. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 72,250,000 - (1,415,000) 70,835,000
School renovations..................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 1,820,000 - (105,000) 1,715,000
School renovations..................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 195,000 - (15,000) 180,000
School renovations..................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 695,000 - (40,000) 655,000
South high school athletic fields...... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 2,785,000 - (215,000) 2,570,000
Fire station renovations............... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 2,145,000 - (170,000) 1,975,000
Fire station design.........coooooean. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 205,000 - (70,000) 135,000
City hall boiler replacement. .......... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 195,000 - (15,000) 180,000
Bencliffe circle construction.......... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 145,000 - (20,000) 125,000
Fire equipment................o.ove. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 690,000 - (55,000) 635,000
Parks equipment................o... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 90,000 - (10,000) 80,000
DPW equipment...............een.. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 520,000 - (40,000) 480,000
School new construction.............. 05/01/2010 3.0-4.0 11,260,000 - (390,000) 10,870,000
Fire station tenovations............... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 4,300,000 - (235,000) 4,065,000
Underground fuel tanks............... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 405,000 - (45,000) 360,000
Modular classrooms................... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 1,305,000 - (95,000) 1,210,000
School renovations..................... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 1,310,000 - (115,000) 1,195,000
Energy conservation .................. 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 3,425,000 - (245,000) 3,180,000
Fire equipment......................... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 450,000 - (50,000) 400,000
Public works equipment............... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 1,715,000 - (195,000) 1,520,000
School new construction.............. 03/30/2011 2.0 11,000,000 - (366,667) 10,633,333
School renovations..................... 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 2,210,000 . (45,000) 2,165,000
City hall windows...................... 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 125,000 - (5,000) 120,000
Public works equipment............... 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 435,000 - (65,000) 370,000
School renovations/upgrades......... 04/03/2012 2.0-3.0 - 4,494,000 - 4,494,000
Fire engine replacement............... 04/03/2012 2.0-3.0 = 600,000 - 600,000
Gath pool repairs............coovnins 04/03/2012 2.0-3.0 - 100,000 - 100,000
Playground improvements............ 04/03/2012 2.0-3.0 - 150,000 = 150,000
Public works cquipment............... 04/03/2012 2.0-3.0 . 390,000 - 390,000
QUL v e RO e s e S~ 191,994,800 S 5,734,000 S (9,408367) S 188,320,433
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During fiscal year 2012, the City issued $5,734,000 in new general obligation bonds; $4,494,000 for school
renovations/upgtades; $600,000 for fire engine replacement; $390,000 for public wotks equipment; $150,000 for playground
improvements; and $100,000 for Gath pool repaits.

During 1998, the City entered into a twenty-year loan agreement with the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust
(MWPAT) to provide §2,675,000 in funding for the closure of the City’s temaining sanitaty landfill. ‘The loan agreement
provides for both principal and interest subsidies over the term of the loan. At June 30, 2012, a balance of $1,028,100 was
outstanding on this loan. A principal subsidy of $43,203 and an interest subsidy of $26,426 have been recorded in the general
fund.

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Governmental bonds payable for future years is as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest "Total
2013 $ 9,596,167 § 7,565,696 $ 17,161,863
2014 9,653,867 7,175,410 16,829,277
2015 8,568,367 6,862,126 15,430,493
2016 8,597,967 6,571,330 15,169,297
2017 8,552,667 6,290,600 14,843,267
2018 8,232,467 5,990,642 14,223,109
2019 8,302,267 5,669,014 13,971,281
2020 8,196,667 5,342,110 13,538,777
2021 7,921,667 5,010,026 12,931,693
2022 7,786,667 4,687,416 12,474,083
2023 7,716,667 4,389,294 12,105,961
2024 7,786,667 4,092,850 11,879,517
2025 7,441,667 3,791,704 11,233,371
2026 6,536,667 3,498,389 10,035,056
2027 6,091,667 3,242,945 9,334,612
2028 5,736,667 3,000,062 8,736,729
2029 4,971,667 2,783,703 7,755,370
2030 5,001,667 2,577,507 7,579,174
2031 4,936,667 2,364,836 7,301,503
2032 5,041,667 2,153,796 7,195,463
2033 5,251,667 1,921,357 7,173,024
2034 5,481,667 1,678,667 7,160,334
2035 5,721,667 1,424,752 7,146,419
2036 5,976,667 1,159,138 7,135,805
2037 6,241,667 880,592 7,122,259
2038 6,521,667 589,121 7,110,788
2039 5,336,667 283,975 5,620,642
2040 751,667 31,030 782,697
2041 366,657 7,333 373,990

Total $ 188,320,433 § 101,035,421 $ 289,355,854
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Bonds Payable — Water Enterprise Fund

Date of Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Rate (%) July 1, 2011 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2012

MWRA Water .....oooviiiiiiiiiiinns 02/15/2002 0.00 $ 258,602 § - k) (258,602) $ -
MWRA Water .....oooovviiiiiiiini 08/15/2002 0.00 517,204 - (258,602) 258,602
MWRA Water ..., 02/26/2004 0.00 775,806 - (258,602) 517,204
MWRA Water .........oocveeiinnn. 11/18/2004 0.00 1,034,408 - (258,602) 775,806
MWRA Water ........oooviieninnn. 05/18/2006 0.00 1,293,009 - (258,602) 1,034,407
MWRA Watet ......ooovviiiieninn.. 05/31/2007 0.00 1,551,611 - (258,602) 1,293,009
Water meter replacement.............. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 4,800,000 - (600,000) 4,200,000
MWRA Water ........ooooviiieiinnn, 05/21/2009 0.00 2,880,000 - (360,000) 2,520,000
MWRA Water .........oooviiiiiins 05/20/2010 0.00 2,001,960 E (222,440) 1,779,520
MWRA Water ..., 02/15/2011 0.00 1,933,657 - (193,3606) 1,740,291
Water meter replacement.............. 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 3,000,000 s (300,000) 2,700,000
MWRA Water ..o 05/14/2012 0.00 - 1,360,200 - 1,360,200
Total..o.ovovii $ 20,046,257 $ 1,360,200 §  (3,227418) $ 18,179,039

The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) offers water system rehabilitation and sanitary sewer infiltration and
inflow reduction financial assistance programs to member communities in order to assist with the on-going maintenance of
water and sewet system infrastructure. Duting the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City was the recipient of a $1,360,200
ten-year interest free water system rehabilitation loan.

At June 30, 2012, the City had $11,279,039 in MWRA water rehabilitation loans outstanding. Interest subsidies on these loans
for the year ended June 30, 2012 totaled $317,607.

Debt service requirements for future year principal and interest for water entetptise fund debt is as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 3,104,836 § 222,000 $ 3,326,836
2014 2,846,234 201,000 3,047,234
2015 2,587,632 177,000 2,764,632
2016 2,329,029 151,500 2,480,529
2017 2,070,427 121,500 2,191,927
2018 1,811,826 91,500 1,903,326
2019 1,811,825 60,000 1,871,825
2020 851,825 27,000 878,825
2021 629,385 13,500 642,885
2022 136,020 : 136,020
Total $ 18,179,039 $ 1,065,000 §$ 19,244,039
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Bonds Payable — Sewer Enterprise Fund

Date of Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Rate (%) July 1, 2011 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2012
MWPAT SeWet.....oevvviniiiiinennn, 10/06/1999 5.16 $ 3,370,000 % - 8 (330,000) $ 3,040,000
MWPAT Sewet.........ovveianinnnnn, 11/10/2000 5.20 4,380,000 - (376,000) 4,004,000
MWPAT Sewet......oooovviiiiiinan... 07/03/2002 0.00 81,134 - (5,477) 75,657
MWRA Sewer........coevvuiiinannn.. 02/15/2007 0.00 60,940 - (60,940) -
MWRA Sewer........coovvvieiinnnn. 06/14/2007 0.00 226,160 - (226,160) -
MWRA Sewer.......oovvveiiniiinne. 08/23/2007 0.00 21,120 . (10,560) 10,560
MWRA Sewer......oovviiinneiiininn. 11/29/2007 0.00 61,446 - (30,723) 30,723
MWRA Sewef.........ooovveiiinnnnn. 09/09/2008 0.00 336,072 - (112,024) 224,048
MWRA Sewer......ccoovveiiiannanns. 02/19/2009 0.00 476,685 - (158,895) 317,790
MWRA Sewer......ooovvviiiiiiiiinn. .. 03/01/2010 0.00 189,200 . (47,300) 141,900
Sewet system improvements.......... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 475,000 - (25,000) 450,000
MWRA Sewer......coovvviiiiiinninnn. 08/25/2010 0.00 - 575,300 - 575,300
Sewet system improvements.......... 04/03/2012 2.0-3.0 - 2,277,000 - 2,277,000
TOLA] . 75 - o - T« e« FE « o T - BT T $ 9,677,757 § 2,852,300 §  (1,383,079) § 11,146,978

The MWRA’s sanitary sewer infiltration/inflow reduction financial assistance program provides financial assistance for eligible
projects in the form of a combination of grants and five-year interest-free loans. At June 30, 2012, the City had $1,300,321 in
MWRA sewer infiltration/inflow reduction loans outstanding. Duting fiscal year 2012, the City was the recipient of an
MWRA grant of $470,700 and a five-year interest free sewer infiltration/flow reduction loan in the amount of $575,300.

The City has also entered into (3) ten-year subsidized loan agreements with the MWPAT for additional sanitary sewer system
infiltration and inflow reduction projects. At June 30, 2012 the City had $7,119,657 in loans outstanding under this project.
Interest and ptincipal subsidies on these loans for the year ended June 30, 2012 were $289,098 and $229,762, respectively.

During fiscal year 2012 the City also issued $2,277,000 of general obligation debt for sewer system improvements.
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Debt service requirements for future year principal and interest for sewer enterprise fund debt is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending Principal Interest "Total
2013 $ 1,353,219 § 412,908 $ 1,766,127
2014 1,334,279 386,704 1,720,983
2015 1,083,360 335,286 1,418,646
2016 1,061,060 288,712 1,349,772
2017 1,086,060 241,768 1,327,828
2018 1,006,000 190,966 1,196,966
2019 1,036,000 145,248 1,181,248
2018 1,056,000 99,468 1,155,468
2021 646,000 59,533 705,533
2022 150,000 42,375 192,375
2023 150,000 38,000 188,000
2024 140,000 34,450 174,450
2025 140,000 30,575 170,575
2026 140,000 26,700 166,700
2027 140,000 22,825 162,825
2028 135,000 18,950 153,950
2029 135,000 14,925 149,925
2030 135,000 10,900 145,900
2031 110,000 6,600 116,600
2032 110,000 3,300 113,300
Total $ 11,146,978 $ 2,410,193 § 13,557,171

Water and sewer debt is expected to be funded from water and sewer enterptise fund revenue.
At June 30, 2012 the City had a total of $36,815,017 in authorized and unissued debt, which is summarized as follows:

Authorized and Unissued Debt

Beginning End
of Year Increases Decreases of Year

High school improvements*........................ $ 6,329,692 $ - 8 - s 6,329,692
School improvements. .............cooveeieiiniinen.. - 12,029,000 (4,494,000) 7,535,000
Energy conservation audits.......................... 167,400 (148,481) - 18,919
Public works equipment..................o - 390,000 (390,000) =
Sewer system Improvements ....................... 1,009,800 - (575,300) 434,500
Sewer system improvements ....................... 2,277,000 - (2,277,000) -
Sewer 1&I removal...........ooiin 102,155 - - 102,155
Sewer 1&I removal MWPAT....................... 2,995,073 - - 2,995,073
Sewer system J&I removal - PH I USISIP......... - 4,239,878 4,239,878
Water main tehabilitiation - MWRA................ - 13,602,000 (1,360,200) 12,241,800
Water meter replacement............ooovvuiinnn... 2,528,000 - - 2,528,000
Newton city hall improvements..................... - 300,000 - 300,000
Fire engine and station repaits...................... - 690,000 (600,000} 90,000
Playground improvements...............ooeeviennn - 150,000 (150,000) -
Gath pool repairs...........oooviiiiii 100,000 (100,000)

TOtal. « oot $ 15400120 $§ 31,352,397 $  (9,946,500) $ 36,815,017
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* Subsequent to year end, $6,329,692 in high school improvement bond authorizations were rescinded due to project
completion and $3,979,000 in new long term debt has been authorized for the following purposes: water main cleaning &
relining - $2,700,000; public building energy conservation improvements - $§400,000; municipal building repairs - $707,000; and
public works equipment - $172,000.

Note 11 — Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations mandated that the City close its old landfill site when it ceases accepting waste and to
petform certain maintenance and monitoring activities at the site after closure. On June 28, 1996 the City signed a consent
agreement with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Environmental Protection that established a schedule
for closure of the Rumford Avenue landfill. ‘This landfill ceased operations in 1976 and was capped during 1998, which was in
compliance with the consent agreement. The City has recorded a liability of $564,000 at June 30, 2012 for future year landfill
site monitoring and maintenance. Estimated costs per year total §35,000. The cutrent estimate is based upon current costs
and may tequire modification in future years due to price inflation, changes in technology or changes in state/fedetal law and
regulations.

Note 12 — Other Post Employment Benefits

Plan Description — The City provides health and life insurance coverage for its retitees and their survivors (hereinafter referred
to as the “Plan”) as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan. Chapter 32B of the
MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to plan design and contribution rates must be
accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are
no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of paying benefits under the Plan.

The number of participants as of June 30, 2012, the latest actuatial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees.........ooviiiiiiii 2,320
Retired employees and beneficiaties. .......... 3,236
Totale st 5,556

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of Plan memberts and the City are established and may be amended by the City.
The requited health insurance contribution rates of Plan membets and the City ate 25%/30% and 75%/70%, respectively. In
addition, the City reimburses 80% of the Medicare Part B premiums paid by retitees. The Plan members and City each
contribute 50% towards a $5,000 term life insurance premium. The City cutrently contributes enough money to the Plan to
satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the City.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuatially determined amount that is calculated in accordance with the
patameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not
to exceed thirty years.
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The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost fot the year, the actual amount contributed to the
plan, and changes in the total net OPEB obligation:

Amount
(in thousands)

Annual required contribution........................ $ 49,811
Interest on net OPEB obligation.................... 2,362
Adjustment to annual required contribution....... (5,754)
Annual OPEB cost.vviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 46,419
Contributions made..................ooo (16,603)
Increase in net OPEB obligation.................... 29,816
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year......... 118,063
Net OPEB obligation at end of yeat................ $ 147,879

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the net pension
obligation is as follows:

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Annual Petcentage Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation
June 30,2010................. $ 43,384 31.4% § 83,473
June 30,2011, 49,898 32.6% 118,063
June 30,2012..........0c 46,419 35.3% 147,879

Funded Status and Funding Progress — The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation, was as

follows:
Dollar Amounts in Thousands
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A) ®) (B-4) AB _ © (B-1)/C)
06/30/12 % - 601,300 $ 601,300 - % 176,525 341%
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Actuatial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of teported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates ate made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-yeat trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial repotting putposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of shating of benefit costs between the employer and Plan membets to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuatial accrued liabilities and the
actuatial value of assets, consistent with the long-term petspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date: June 30, 2012

Actuatial cost method: Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method: Level dollar

Remaining amortization period: 26 years (closed)

Intetrest discount rate: 2.00%

Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate: 0.0% for 2012; 1.53% for 2013; 3.05% for 2014; 4.58% for 2015; 6.10% for 2016;

6.07% for 2017; 6.03% for 2018; 6.00% for 2019; 5.97% for 2020; 5.84% for 2025;
5.97% for 2030; 5.33% for 2040; 5.03% for 2050; 4.87% for 2060; 4.76% for 2070;
4.42% for 2080; 4.24% starting in 2085 to an ultimate level of 4.24% per year
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Allocation of AOPEBC — AOPEBC costs were allocated to the City’s functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Legislative & Executive...........ooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn. $ 477,360
Elections siusmmaessmmems i o s 3 i 5 s 112,511
Financial administration. ..o i inn. 567,181
Administrative SUPPOLt. ... ...oooiiiiiiiiiiiii 559,746
Planning & development.............ooooiii 239,094
Public building maintenance & operation.................. 606,362
Police. ..o 4,150,612
T 4,329,326
Inspectional Services........cocvvveviieiiiiiiiiiiinien, 257,660
Other public safety........c.ooooiiiiiiiiii 13,889
BEducation.......covviiiiiii 28,853,232
Streets & sidewalks. ... 1,548,894
Collection & disposal of solid waste......................e. 89,185
Equipment maintenance...........ocoveeiiieviiieiieian.. 411,413
Engineering. ..o.oooviiiiiiii e 244,898
Administration & SUPPOLt.......oveiveiiieiriiniieeniane. 301,350
Publichealth...........oooooi i 638,373
SEMIOr SEIVICES . . ettt ittt eeaaans 109,367
VEteran SEIVICES . v uutit ittt e s ieittee e et et eae e ainaens 60,901
LABLALIES . o ov et e e 954,384
Parks & tecteation......oouviiviiiie e, 679,879
Newton history museum...........coooiiiiiiiiiiin.. 40,541
Total AOPEBC - governmental activities............c.ooveennn... 45,246,158

Business-Type Activities:

AT 648,565
S O i s T s S 3 S0 P o7 0 5 SR 2 e e 523,962
Total AOPEBC - business-type actvities............ocveeruinenen. 1,172,527
Total AOPEBC. ... $ 46,418,685

Note 13 — Risk Financing

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, propetty and casualty, workers’ compensation,
unemployment, and employee health insurance claims. The City is self-insured for general liability risks, however, Chapter 258
of the Massachusetts General Laws limits the liability to a maximum of $100,000 pet claim in all matters except actions relating
to federal civil rights, eminent domain, and breach of contract. The City is also self-insured for wotkets’ compensation and
unemployment claims.
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The City has medical plans with Tufts and Harvard-Pilgtim, under which it makes actual claims payments. The medical plan
providets act as claims processors and a transfer of risk does not occur. City employees cutrently contribute between 20%
and 30% of the cost of health care, and retirees contribute between 25% and 30% of their health care costs, and the remainder
is funded by the City. The City purchased stop loss insurance for individual claims in excess of $250,000 per year, which are
incurred duting the fiscal year and paid within eighteen months after June 30.

At June 30, 2012, the City’s health claims liability totaled $3,674,387 and is based on approximately one month claims paid
average. Changes in the reported liability since July 1, 2010 are as follows:

Current Year

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-end
Fiscal year 2011............ $ 3912427 $ 47168457 % (47,058,035) $ 4,022,849
Fiscal year 2012............ 4,022,849 45,184,335 (45,532,797) 3,674,387

During the fiscal yeat ended June 30, 2012 the City implemented several changes in health care plan design for active
employees and their dependents through the collective batrgaining process. The changes include introduction of annual
deductibles; increased co-payments, and an increase in health premium contributions fot new employees from 20% to either
25% ot 30%, depending upon bargaining unit.

Workers” compensation claims are administered by the City’s Personnel Depattment. The City contracts for an annual
actuarial valuation of the program, and based on this study, has recorded a liability of $6,489,195 at June 30, 2012, of which
$1,309,506 has been recorded as a current liability based upon the City’s expectation that this amount will be paid within the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. The liability includes an estimate of the IBNR claims.

The June 30, 2012 plan valuation is based upon the use of a combination of the paid loss development method and the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss method. US Life Tables 2001 Vital Statistics for Males and Females have been used to
determine annuity values for long term claims, using a 5.0% annual rate of interest.

Changes in the reported liability since July 1, 2010 are as follows:

Current Year

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-end
Fiscal year 2011......... $ 6,684,861 § 2,151,116 $ (1,819,067) $ 7,016,910
Fiscal year 2012......... 7,016,910 1,334,587 (1,862,302) 6,489,195
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Note 14 — Fund Balances

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are detailed as follows:

Nonmajor Total
Community High School Governmental Governmental
General Preservation  Improvements Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal............. $ - - 38 - $ 446,818 $ 446,818
Restricted:
Debt service......oviiieiniiineianns 617,572 - - - 617,572
General government.................... - - - 1,396,177 1,396,177
Public safety................o . . - 293,381 293,381
Education..........ocoooiiiicn, - . - 4,468,834 4,468,834
School construction...............o.... - - 88,270 5,354,510 5,442,780
Public works........c.ocoiiiiiiiiii e, - - - 1,855,960 1,855,960
Health and human services........... - - - 516,354 516,354
Culture and tecreation................. - 2,943,668 2,943,668
Community preservation.............. - 4,719,507 - - 4,719,507
CPA- community housing............ - 1,125,499 - - 1,125,499
CPA- histozic tesoutces............... - 1,997,273 - - 1,997,273
CPA- open space............o.oeannnn, - 349,580 - - 349,580
CPA- community recreation.......... - 444211 . - 444211
Capital............. 7,729 - - 7,729
Other post employment benefits. .... 312,973 - = - 312,973
School lunch................ocooeeet. - - - 18,872 18,872
Insurance proceeds.............o.ov.ee. - = 5 12,923 12,923
Receipts reserved. ..............oonnne, = - - 3,032,197 3,032,197
Sub-total - Restricted.............. 938,274 8,636,070 88,270 19,892,876 29,555,490
Committed:
Subsequent yeat's expenditures....... 2,565,748 = . . 2,565,748
Capital. ..o 5,049,725 - - - 5,049,725
Continuing approptiations............ 2,201,193 - - - 2,201,193
Receipts reserved............ooeenl, < - = 1,745,209 1,745,209
Sub-total - Committed............. 9,816,666 - - 1,745,209 11,561,875
Assigned:
Encumbrances........ccooeveviiiiinne, 2,435,508 - = - 2,435,508
Capital.......oooiii 147,553 - - - 147,553
Sub-total - Assigned............... 2,583,061 - - - 2,583,061
Unassigned......cccoovveviiiiininiin 14,886,340 - - - 14,886,340
$ 28224341 ¢ 8,636,070 § 88,270 § 22,084,903 $ 59,033,584
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Note 15 — Stabilization Funds

The City maintains capital and rainy day stabilization funds. Approptiations in and out of the stabilization funds require
approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. Investment income is retained by the funds.

The balance of the capital and rainy day stabilization funds at June 30, 2012 total $5,205,007 and $6,158,308, respectively, and
are reported in the general fund as restricted ($7,729), committed ($5,049,725), assigned ($147,553) and unassigned
($6,158,308).

Note 16 - Donor Restricted Endowments

Permanent Fund and Private Purpose Trust Fund donors have placed restrictions on the expenditure of certain Permanent
Fund and Ptivate Purpose Trust Fund endowments. Local policy prohibits the expenditure of unrealized gains and, as a result,
only realized gains and investment income on all such funds is available for expenditure. Furthermore, the expenditure of
investment income is restricted by individual donor trust agreements.

Amounts available for expenditute related to Permanent Funds are treported as expendable perpetual funds in the Statement of
Net Assets and restricted fund balance in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Amounts available for expenditure related
to Private Purpose Trust Funds ate reported as held in trust for other purposes in the Fiduciary Funds Statement of Fiduciary
Net Assets.

Note 17 — Pension Plan
A — Plan Description and Membership

The City conttibutes to the System, a cost-shating multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Newton Contributory Retitement Board (NCRB). Substantially all employees of the City are members of the System, except
for public school teachers and certain school administrative personnel who are members of the MTRS.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, pursuant to Massachusetts
General Law Chaptet 32, up to a maximum of 80% of the average of a membet’s three highest consecutive years’ regular
compensation. In addition to regular compensation, benefits are based upon a member’s age, length of creditable service and
group classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable service. A normal retirement allowance may be
received after the completion of 20 yeats of setvice or upon reaching age 55, with 10 years of service. Normal retirement for
most employees occurs at age 65, except for certain hazardous duty and public safety employees who attain normal retirement
at age 55. Benefits and member conttibution rates ate detetmined by Chaptet 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws.

A retirement allowance consists of two parts, an annuity and a pension. A member’s accumulated total retirement deductions,
. . . p . > p - . - .
plus interest, constitutes the annuity. The difference between the total retirement benefit and the annuity is the pension.
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At December 31, 2011, the System’s membership consisted of the following:

Active Members. v e 1,615
Inactive members........ooviiiii e 561
Disabled members.......cooiiiiiii i 172
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits...... 1,161

"TOAL. simsraiaus wmsannsacesirs ivinassmsirasatioscareath oo AT 3,509

B — Basis of Accounting

The System’s financial statements are prepared using the full accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and
the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable.

Investments of the System are stated at fair value.
C - Funding Policy

In 1984 the City began funding the System on an actuarial reserve basis. This funding includes both current year service and
the amortization of past setvice liability. It is the policy of the NCRB to conttact for an annual actuarial valuation of the
System to determine whether the contributions are sufficient to meet accruing liabilities and to demonstrate what adjustments,
if any, ate necessary on the basis of actual expetience. Active member contribution rates are based upon date of hire: Priot to
January 1, 1975 - 5% of regular compensation; January 1, 1975-December 31, 1984 - 7% of regular compensation; Januaty 1,
1985-June 30, 1996 - 8% of regular compensation and July 1, 1996 to date - 9% of regular compensation.

Members hired on or after January 1, 1979 contribute an additional 2% of annual regular compensation in excess of $30,000.
Cost of living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth
during this time period are funded by annual contributions from the Commonwealth. Cost of living adjustments granted after
1997 must be approved annually by the NCRB and the costs are borne entirely by the System. These adjustments may not
exceed 3% on the first $12,000 in benefits.

D - Investment Policy

The NCRB is responsible for the adoption of a formal asset allocation policy, the selection of professional investment
managets to execute the investment policies, and the appointment of an investment consultant to assist with the evaluation of
investment managet petformance. All investment activities of the NCRB are subject to oversight by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts’ Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC).

Effective July 1, 2007, the Newton Contributory Retitement Board transferred investment management responsibility for all

assets, except those currently invested in real estate limited partnerships, with early withdrawal penalties, to the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Pension Reserve Investment Trust.
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E — Annual Pension Cost

The City’s contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $16,077,924; $14,829,525;
and $13,364,434; respectively, and equaled the actuarially required conttibution for each fiscal year. At June 30, 2012 the City
did not have a net pension obligation. The required contribution was detetmined as patt of the January 1, 2010 actuarial
valuation using the individual entry age normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included an 8% rate of return on
investments (net of administrative expenses); an inflationary rate of 3% and projected salary increases of 4% for the current
year and 4.75% (5.25% for Group 4) annually thereafter. The actuarial value of the System’s assets was determined using the
five-year smoothing of investment returns greater/(less) than expected. The valuation must be within 20% of market value.
The System’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level petcentage of projected payroll.

Funded Status and Funding Progress - The funded status of the plan at January 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, is as follows:

Dollar Amounts In Thousands

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AATL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) ®) B-A) (A/B) © (B-8/0)

January 1,2012  § 262,109 § 493224 § 231,115 53.1% §$ 80,337 287.7%
The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following notes to the financial
statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing

over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation ate as follows:

Valuation date: January 1, 2012

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal

Amortization method: Increasing payments 3.75% per year

Remaining amortization period: 26 years (closed)

Asset valuation method: Actuarial assets equal preliminary asset value plus 25% of the difference between

market value and preliminaty asset value. Preliminary asset value is the previous
years’ actuarial asset amount increased by net cash flow and expected investment
income. The result must be within 20% of market value.

Investment rate of return: 7.75%

Projected salary increases: 2.0% per year in 2012; 2.5% per year in 2013; 3.0% per year in 2014; starting in 2015
the annual increases will be 3.5%

Cost of living adjustments: 3.0% on the first $12,000 in benefits
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Legally Required Reserve Accounts — The balance in the System’s legally required reserves as of December 31, 2011 are as
follows:

Description Amount Purpose
Annuity Savings Fund..... $ 77,977,390 Active members' contribution balance
Annuity Reserve Fund.... 30,113,950 Retired members' contribution account
Military Service Fund...... 54,430 Military leave of absence contribution balance
Pension Fund.............. 125,197,444 Remaining net assets
Totaliowivervieiiiiaiienans § 233,343,214

F - Non Contributory Retirement Allowances

City employees with World War IT military veteran status, at least 30 years of setvice to the City, and who began work prior to
July 1, 1939, are entitled to a non-contributory pension benefit equal to 72% of their highest annual rate of regular
compensation. Retirement benefits for these individuals are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis by the City, and there is no
estimate of the actuarial liability for these benefits because the City deems the amount to be immaterial to the financial
statements. Expenditures for non-contributory retitement benefits for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
were $298,065, $347,374 and $369,779, respectively. Non contributoty retirees are eligible for an annual cost of living
adjustment of not mote than 3% on the first §12,000 of their annual retirement benefit.

Note 18 — Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System

Public school teachers and cettain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System, to which
the City does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the
legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments totaled $30,702,851 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012, and, accordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension
expenditures.

Note 19 — Commitments and Contingencies

All construction work on the new Newton North High School project is now complete and a final close out package and audit
by the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) is pending. MSBA payment of the $2.3 million MSBA construction
grant retention is contingent upon completion of these two tasks. The grant retention is expected to be used to retire an equal
amount of subsidized construction loans currently outstanding from the MSBA.

Collective bargaining contracts with all City and Newton Public School employee groups are in place through June 30, 2014.

Duting the City’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the City entered into a contract with a design firm to provide guidance on the
most approptiate construction altetnative for renovating or replacing the existing Angier Elementary School. The Mayor has
recommended a propetty tax debt exclusion ballot question for funding the difference between the total project costs and
funding that is expected to be provided by the Massachusetts School Building Authority. The Mayor’s recommendation is
cutrently under review by the Board of Aldermen.
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Subsequent to year end the City entered into a twenty year lease and related power putchase agreement with Ameresco Solar
Inc., a solat photovoltaic firm, to install, operate, and maintain solar panels on the rooftop of four public school buildings,
with the condition that any and all funding for monies owed to Ametesco Solar Inc., under the terms of the agreement, shall
be included in an expense appropriation of the City’s Public Building Department, and all energy credits earned as a result of
the agteement, shall be applied to a municipal building electricity account, also under the control of the Public Buildings
Department.

Other significant commitments include the continuing appropriations and encumbrances outstanding for the general fund and
CPA fund, for which outstanding balances at June 30, 2012, totaled $4,636,701 and $2,296,493, respectively.

The City patticipates in a number of state and federal award programs. Although the federal grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2012, these programs, as
well as certain state grant programs, ate still subject to separate financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although it is expected such
amounts, if any, will be immaterial.

Various additional legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any at June 30, 2012 cannot be
ascettained, management believes any resulting liability should not matetially affect the financial position of the City at June
30, 2012.

Note 20 — Future Implementation of GASB Pronouncements
The GASB has issued the following statements:
»  Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, which is required to be

implemented duting fiscal year 2013. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will impact
the basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, which is
requited to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. Management does not believe the implementation of this
Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 EASB and
AICPA Pronouncements, which is required to be implemented duting fiscal year 2013. Management does not believe
the implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which 1s
required to be implemented duting fiscal year 2013. The implementation of this Statement will require a change to
the title of the Statement of Net Assets to the Statement of Net Position.

» Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required to be implemented during fiscal
year 2014, Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will significantly impact the basic
financial statements.

» Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62, which is required to
be implemented duting fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will
impact the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

» Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, which is required to be
implemented duting fiscal year 2014. The implementation of this Statement will require a change to the title of the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets to the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, as well as expanded note disclosures
and required supplementary information.

»  Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, which is required
to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. The implementation of this Statement will represent a significant change in the
accounting and repotting of pension expense and the related liability. For the first time, the City will be required to
recognize its long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability and to mote comprehensively measure the annual
costs of pension benefits. The implementation of this Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and
required supplementary information.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the System as a whole, for which the City is one participating

employer:
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SYSTEM)
Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A ®) B-A) (A/B) © (B-A)/C)
January 1,2012  § 262,109 $ 493224 § 231,115 531% $§ 80,337 287.7%
January 1, 2011 260,156 473,083 212,927 55.0% 81,378 261.7%
January 1, 2010 254,035 462,104 208,069 55.0% 83,844 248.2%
January 1, 2009 252,117 443,010 190,893 56.9% 82,014 232.8%
January 1, 2008 281,115 419,001 137,886 67.1% 79,206 174.1%
January 1, 2007 265,701 402,258 136,557 66.1% 74,197 184.0%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of
Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%0)
2006 $ 10,667,820 100
2007 11,747,762 100
2008 12,843,635 100
2009 13,547,778 100
2010 15,029,827 100
2011 16,252,351 100
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The following schedule provides information related to the City’s portion of the System’s ARC:

CITY SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Percentage of City ARC
Fiscal Year ARC as a Percentage of
Ended ARC Contributed (%) System ARC (%0)
2007 $ 10,552,659 100 98.9%
2008 11,594,554 100 98.7%
2009 12,682,312 100 98.7%
2010 13,364,434 100 98.6%
2011 14,829,525 100 98.7%
2012 16,077,924 100 98.9%

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE
The following schedule provides information related to the City’s othet postemployment benefits plan:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Actuarial

Accrued UAALas a

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date @) ®) B-A) (A/B) © (B-8)/C)
06/30/12  $ - 3 601,300 § 601,300 = 3 176,525 341%
06/30/11 - 639,110 639,110 - 176,191 363%
06/30/10 - 531,675 531,675 . 175,729 303%
06/30/09 . 595,672 595,672 - 174,021 342%
06/30/08 - 432,960 432 960 - 201,970 214%

The significant changes to the methods and assumptions used in the 06/30/11 and 06/30/12 actuarial valuations identified
above that impacted trends in the schedules of funding progress are:

e All active employees must elect one of the (less expensive) “Advantage” plans.

e All active employees must contribute 25% (for unions constituting 88% of actives) or 30% (for the other 12%)
instead of the previous 20%.

75



Combining and Individual Fund
Statements and Schedules



Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

School Lunch Fund:

This fund is used to account for the operations of the Newton Public School Department’s student lunch program. Revenues
are generated from the sale of lunches, state and federal reimbursement grants, and investment income. A formal budget is
not adopted for this fund; however, expenditures can not exceed revenues plus the beginning fund balance. Any difference
between fund revenues and expenditutes is financed with a transfer from the School Depattment’s general fund operating
budget. Itis the policy of the Newton Public school department to subsidize all fund employee benefit costs.

Revolving Fund

'The Revolving Fund is used to account for a variety of municipal functions that are expected to be self- supporting, such as
depattmental private duty details. All revolving funds, except for damage recoveries of less than $20,000; private duty details
and assignments; wetlands protection and development review activities; and police asset fotfeitures are authorized annually by
vote of the Board of Aldermen undet Massachusetts Genetal Law Chapter 44, Section 53E 2. Fund expenditures are
limited to the lesser of actual available resoutces ot the annual spending limit authotized by the Board of Aldermen.

Receipts Reserved Fund

This fund is used to account fot a variety of local revenues whose use is either legally restricted by state law, or has been
restricted by vote of the City’s Board of Aldermen, fot specific purposes and can only be spent with the prior appropriation of
the Board of Aldermen. The fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of sutplus real estate, parking meter receipts,
development mitigation funds, and revenues generated from cable television license agreements and the sale of recyclable
materials. No expenditures can be made directly from the fund; rathet, resoutces ate approptiated and transferred to the
City’s general fund for expenditure.

Federal ARRA Fund
This fund is used to account for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grant funds.

Community Development Block Grant Fund
This fund is used to account for activities undertaken with federal Community Development Block Grant funds. The Mayor

and Board of Aldermen approve each year’s grant budget. This is a reimbursement grant.

Municipal Federal Grant Fund

This fund is used to account for a variety of categorical municipal federal grants. The Board of Aldermen approve annual
grant budgets and grant budget obligations are generally limited to the lesser of actual available resources or the annual
spending limit authorized by the Board.

Municipal State Grant Fund

This fund is used to account for a variety of categorical municipal state grants other than ARRA grants. The Board of
Aldetmen apptrove annual grant budgets and grant budget obligations are limited to the lesser of actual available resources or
the annual spending limit authorized by the Board.

School State Grant Fund
This fund is used to account for all categorical public education state grants. The School Committee approves annual grant

budgets and grant budget s are recorded upon receipt of approved grant agreements.
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School Federal Grant 'und
This fund is used to account for all categorical public education federal grants other than ARRA grants. The School
Committee approves annual grant budgets and grant budgets are recorded upon receipt of approved grant agtreements.

Gift Fund
This fund is used to account for private gifts and donations that are unrelated to any other fund. Expenditures are limited to
the lesser of actual available resoutces ot the annual spending limit authotized by the Board of Aldermen and School

Committee.

Stormwater Management Fund

This fund is used to account for operation and maintenance of the City’s stormwatet drainage activities. Effective July 1, 2006
the Mayor and Board of Aldermen voted to establish the Stormwater Management special revenue fund. These activities were
previously accounted for within the Public Works department’s General Fund appropriation. A flat rate stormwater
management fee was imposed by ordinance effective July 1, 2006 and is intended to fund maintenance and operations. The
City has no stormwater management debt at this time.

Capital Projects Funds

Public Building Improvements Fund

This fund is used to account for the acquisition, construction, teconstruction, and/otr major renovation of buildings (and
related fields and facilities). Financing is generally detived from the issuance of bonds or notes. Board of Aldermen
approptiations are for the term of the project. The Public Building Commissioner is responsible for all projects accounted for
in this fund. A separate sub-fund is maintained within the fund for each major capital project.

Street Improvements Fund

This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Chapter 90 highway
construction grant funds and state construction grant for certain road and intersection improvements. Grant budgets are
recorded based upon annual grant awards from the Commonwealth, Board of Aldetmen authorization of annual spending
authotity, and approval of specific construction projects by the Massachusetts Highway Department. Chapter 90 highway
construction grants are paid to the City on a reimbursement basis. The City finances grant expenditures internally until
reimbutsements ate received from the Commonwealth. Grant revenue is recognized when approved expenditures are incurred
and submitted to the Commonwealth for reimbursement.

Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund
This fund is used to account for the acquisition of public safety and public wotks motor equipment, financed with the issuance

of debt.
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Permanent Funds

Municipal Fund
This fund is used to account for a variety of municipal purposes. A detailed report may be obtained from the Comptroller’s

Office.

Library Common Fund

This fund is used to account for the purchase of library supplies and materials and the enhancement of public library services
in Newton. The Newton Library Board of Trustees maintains custody of fund assets.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2012
Special Revenue Funds
Community
School Receipts Federal Development

ASSETS Lunch Revolving Reserved ARRA Fund Block Grant
Restricted cash and cash equivalents........oooiii i .8 371,184 S 4,696,262 S 4,777,406 S - 32,748
Restricted mvestments. .. .
Interest and dividends, .vouuieissas e iensesiassussasasonsssnase - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Tax liensgaiidmiiiaiuiiiaiiinduan i aiuiiainlanuaiis :

Charges O SErVICES. .. .ovwvmns it 622,073

Departmental and other........ 7,940 . E

Intergovernmental.........ouueeee - 240,400 10,579
Other assetssraasisaasmes - 5 « coskersan -
TOTAL ASSETS....cvvviemrareeransansneareas S 379,124 S 5318335 S 4,777,406 S 240,400 43,327
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Varrants payablesissusisiveisnesinssnsongesves - isasan wissswpssspsinsssssnpoasssss S 1,513 § 176,312 § S = 11,646

Accrued liabllities. 184,724 31,622 24,798

Accrued payroll.......... - 159,396 6,883

Other liabilities. ...... 166,075 782,830

Deferred revenue.. 7,940 106,016 -

Due to other funds. .. . 240,400
TOTAL LIABILITIES, . svscansuassnsicrcnvensranns - ssavassuasssznn-ssrasssrmssarssss 360,252 1,256,176 240,400 43,327
FUND BALANCES:

Nonspendablesssssunssansvaness <auos e yias o 55 gaizas soaz - vps . . -

Restrictediasimisiminan . i, naivien-ciesee. 18,872 4,062,159 3,032,197

Committed.... - - 1,745,209 -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.....cc.oiiiiiinianis 18,872 4,062,159 4,777,406
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES......... .S 379,124 S 5318335 S 4,777,406 S 240,400 43,327
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Speeial Revenue Funds

Municipal Municipal School School Stormwater
Federal Grant State Cirant State Grant Federal Grant Gift Management Sub-total
465429 S 357,011 § 1,440,059 03261 5 1,358468 S 833498 S 14,635,326
4,627 4,627
127,659 749,732
: 2 : : 7,940
254017 116,684 277,000 808,680
719,446 § 357,011 § 1,556,743 580,261 $ 1,358,468 $ 965,784 § 16,296,305
107,088 § 11,844 S 7037 52384 S 4385 S 5958 S 378,137
2,300 6,810 O 20,885 1,039 600 273,378
- 5,143 102,542 234,428 8,581 2,576 519,549
. . . - . 048,905
245,000 6,449 365,405
. - = - - 240,400
354,358 23,797 110,179 307,697 14,005 15,583 2,725,774
365,088 333,214 1,446,504 272,564 1,344,463 950,201 11,825,322
- : : = . - 1,745,209
365,088 333,214 1,440,504 272,564 1,344,463 950,201 13,570,531
719,446 $ 357,011 § 1,556,743 580,261 $ 1,358,468 $ 965,784 $ 16,296,305

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents............ocooioiiiiciiiiiiaiiiiii e e e
Investments.......cooveeeienions A PRI NP AR PRI T PR s

Interest and dividends. .....oicveivniineineiriinennann,

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Tax Hens...ooveviiiiiniii e
Charges fOr SEIVICES. i ..iiiuiniaiiiiinin i iiaiee e it ai s b e e inae

Departmental and other............
Intergovernmental.......

Other assets.......o.ooveineiiiiiiiiiiecninian.

TOTAL ASSETS....ccoieiiiviiiniiiniiciiiiniianes
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable....................

Accrued HabilIHes oo .vomw et

Accrued payroll.........o.o
Other liabilities. ..
Deferred revenue...
Due to other funds......

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable.............ooooin i

Restrictedy: yis gosawasiane wst - siiqesigero giseshioaresses

TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ...

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

$

Public
Building
Improvements

Capital Projects Funds

Municipal
Street Equipment
Improvements Replacement

Sub-total

7,019,535 §

90,535 § 484,807

157,101 -

$

7,594,877

157,101

7,019,535 $

247,636 § 484,807

$

7,751,978

98,167 §
197,744
893

30977 $ 15,153
84,201

$

144,297
281,945
893

296,804

115,178 15,153

427,135

6,722,731

132,458 469,654

7,324,843

6,722,731

132,458 469,654

7,324,843

7,019,535 §

247,636 $ 484,807

$

7,751,978
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Permanent Funds

Total
Nonmajor
Library Governmiental
Munieipal Common Sub-total Funds

406,189 S 220,614 S 626,803 § 22,857,006
67,354 463,075 530,429 530,429
675 1,622 2,297 2297

4,627

749,732

: . - 7,040

- - - 1,055,781
30,000 ) 30,000 30,000

504,218 $ 685,311 § 1,189,529 § 25,237,812

$ -3 - % 522,434
. 555,323

- 520,442

948,905

365,405

240,400

- - - 3,152,909

446,818 . 46,818 446,818
57,400 685,311 2711 19,892 876
: . - 1,745,209

504,218 685,311 1,189,529 22,084,903

504,218 § 685,311 § 1,189,529 § 25,237,812

(Concluded)



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF RIEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES

Penalties and INEEreSE OM LAXES. ..\ ovi e iuimyausenessenineniinniasieisieiineions

Licenses and permits. .......ocoouniiuinn
Intergovernmental .............

Charges fOr SeTVICES. 1 ovuivrimiui it i ittt e i e aai s

Fines and forfeitures......c.ocociiiiiiciciiiiiiiinn,
Investment income....
Contributions and donations.
Miscellaneous. ..o.ieiviinianns

Special assessments, ,

TOTAL REVENUES...........0.0n

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
EleCHONS oi;iwy ks sp-sin siin’ - (NsamASsTs-EATAT e o1 - 5357 ¢ 0o SRS OISO
Planning & development
Public building maintenance & Operations.....c......ivuiviiiiniiiiins

Public safety:
Policesasmammiia i dhai Lo S e s i avewas
Fire S, . 252  Giara s atas i anins - « 1o W a s a s el Caews e A e oo F oS
INSPECtioNal SELVICES. «w.uvuiaivmniinreiiaiasciieeciissecasieenieaisie

Bducation, ... ccouyiemuiammnienierieemiianimissiasoenerninns

Public works:
Streets & sidewalks. .. vouiuiiiiiiii e

Collection & disposal of solid waste
Vehicle maintenance..

Engineeringuyy: s v isxusinicae xssxaisis aaimins - Gas s asess s

Health and human services:

Health & human ServiCes. v cuurieiriniriveeiiiesaiiieiiinanainennnns

Senior SEIVICeS. ..ouviariiiasiis

Culture and recreation:
Libraries egszios s qarass  5oiviss-wasss
Parks & recreation,.....

Newton History museum. . ...o.uuiiieiie it iiiiaiiiaaans

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers 0 ceveeniniivinineiiiiaiicainns
Issuance of general obligation bonds...

Sale OF ASSELS .. wviuiii i et b iui it ie e ci e r e a e n e anann
Transfers OUL:yvevanrs- sssetwsnes musadnio- - oo yrbiasssasarvves Fiseasrraasrssmses
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)....c0vnueirsae .

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. ... .oiiciiiiiiiane i iiiiiaaeinas

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR......o0ruurimminesrrarrmraneseessioninns

Special Revenue Funds
Community
School Receipts Federal Development
Lunch Revolving Reserved ARRA Fund Block Grant
- S - S - S - 8
- - 664,406 . -
591,424 47,982 . 1,206,265 1,498,254
2,352,054 10,767,566 1,730,747 v .
- 14,099 2,600
1,620 1,320 482
- 125,959 349,000 -
- 41,71 419,800 79,612
- 277,102 *
2,945,098 11,275,769 3,167,035 1,206,265 1,577,866
= 131,025 - 64,991 1,627,789
- 163,843 -
2,997,263
- 191,645 - =
- 2,025 -
3,127,979 5,502,539 895,592
419,543 124,800
- 1437
- 37,601 -
- 3,197
- 52,653
- 24,557
1,916,275
6,461 - =
3,127,979 11,286,221 - 1,249,226 1,627,789
(182,881) (10,452) 3,167,035 (42,961) (49,923)
190,000 900,814 555,021
- 31,712 850 E
(175,000 (2,196,158) (23,400)
190,000 757,526 (1,640,287) (23,400) -
7,119 747,074 1,526,748 (66,361) (49,923)
11,753 3,315,085 3,250,658 66,361 49,923
18,872 § 4,062,159 § 4,777,406 $ - .S -
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Special Revenue Funds

Mumicipal Municipal School Sehool Stormwater
Federal Grant Stare Grant State Grant Federal Grant Gift Management Sub-total

- § § 5 s 29495 S 29,495

. < o - . - 664,406

2,396,322 §10,342 6,337,770 35,679.375 3,000 : 18,973,134

- . - . 742,162 15,592,829

- - . . 16,699

18 1,960 5400

1,333 - 542,289 1,018,581

. - - 541,153

B - 277,102

2,597,855 810,560 6,537,770 5,679,375 549,249 771,957 37,118,799

. 36,265 . 36,263

1,700,981 0,287 ] 2477 3,567,550

111,327 - 275370

270,203 260,285 30,000 3,566,751

18,048 31,369 241,062

. " . 2025

5,240,510 3,507,153 357871 20,631,644

- 610402 1,154,745

13,066 - 153,66

- 1437

37,601

24428 140,138 s 2257 - 170,020

162,794 5,285 220,732

2,500 10,571 42,271 79,899

- 10,130 - - 104,857 - 2,031,262

3 F 6,461

2,016,160 818,430 5,240,510 5,507,153 554,018 610,402 32,037,888

581,695 (7,870) 1,297,260 172,222 (4,769) 161,555 5,080,911
125,750 - 1,771,583

. . - 32,362
(527,048) (108,669) (16,358) (3,046,633)
(401,298) (108,669) . (16,358) (1,242,486)
180,397 (116,539) 1,297,260 172,223 (+.769) 145,197 3,838,425

184,691 449,753 149,304 100,342 1,349,232 805,004 9,732,106

365,088 § 333214 § 1,446,564 § 272,564 1,344,463 § 950201 % 13,570,531

(Conunued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 31}, 2112

Capital Projects Funds

Public Municipal
Building Street Equipment
Improvements Improvements Replacement Sub-total
REVENUES
Penalties and inLErCSE ON EAXES. s vuzsssnvassvarvarrsnsresdsresssssrssrsaassriainiznss O - s - S - S
Licenses, permits and fees. ... . .
Intergovernmental ...... 2,512,395 2,512,395
Chatges for Services.....ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinin,
Fines and fOrfeitULes. .. oontimieitiii e i erareraaen s aen s snnrnrrn s man e ren e - -
R T T T o3 - -
Contributions and donauons
Miscellaneous..ouvveeiiviviiienienis s e NSNS « (SN R S DA SR -
Special assessments.......
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt iiiimiiiamiiniis e iiantiensinnns - 2,512,395 - 2,512,395
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Electons......ouovviniiiaiiiias A AR AR el e T S R R - .
Planning & development., i b R - ; .
Public bulldmgmalntenance&operauons 2,318,167 - - 2,318,167
Public safety:
3 T e P i TT iy = vy Sy S eSS A £ : -
BT aenrn tmmansmrarronmnsr rasrs srnnyssnsneasreannsetsnrssransctsssnesessasns - - 529,384 529,384
Inspectional SEerviCesy cumysmmi ey ransnae s 5 SXeRas: ANEe- WAFERO G AIFLL - - -
Educations. ... g . ..jii ) sk, fs daoavas fossei - - - wosh L S5 aiimi s ko - Cauialns 2,971,783 - 2,971,783
Public works:
Streets & sidewalks, ..o.uieeee it i ans T - 2,512,395 . 2,512,395
Collection & disposal of solid waste - - -
Vchicle maintenance. ........ -
Engineering. ..........
Health and human services:
Health & human services......,
Senior Services. .. v ieriiinns
Culture and recreation:
LAbracicsst ciait canvsvassbiidsrhmsis ebove b riisiii b v v e
Parks & recreation................... SN AR N AL AN PREY 121,046 - 121,046
Newton HiStory museum......oooiiuiin i i, - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES i asivsasors - s-asaguanss -insvasnsissashiorsas 5,410,996 2,512,395 529,384 8,452,775
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. .. oottt imieiimiisrasiaimrasmieesisasnsasanrasinns (3,410,996) - (529,384) (5,940,380)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in.. S SRS AN S SRR T AR TR AR A 1,829,855 - 1,829,855
Issuance ofgenera] obluganon bonds o R S A I S PV E AN e 4,744,000 . 990,000 5,734,000
Sale Of ASSEES. .« vuraeunrrassrmsssmsanissmaer et seei s iantstiaas st smenanen e - - - -
Transfers OUtyye snugin: s ERaissa - « - (oBERNARNINEENFNBIEA VAT SIS - EESENNaEH S Wb (580,934 - (6,098) (587,032)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)...cicveviaiaiiinns 5,992,921 - 983,902 6,976,823
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. .....iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniicinsiiaiaaains 581,925 . 454,518 1,036,443
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. ....civvuviianaininnereraninns 6,140,806 132 458 15,136 6,288,400

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR........coeveirriiioreinnresineaeerons $ 6722731 S 132458 469,654 S 7,324,843




Municipal

Permanent Funds

Library

Sub-total

Tonal

Nonmajor
Governmenial

Fund:

000

879

< 8,000

{20,095) (19,216)
281,167 281,167

29,495
GO0
21,485,529
13,600,829
16,699
(13,816)
1,299,748
541,153
277,102

261,072 269,951

39,901 145

+
6,939

: +
. 6,939

312,647 32647

36,263
3,567,594
2,600,476

3,566,751
TI0,4H6
2025
23,603,427

3,667,140
13,066
1,437
3760

170,020
220,732
392,546

2,152,308
6,461

6,983

312,647 319,630

40,810,293

1,896

(51.573) (49,679)

(909,148)

3,601,440
5,734,000
32,362
(3,633,663)

5,734,337

1,896

502,322

(51,575) {49,679)

736,886 1,2392208

4,825,189

17,259,114

504,218

$

685,311 § 1,189,529 %

22,084,903

(Concluded)
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Internal Service Funds

Health Insurance Fund

This fund is used to account for group health benefits for active and retited employees of the City. The City funds 70%/75%
of group health benefits, and employees contribute 25%/30% of the cost through payroll deductions. The City maintains
separate sub-funds for plans administered by Tufts Associated Health Plan and Harvard-Pilgtim Health.

Workers” Compensation Insurance Fund

This fund is used to account for workers’ compensation benefits, replacement wages and medical benefits for qualified
employees. The fund is also used to account for the cost of providing medical benefits to public safety employees who are
injured in the line of duty. Replacement wages for public safety employees ate accounted for in the General Fund opetating
budgets of the police and fire departments.

Building Insurance Fund

This fund is used to generate annual income, which is used to finance the City’s annual property insurance premiums. Funds
are transferred to the General Fund, based upon an annual authotization vote of the Board of Aldermen.

Liability Insurance Fund

This fund is used to accumulate resources to pay liability claims in excess of $50,000. Liability claims of $15,000 or more are
financed from a judgment and settlement appropriation in the City’s Solicitor’s General Fund annual appropriation. Claims
greater than $5,000, but less than $50,000 are financed with a transfer from the Reserve Fund annual approptiation in the
General Fund.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Workers'
Health Compensation Building Liability
ASSETS Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Total
Current assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents................ooieiines S 18,726,981 S 152,537 S 23098 § 222,603 S 19,125,219
Restricted INVEStMENTS.caviereeiitviiiieiinriiereniiianaian.s - 8,092,060 409,137 - 8,501,197
Interest and dividends - 26,560 2,065 - 28,625
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Departmental and other..............ooon 40,227 - - - 40,227
Intergovernmental.......cocoviiiniiinniiiiiii 18,239 - . - 18,239
Working capital deposit......cccooveviiniiniiiviiiiiinenaan, 377,432 - - - 377,432
Total ASSCLS. . i ittt 19,162,879 8,271,157 434,300 222,603 28,090,939
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable... 247,709 39,325 - - 287,034
Accrued liabilities. . 1,031,890 e a - 1,031,890
Accrued payroll.. e = - 11,220 - - 11,220
Other Bablities. ... .e.vevreeecroseesere s snesseneenien e 1,449,618 : ; . 1,449,618
Liabilities due depositors............ivviiiiiiciiiiiiiancans. - : -
Unearned revenue........oovvviiiiiiiiiieiii i iaa g -
Due to other funds........cooviiiiiiiiii i - . Y . -
Accrued health claims payable...............ooo, 3,674,387 - - - 3,674,387
Workers' compensation claims...........ovvviinieniiiiein.. - 1,309,506 w . 1,309,506
Total current iabilies........ooocvviviiieiiiiieicinn, 6,403,604 1,360,051 . - 7,163,655
Noncurrent liabilities:
Workers' compensation claims......,....cooviereriininncnnnns - 5,179,689 - - 5,179,689
Total Hiabilities. ........coouvirierieriiiiannnay, 6,403,604 6,539,740 - - 12,943,344

FUND NET ASSETS
Unrestricted......oooovuiiiii e S 12,759,275 S 1,731,417 S 434,300 S 222,603 S 15,147,595




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Werkers'
Health Compensation Building Laability
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Tonal
OPERATING REVENUES
Employer contributions. ..........veeruiviiimmeniiimieeeeanieiiieeneeeienans $ 40,350,518  § 1,577,275 § - 5 - 8 41,927,793
Plan member contibUtioNS. , ... ...ue.iesrreseseersiorsensiersaeerannesies 10,125,077 . . . 10,125,077
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. .......cccoiviviiiiniiiinnincinnns 50,475,595 1,571,275 - - 52,052,870
OPERATING EXPENSES
Change in incurred but not reported liability................ B SOt (636,271) (527,715) - g (1,163,986)
Self insurance claims..........ocooeiviiieininn. 45,572,896 1,862,302 . 47,435,198
TNSULANCE PIETMUMTIS. . .00i vt iniiinien s eeniastisibanesrihnseetesboseseeiiannss 542,076 . 542,076
Administrative eXPenses. ...oivviiveiiiiisnsinein i .. 2,643,840 76,000 . 2,719,849
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...........cocooviiiiiinine e, 48,122,541 1,410,596 = - 49,533,137
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....ooviiiiiieeiiiii it 2,353,054 166,679 - - 2,519,733
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
TRVESHMENE MCOME. ... cantitiiniinint e eia et s e e s 45,823 (38,518) 8,480 571 16,356
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS. . ........cooviuiiiianinnnn 2,398,877 128,161 8,480 51 2,536,089
TRANSFERS
0T T - - (398,723) - (398,723)
CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS. ....uuiuuiisicumssinsesisimsieiossnsnseancs 2,398,877 128,161 (390,243) 571 2,137,366
FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......coooiaiiieiiniennn, 10,360,398 1,603,256 824,543 222,032 13,010,229
FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR. ...cuviiviiveiiiiieniionieaiinees § 12,759,275  § 1,731,417 § 434,300 222,603 $ 15,147,595




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOY'S

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Workers'
Health Compensation Building Liability
Insurance Tnsurance Insurance Insurance Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users.........., $ 10,125,077 § - 5 $ 3 10,125,077
Receipts from intecfund services provided, .. 40,292,052 1,577,275 41,869,327
Payments to vendors/providers..........ccuu. (47,077,989 (1,930,614 (49,008,603)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: oociiviiiiiiiiiiiasiiimimemiiiaiianns 3,339,140 (353,339) . 2,985,801
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers QUG srasres arsettiasaieies - bega- o a6sdbioerefire covvwhars., Son s srsmms - (398,723) B (398,723)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales Of INVESHMENES, 1y vervuviruaeiiiianieteamiersasietesre s ssuesateeaee s inie . 76,181 377418 . 453,599
TNVESTMENT LNCOME wunrusssnmeiivssnsannasn o5s o SaxBRRET S0 HHETRNSEEEER 0L AR Gakas aRaras 45,823 (39,609) 12,423 571 19,208
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES, .auiiiiiamiiiiiniieiiiiisnnieiannas . 45,823 36,572 389,841 571 472,807
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASITEQUIVALENTS. 1iiiuieiiiciimniicaesime ecamaeraarenas 3,384,963 (316,767) (8,882) 571 3,059,885
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.....couoiiemimmmininisiinens 15,342,018 469,304 31,980 222,032 16,065,334
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (reported as restricted). ........... $ 18,726,981  § 152,537 $ 23,098 § 222,603 § 19,125,219
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
OPerating iNCOME (I088)....vueeiaiustiarunsiasssionaressnsennssstiemsssaissssmtsummmmsmnenroeernees $ 2353,054  $ 166,679 $ -3 -8 2,519,733
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activitics:
Changes in assets and liabilitics:
Departmental and Oter ...vivviniiiiuiiiiiii i e (40,227) (0,227)
Intergovernmental..... (18,239) (18,239)
Working capital depostt. ... 122,987 - 122,987
Wacrants payable.... 247,709 19,233 266,942
Accrued payroll ... - (6,493) - 6,493)
Other liabilities. .. 106,948 - 106,948
Accrued liabilities, 915,370 (5,043) - 910,327
Accrued health claims payable............... (348,462 (348,462)
Workers' compensation - (327,715) (521,7115)
Total adjustments......c.cooueiees 986,086 (520,018 Ao, 008
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES... $ 3,339,140 § (353,339) S -8 - % 2,985,801




Private Purpose Trust Funds

Chaffin Fducation Fund
This fund is used to account for higher education loans and grants issued to Newton high school graduates who are unable to
afford the cost of college education. Revenues consist ptimatily of investment income on fund cash and investments.

Scovell Education Fund

This fund is used to account for prizes and awards to students for distinguished scholatships awarded at Newton high schools.
The prizes are subject to approval of the School Committee. Revenues consist ptimarily of investment income on fund cash
and investments.

Gorin Education Fund
This fund is used to account for loans to Newton high school graduates for attending institutions of higher education.
Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and investments.

Cousens Welfare [fund

This fund is used to account for loans and or grants to Newton residents who qualify as poor. At least 90% of the annual
income of the fund is to be distributed to the deserving poor and not more than 20% of this sum may be loaned to individuals
who are temporarily in financial need. Revenues consist ptimarily of investment income on fund cash and investments.

School Scholarship Fund
This fund is used to account for a variety of public school scholarship funds. Detailed fund information is available from the

City Comptroller’s Office.

Kendrick Welfare Fund
This fund is used to account for distributions to needy industtious poor of Newton, especially widows and orphans.

Read Charity Fund

This fund is used to account for the perpetual maintenance of the donot’s grave site, an annual sleigh ride or picnic for the
children of the Newton Corner section of Newton, free lectures on scientific subjects in Newton Cotnet, library book
purchases, and assistance to poor widows of the City. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and
investments.

Spear Infirmary Fund
The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used to “...provide cheer for the inmates of the City farm.” The

fund has been inactive for a number of years.

Mabel Riley Senior Fund

The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used for “...special treats for residents of nursing homes and
homes for the elderly on holidays and for comforts for the sick throughout the year.”

Elderly Tax Relief Fund

The City has accepted Massachusetts General Law Chapter 60, Section 3D, which authotizes the implementation of a
voluntary tax check-off program for purposes of defraying real estate taxes for eldetly and disabled Newton taxpayers with low
incomes. This fund is used to account for the receipt of voluntary donations and awards voted by the Taxation Aid
Committee.

Arnold Daniels Fund
Pursuant to the terms of the Arnold S. Daniels, Jr. Revocable Trust, dated July 20, 2000, this fund is used to assist needy
residents of Newton by providing them with monetaty distributions to provide food, sheltet, and clothing.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNIE 30, 2012

Chaffin Scovell Gorin Cousens
Fducation ILducation Lducation Welfare
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents., ... S 282,544 S 28218 § 6,500 S 755,890
EOAVESENCALS et vvs s v sas s asseressassscsasuesseanssnssoeserarsaseens 4,383,783 1,049,239 : 1,205,439
Interest and divIdends. .. oo oo s 9,552 3,434 5 4,019
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
BRI e e sasroy s AR N S R T S R A S SR A - - 19,663 -
Total ASSELS. .. ..ottt et 4,675,879 1,080,891 26,163 1,965,348
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable:cismnnnnmnnaminmaninmin s - - -
Due to the general fund............coooeiii 17,601 - - =
Total Babiltes. o oottt 17,601 - - -
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for other purposes.............c.coeoviiiiiiii i, $ 4,658,278 § 1,080,891 $ 26,163 $ 1,965,348




S

$

School Kendrick Read Spear Mabel Riley Elderly Arnold Daniels
Scholarship Welfare Charity Infirmary Senior Tax Relief Fund Total

695,007 § 3,110 § 43,161 S 4,661 S 38,017 § 1,139 § 49372 8 1,907,619
535,462 - - - - - - 7,173,923
2,055 - - - 19,060
3 : . . . ; 19,663
1,232,524 3,110 43,161 4,661 38,017 1,139 49,372 9,120,265
1,000 . : . 1,000
. . : . . 17,601
1,000 : - : . 18,601
1,231,524 § 3,110 $ 43,161 4,661 $ 38,017 $ 1,139 § 49372 § 9,101,664
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Chaffin Scovell Gorin Cousens
liducation liducation Fducation Welfare
ADDITIONS
Contrabutions:
Private QOnAIIONS. .o e s r ettt e et b et e e 3 - 8 - 5 - % 21,696
Net investment income:
TObORst s s sivvs il bt da Wosstiv e ans S H R e Y 128,680 28,714 - 149,024
TOTAL ADBEFTONS: i s E i dvaiive e sdliles sab caies 128,680 28,714 - 170,720
DEDUCTIONS
AAMINISTALON CXPENEC. . vuvsvneiarnvsarasariorsarinssasriniiesriesiesris 1,389 - - 30,250
liducational scholarships & awards. ... 163,666 28,000 . 60,392
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS v vivebvarssssisuissrvsssassssiasmmannye 165,055 28,000 - 90,642
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS . oot ieireeierim e rernmarnensrrranes (36,375) 714 - 80,078
NIET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. . ..o oovrvarenrrrnssarennes 4,694,653 1,080,177 26,163 1,885,270

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR. ... iviiiiiiciiniiimiiiinisiinigaeiasses S 4,658,278 $ 1,080,891 $ 26,163 $ 1,965,348




S

S

Schaool Kendrick Rend Spear Mabel Riley Elderly Arnold Danicls
Scholarship Welfare Charity Infirmary Senior Tax Relef Fund ‘T'otal

65,148 S - 3 - - 8 - 5 1,587 § - S 88,431
10,979 8 112 12 93 3 130 317,760
76,127 8 112 12 98 1,590 130 406,191
350 - - - - - 31,989
97,056 - 1,200 1,150 351,464
97,406 - - - = 1,200 1,150 383,453
(21,279) 8 112 12 98 390 (1,020) 22,738
1,252,803 3,102 43,049 4,649 37,919 749 50,392 9,078,926
1,231,524 S 3110 S 43,161 4,661 S 38,017 S 1,139 S 49,372 S 9,101,664
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Agency Fund

This fund is used to account for monies held on behalf of parties othet than the City, such as state and federal agencies;
independent not-for-profit organizations for which the City collects private donations; the Metro Fire District; and public
school student activities.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

AGENCY FUND

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents..............coocoii .
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Departmental and

other......... R A S

TOtal ASSELS. . vueeeineie e as

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable.

Payroll withholdings...............oooo .

Other liabilities. ..

Total liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012

1,225,873 77,854,951 (77,121,540) S 1,959,284
p 344,195 (325,743) 18,452
1225873 S 78,199,146 S (77,447,283) § 1,977,736
-3 77,104,142 § (77,103,088) $ 1,054
204,433 75,615,198 (75,000,146) 819,485
1,021,440 2,239,753 (2,103,996) 1,157,197
1225873 §  154959,093 §  (154,207,230) $ 1,977,736
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General Fund

This is the City’s primary operating fund. Tt accounts for all financial resources of the government, except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Appropriations Orginal Budget Budget Revisions
City Clerk/Cletk of the Board
Personal Services S - M) 816,393 12,602
Expenses 5,621 73,439 -
Capital Outlay - 245,472 (7,500)
Fringe Benefits -
Total City Clerk/Clerk of the Board 5,621 1,135,304 5,102
Mayor's Office
Personal Services 843,544 (232,426)
Expenses s 38,739 -
Capital Outlay - -
Fringe Benefits 80,882 (238)
Total Mayor's Office - 963,165 (232,664)
Comptroller's Office/Property Insurance
Personal Services 5 405,108 9,610
Expenses 8,033 509,463
Capital Outlay - -
Fringe Benefits < 77,904 (4,525)
Total Comptroller's Office/Property Insurance 8,033 992,475 5,085
Purchasing/General Services
Personal Services 280,200 10,562
Expenses - 47,806 -
Capital Outlay - - -
Fringe Benefits - 50,155 (3,750
Total Purchasing/General Services 378,161 6,812
Assessing Department
Personal Services = 933,244 18,988
Expenses 37,835 -
Fringe Benefits - 162,087 (9,750)
Total Assessing Department - 1,133,166 9,238
Treasury & Collection Department
Personal Services - 554,516 10,574
Expenscs 2,700 417,742 40,127
Capital Outlay = - -
Fringe Benefits - 101,196 (7,500)
Total Treasury & Collection Department 2,700 1,073,454 43,201
City Solicitor/Judgments & Settlements
Personal Services B 881,654 17,089
Expenses - 199,252 :
Fringe Benefits = 84,499 22,497
1,165,405 39,586

Total City Solicitor's Office/Settlements
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FY 2012 Budget

Total Revised

Expenditures and

Encumbrances/
Continued Closed to

As Amended I'Y 2012 Budget Transfers Appropdatons Fund Balance
828,995 828,995 § 822,938 § - 5 6,057
73,439 79,060 68,906 5,058 5,096
237,972 237,972 235,573 - 2,399
1,140,406 1,146,027 1,127,417 5,058 13,552
611,118 611,118 585,125 - 25,993
38,739 38,739 38,486 253
80,044 80,644 62,132 18,512
730,501 730,501 685,743 44,758
414,718 414,718 399,762 - 14,956
509,463 517,496 486,491 30,285 720
73,379 73,379 70,620 - 2,759
997,560 1,005,593 956,873 30,285 18,435
290,762 290,762 270,178 - 20,584
47,806 47,806 (2,333) 2,538 47,601
46,405 46,405 36,459 - 9,946
384,973 384,973 304,304 2,538 78,131
952,232 952,232 945,615 - 6,617
37,835 37,835 37,363 - 472
152,337 152,337 135,741 - 16,596
1,142,404 1,142,404 1,118,719 - 23,685
565,090 565,090 558,622 - 6,468
457,869 460,569 417,766 6,253 36,550
93,696 93,696 87,263 - 6;433
1,116,655 1,119,355 1,063,651 6,253 49,451
898,743 898,743 884,405 - 14,338
199,252 199,252 145,116 41,916 12,220
106,996 106,996 106,994 - 2
1,204,991 1,204,991 1,136,515 41,916 26,560
(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FEncumbrances/
Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Appropriations Orginal Budget Budget Revisions
Human Resources Department
Personal Services 598,287 12,004
LExpenses - 151,121 -
Fringe Benefits - 332,708 (5,301)
Total Human Resources Department 1,082,116 6,703
Information Technology Department
Personal Services 569,421 (18,820)
Expenses 766 351,587 -
Capital Outlay - 95,528 30,000
Fringe Benefits - 97,371 (6,000
Total Information Technology Department 766 1,113,907 5,180
Election Commission
Personal Services - 427,712 4,731
Expenses 4,200 76,050 -
Fringe Benefits - 62,443 (3,000)
Total Election Commission 4,200 566,205 1,731
Licensing Commission
Expenses 1,675 -
Planning & Development Department
Personal Services = 766,403 22,680
Iixpenses 21,217 43,215 -
Capital Outlay 2,045 - =
Fringe Benefits - 94,541 17,503
Total Planning & Development Department 23,262 904,159 40,183
Public Building Department
Personal Services 3,550 1,848,435 (26,739)
Expenses 30,364 1,278,265 -
Capital Outlay 142 4,500 -
Fringe Benefits - 382,042 871
Total Public Building Department 34,056 3,513,242 (25,868)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT TOTAL 78,638 14,022,434 (95,711)
Police Department
Personal Services - 14,063,665 267,009
Expenses 1,498 921,257 10,000
Capital Outlay - 225,000 -
Fringe Benefits - 2,384,427 (195,275)
Total Police Department 1,498 17,594,349 81,734
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Encumbrances/

I'Y 2012 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2012 Budget Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
610,291 610,291 535,501 - 74,790
151,121 151,121 125,162 9,404 16,555
327,407 327,407 262,371 - 65,036
1,088,819 1,088,819 923,034 9,404 156,381
550,601 550,601 497,624 52,977
351,587 352,353 344,629 - 7,724
125,528 125,528 87,581 37,903 44
91,371 91,371 84,301 - 7,070
1,119,087 1,119,853 1,014,135 37,903 67,815
432,443 432,443 342,690 89,753
76,050 80,250 69,576 10,674
59,443 59,443 49,126 10,317
567,936 572,136 461,392 110,744
1,675 1,675 1,128 547
789,083 789,083 788,675 - 408
43,215 64,432 39,609 20,249 4,574

- 2,045 2,045 - =
112,044 112,044 109,052 - 2,992
944,342 967,604 939,381 20,249 7,974
1,821,696 1,825,246 1,782,319 - 42,927
1,278,265 1,308,629 1,231,748 46,118 30,763

4,500 4,642 3,685 957 -
382,913 382,913 382,796 - 117
3,487,374 3,521,430 3,400,548 47,075 73,807
13,926,723 14,005,361 13,132,840 200,681 671,840
14,330,674 14,330,674 14,309,263 - 21,411
931,257 932,755 923,950 61 8,744
225,000 225,000 223,704 - 1,296
2,189,152 2,189,152 2,160,778 - 28,374
17,676,083 17,677,581 17,617,695 61 59,825

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Fire Department
Personal Services E 13,214,499 760,373
Expenses 15,365 651,320 75,000
Capital Outlay 19,747 31,000 -
Fringe Benefits - 2,533,206 (320,428)
Total Fire Department 35,112 16,430,025 514,945
Inspectional Services Department
Personal Services = 881,996 8,202
Expenses 5,100 43,165 —
Fringe Benefits - 155,546 (3,761)
Total Inspectional Services Department 5,100 1,080,707 4,441
Weights & Measures Department
Personal Services 66,195 1,625
[ixpenses 2,160 -
Capital Outlay - -
Fringe Benefits 7,231 (583
Total Weights & Measures Department 75,586 1,042
PUBLIC SAFETY TOTAL 41,710 35,180,667 602,162
NEWTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 375,273 170,199,760 (581,924)
Public Works Department
Personal Services 17,576 7,304,779 8,295
Lxpenses 50,664 9,472,992 -
Capital Outlay 185,079 172,000 -
Fringe Benefits - 1,661,671 (170,570)
Total Public Works Department 253,319 18,611,442 (162,275)
PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL 253,319 18,611,442 (162,275)
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Encumbrances/

FY 2012 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended IY 2012 Budget Transfers Approptiations FFund Balance
13,974,872 13,974,872 13,927,980 - 46,892
726,320 741,685 670,446 34,387 36,852
31,000 50,747 13,958 36,789 -
2,212,778 2,212,778 2,185,137 - 27,641
16,944,970 16,980,082 16,797,521 71,176 111,385
890,198 890,198 878,108 - 12,090
43,165 48,265 45,688 1,375 1,202
151,785 151,785 139,926 - 11,859
1,085,148 1,090,248 1,063,722 1,375 25,151
67,820 67,820 67,786 - 34
2,160 2,160 2,029 - 131
6,648 6,648 6,646 2
76,628 76,628 76,461 167
35,782,829 35,824,539 35,555,399 72,612 196,528
169,617,836 169,993,109 168,562,830 1,429,711 568
7,313,074 7,330,650 7,033,989 - 296,661
9,472,992 9,523,656 9,259,031 83,889 180,736
172,000 357,079 55,694 301,385 -
1,491,101 1,491,101 1,418,375 - 72,726
18,449,167 18,702,486 17,767,089 385,274 550,123
18,449,167 18,702,486 17,767,089 385,274 550,123
(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Health & Human Services Department
Personal Services - 2,088,765 119,817
Expenses - 366,040 (27,000)
Capital Outlay 1,500 -
Fringe Benefits 499,410 (47,785)
Total Public Health Department 2,955,715 45,032
Senior Services Department
Personal Services 240,312 6,015
Expenses - 272,673 -
Fringe Benefits - 56,841 (3,750)
Total Human Services Department - 569,826 2,265
Veteran Services Department
Personal Services 140,658 3,156
Expenses 116,499 75,000
Fringe Benefits 35,341 (1,516
Total Veteran Services Department 292,498 76,640
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES TOTAL - 3,818,039 123,937
Newton Public Library
Personal Services 3,263,678 56,185
Expenses 1,069,468 -
Capital Outlay 2,300 >
Fringe Bencfits 690,992 (105,863)
Total Newton Public Library - 5,026,438 (49,678)
Parks & Recreation Department
Personal Services 11,125 2,206,632 48,423
[ixpenses - 1,292,616 536,965
Capital Outlay - -
Fringe Bencfits - 388,531 (22,770)
Total Parks & Recreation Department 11,125 3,887,779 562,618
Newton History Museum
Personal Services B 183,189 4,581
Expenses - 20,600 -
Fringe Benefits - 33,225 (3,000
Total Newton History Museum - 237,014 1,581
CULTURE & RECREATION TOTAL 11,125 9,151,231 514,521
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Encumbrances/

FY 2012 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2012 Budget Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
2,208,582 2,208,582 2,127,443 - 81,139
339,040 339,040 304,220 2,772 32,048
1,500 1,500 1,428 - 72
451,625 451,625 409,832 - 41,793
3,000,747 3,000,747 2,842,923 2,772 155,052
246,327 246,327 245,946 381
272,673 272,673 272,267 406
53,091 53,091 50,892 - 2,199
572,091 572,091 569,105 2,986
143,814 143,814 133,177 10,637
191,499 191,499 174,985 16,514
33,825 33,825 26,056 7,769
369,138 369,138 334,218 34,920
3,941,976 3,941,976 3,746,246 2,772 192,958
3,319,863 3,319,863 3,229,465 - 90,398
1,069,468 1,069,468 964,614 10,339 94,515

2,300 2,300 2,300 - -
585,129 585,129 572,271 - 12,858
4,976,760 4,976,760 4,768,650 10,339 197,771
2,255,055 2,266,180 2,233,714 32,466
1,829,581 1,829,581 1,786,062 - 43,519
365,761 365,761 326,992 - 38,769
4,450,397 4,461,522 4,346,768 - 114,754
187,770 187,770 186,815 - 955
20,600 20,600 19,437 - 1,163
30,225 30,225 27,196 3,029
238,595 238,595 233,448 5,147
9,665,752 9,676,877 9,348,866 10,339 317,672

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Approprations Original Budget Budget Revisions
OTHER
Interest on property tax refunds - -
DEBT SERVICE (PRINCIPAL & INTEREST)
Debt Service 16,056,700 =
RETIREMENT
Personal Services 179,103 3,275
[Expenses 72,225 -
Fringe Benefits - 25,027,821 130,245
Total Retirement 25,279,149 133,520
APPROPRIATED RESERVES
Reserve Fund (Snow & Ice) - 500,000 (500,000)
Reserve Fund (Budget Reserve) 1,361,225 (1,000,000)
Total Budgetary Reserves 1,861,225 (1,500,000)
STATE & COUNTY ASSESSMENTS 5,550,761 38,830
SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS 3,096,013 1,922,304
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,856,078 299,731,408 995,364
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
Workers Comp Self Insurance Fund - Municipal 700,000 199,375
Workers Comp Self Insurance Fund - School 250,000 -
School Athletic Revolving Fund - School 786,414 100,000
School Lunch Fund - School - 258,076 (68,076)
Angier Elementary Improvement Fund - - 750,000
Municipal Building Improvement Fund 65,000
Capital Stabilization Fund - Municipal 57,512
Rainy Day Stabilzation Fund - 3,500,000
OPEB Fund - 175,000
Federal Grant Special Revenue Fund 125,750 -
Total Transfers to Other Funds 2,120,240 4,778,811
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS $ 3,856,078 % 301,851,648 $ 5,774,175
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Encumbrances/

FY 2012 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2012 Budget Transfers Appropriations I"und Balance
= 493,719 (493,719)
16,056,700 16,056,700 16,055,273 1,427
182,378 182,378 182,376 - 2
72,225 72,225 72,225 - -
25,158,066 25,158,006 25,098,031 - 60,035
25,412,669 25,412,669 25,352,632 - 60,037
361,225 361,225 - 361,225
361,225 361,225 - 361,225
5,589,591 5,589,591 5,503,956 85,635
1,922,304 5,018,317 2,483,005 2,535,312
300,726,772 304,582,850 298,001,855 4,636,701 1,944,294
899,375 899,375 899,375
250,000 250,000 250,000 .
886,414 886,414 886,414 -
190,000 190,000 190,000 =
750,000 750,000 750,000
65,000 65,000 65,000 - -
57,512 57,512 57,512
3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000
175,000 175,000 175,000
125,750 125,750 125,750 -
6,899,051 6,899,051 6,899,051
307,625,823 $ 311,481,901 S 304,900,906 s 4,636,701 % 1,944,294

(Concluded)
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Community Preservation Fund

This fund accounts for the 1% local property tax surcharge that the voters of the City approved in November of 2001 for
open space, historic resource and affordable housing purposes. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts currently matches local

surcharge revenue on a dollar for dollar basis.

The Board of Aldermen has appropriation authority over all community preservation funds; however, all appropriation
recommendations must originate with the nine member community preservation committee.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Encumbrances/
Continued Current Year Original
Approptiations Appropriations Budget
Administration & operations $ 12,810 144,249 157,059
2012 CPA appropriation reserve - 1,340,688 1,340,688
Open space:
Open space reserve - - -
Kesseler Woods land acquisition - 540,750 540,750
Flowed Meadow improvements Phase IIT - Planning 30,700 - 30,700
Recreation Open Space Plan - -
Kesseler Woods debt service - - -
Total - Open space projects 30,700 540,750 571,450
Historic resources:
Historic preservation reserve - 293,008 293,008
Atchival survey 46,640 - 46,640
Histotic building assessment (1830-1840) 37,500 37,500
Municipal building historic assessment 98,780 98,780
Civil war monument repaits - =
Historical burial grounds restoration 13,076 - 13,076
Historical butial grounds testoration Phase 11 178,170 - 178,170
Dutant Kentick Homestead 104 - 104
Durant Kenrick Homestead preservation restricdon 2,717,300 - 2,717,300
Ileritage landscape inventory - -
Newton History Museum Archives Project 49,420 49,420
Farlow Park Pond Improvements 10,000 10,000
Jackson Homstead Museum Restoration 29,744 29,744
Archives Preservaton 12,168 - 12,168
Angino farm barn rehabilitation 79,396 79,396
Angino farm farmhouse deleading - -
Archacological Resources Survey 9,884 - 9,884
Total - Histotic preservaton 3,282,182 293,008 3,575,190
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[incumbrances/

Budger Final Continued Closed 1o
Revistons Budget Expended Approptatons Fund Balance
- 157,059 $ 116,556 6,000 § 34,503
11,426 1,352,114 - - 1,352,114
30,700 30,700 - - 30,700
- 540,750 540,750 -
(30,700) - - -
4,000 4,000 3,655 345
4,000 575,450 544,405 345 30,700
27,862 320,870 - 320,870
(2,640) 44,000 44,000 -
- 37,500 : 37,500 =
’ 98,780 98,780 2 =
134,000 134,000 134,000 -
- 13,076 - 13,076 -
- 178,170 122,382 55,788 -
104 - 104 -
2,717,300 1,693,011 1,024,289
- 49,420 18,572 30,848
- 10,000 10,000 -
(16,228) 13,516 13,516 -
(7,860) 4,308 3,086 1,222
- 79,396 7422 71,974 -
(1,134) 8,750 8,750 - -
134,000 3,709,190 2,019,519 1,368,801 320,870

(Continucd)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Encumbrances/
Continued Current Year Orngnal
Appropriations Appropriations Budget
Community housing:
Community housing reserve . 293,008 293,008
192 Lexington Street housing 59,999 - 59,999
2148-2150 Commonwealth Avenue housing - -
61 Pearl Sreet housing, 665,500 - 665,500
Newton Homebuyer Assistance Program [ 629,323 - 629,323
248 Lot Street Housing Assistance . - -
Total - community housing 1,354,822 293,008 1,647,830
Community recreation:
20 Rogers Street debr service - Treasury 2 317,157 317,157
Albemarle community classroom - Parks 12,929 12,929
Angino farm barn rehabilitation 465,001 465,001
Houghton garden fence 3 - -
Toral - community recreation 477930 317,157 795,087
TOTAL CPA FUND $ 5,158,444 $ 2,928,860 8,087,304
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Encumbrances/

Budget Final Continued Closed to
Revisions Budget Expended Appropriations I'und Balance
46,446 339,454 - - 339,454
(46,446) 13,553 13,553
- 665,500 509,395 156,105
- 629,323 308,292 321,031 -
1,647,830 831,240 477,136 339,454
- 317,157 317,157 -
(11,426) 1,503 1,503
465,001 20,790 444211
(11,426) 783,661 339,450 444,211 -
138,000 $ 8,225,304 $ 3,851,170 $ 2,296,493 $ 2,077,641

(Concluded)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

I'OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

School Building Improvement Fund:

Peirce Elementary School Repairs - 2005

Newton South High Athletic Field Improvements - 2009
F.A Day HVAC Improvements - 2009 & 2010

Angier School Boiler Replacement - 2009

F.A Day Renovations - 2010

Burr Elementary Window Replacement - 2010

Education Center Emergency Generator Replacement - 2010

Williams Boiler Replacement - 2010
Countryside Elevator Lift - 2010
Burr/H. Mann/Zervas Modular Classrooms - 2012
School Boiler Replacement - 2011
Various Elementary School Modulars - 2011
School Roof Repairs - 2011
School Masonry Repairs - 2011
Elementary School Roof Top Exhaust Units - 2011
Horace Mann School Window/Door Replacement - 2011
F.A Day Renovations/Addition - 2012
F.A Day Renovations - 2012
School Accessibility Improvements - 2012
Lincoln-Eliot Mechanical Upgrades - 2012
Bowen Masonry Repairs - 2012
Burr Mechanical Upgrades - 2012
Carr Elementary Evaluation/Design - 2012
Burr/H. Mann/Zervas Sprinkler Systems ~ 2012
School Electrical Upgrades - 2012
School Emergency Generators - 2012
School Boiler Replacement - 2012
School Mansory Repairs - 2012

Total School Building Improvement Fund

High School Renovation Fund:

Newton South High School Renovations

Newton North High School Renovations
Total High School Renovation Fund

Angier School Improvement Fund
Angier Elementary Sschool Feasibility Study

Municipal Building Improvement Fund:

Energy Audits - Various Buildings - 2010

Energy Conservation - Various Buildings - 2010

Fire Station #4 Plantings & Landscaping - 2010

Fire Station #4 Window Repairs - 2012

Fire Station #7 Renovations - 2010

Fire Station #3 & #10 Architectural Study - 2011

Police Station HQ Lobby Safety Improvements - 2011

Manet Rd Communications Building Replacement - 2012

Crafts St DPW Yard Fuel Tank Replacement - 2010

City Hall Window Replacement/Repairs - 2011

City Hall Electrical & Boiler Improvements - 2012

Lower [alls Community Center ADA Compliance - 2012

Lower FFalls Community Center Improvements - 2012
Total Municipal Building Improvement Fund

CH 90 Highway Improvement Fund:
Contract MA 3246207
Contract MA 0035509
Contract MA 0044606
Contract MA 0048380
Contract MA 0050910
Total CH 90 Highway Improvement Fund

Continued FY 2012
Appropriations Appropriations I'ransfers
5 2,787 S
651,688 .
5,150 (5,150)
47,249 (47,249)
144,896 .
367,760 (264,008)
199,828 -
31,518 (13,984)
40,867 - (40,867)
- 1,111,500 51,420
350,000 - 63,316
51,420 (51,420)
792,571 -
450,000 -
100,000
494,500 -
- 6,750,000
643,500 -
300,000 -
- - 250,000
- 60,000
. 250,000
300,000 .
1,474,000 -
200,000 -
315,000 (150,000)
450,000 -
- 485,000 -
3,730,234 12,029,000 102,058
3,386 @an
9,374,465 -
9,377,851 - (11)
- 750,000
165,070 (148,481) 148,481
6,739 - (6,739)
14,962 - (566)
. 90,000 -
1,984,435 -
130,000 -
118,500 74,503
- 40,000
33,266 (33,266)
125,000 . -
- 300,000 -
- - 25,000
- - 149,450
2,577,972 241,519 396,863
166,641 (166,641)
2,650 (2,650)
10,382 -
85,041 (27,191)
4,570,081 196,482
4,834,795 - -
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Expended Fincumbered Balance
2787 § . .
196,235 314,383 141,070
144,896 -
103,752 - -
98,729 47,650 53,449
17,534 . -
1,117,119 : 45,801
413,316 - .
221,695 472,008 98,868
131,968 46,842 271,190
100,000 ] .
21,311 - 473,189
: ; 6,750,000
329,505 292340 21,655
40,564 - 259,436
- - 250,000
60,000
- 250,000
. 300,000 .
4,049 1,245,000 224,951
7.802 - 192,198
3,969 161,031
14,688 435,312
1,863 - 483,137
2,971,782 2,718,223 10,171,287
3,375 = 2
3,232,720 2,646,468 3,495,277
3,236,095 2,646,468 3,495,277
750,000
148,481 16,589
14,396 -
- - 90,000
1,883,713 1,000 99,722
85,035 44,965 -
35,027 125,900 32076
39,975 - 25
. - 125,000
107,041 8,027 184,032
4,500 - 20,500
- 149,450 -
2,318,168 329,342 568,844
7.236 3,146 -
= s 57,850
2,455,263 1,328,678 982,622
2,462,499 1,331,824 1,040,472
(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSIFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Massworks Road Improvement Fund:
2012 Grant Award

Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund:
Automated Trash & Recycling Receptacles - 2009
DPW Equipment Replacement - 2012
Trommel Screen - 2010
Fire Engine Replacement - 2012
IFire Engine Replacement - 2010

Total Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund

Park Improvement Fund

Gath Pool Repairs - 2012

Bobby Bracelance Playground Improvements - 2012
Total Park Improvement Fund

Water System Improvement Fund:
MWRA - Water System - Accumulated Interest Income
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2005
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2009
MWRA - Water System Improvements - III Transfer
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2010
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2011
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2012
Water Meter Replacement - 2009
Waban Hill Reservoir Improvements - 2001/2003
‘Total Water System Improvement Fund

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund:
Sewer Emergency Repairs (City of Newton)
Cochitutate Sewer Repait (Town of Wellesley Contb)
Oakdale Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010
FFarina Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010
Irving St Sewer Improvements - 2010
Old Farm Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010
Woodland/Studio Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010
Old Farm Rd Sewer Improvements - 2011
Aspen Ave /Hawthorne Ave/Studio Ed Ext - 2011
Quinobequin Rd Sewer Repairs - 2011
Grodon Rd Sewer Repairs - 2011
Newtonville Ave Sewer Repairs - 2011
Wood End Rd Sewer Repairs - 2011
Phase I Underground Infrastructure Impv Plan - 2012
MWRA - Sewer &I - Accumulated Interest Income
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2007
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2008
MWRA - Infittration/Inflow - 2009
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2010
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2011

"Total Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund

Capital Stabilization Fund:

Reserved for Debt Funded Projects

Reserved for Water/Sewer Appropriations

Designated for North High School Debt Service

Designated for Fire Station Renovations

Designated for Energy Conservation Projects

Designated for Ordinary Capital Appropriations
Total Capital Stabilizatdon Fund

Total Capital Projects Funds

Continued FY 2012
Appropriations Appropriations Transfers
- 1,850,000
598 . (598)
- 390,000 .
5,500 - (5,500)
- 600,000 -
9,038 - -
15,136 990,000 (6,098)
100,000
150,000 -
250,000
25,461 12,866 1
17,480 - 1)
16,209 - -
174,650 m
828,387 -
1,933,657 - -
. 1,360,200
4,285,382 -
252,245 . 1
7,533,471 1,373,066 -
10,000
135,478
26,083
50,500
60,518
44,888
24,417 .
787,000 26,625
800,000 -
200,000 .
170,000 (26,625)
160,000 .
160,000 -
- 4,239,878
16,798 5,767
63,577 -
51,632
4,009
328,948 .
- 1,046,000
3,093,848 5,291,645 -
3,107 4,622
105,000 - -
9,601,557 - (4,800,000)
1,698 6,961 -
116,627 428,857 (297,931)
111,500 - (76,991)
9,939,489 435,818 (5,170,300)
41,102,796 $ 22,461,048 S (3,927,488)
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Expended Lincumbered Balance

49,897 105,103 1,695,000
368,014 21,986

520,346 2,652 77002

9,038 - .

529,384 370,666 98,988
19,025 9,450 71,525
102,021 42,848 5,131
121,046 52,298 76,656

- - 38,328

- 17,479 -

- 16,209 -
114,888 2,670 50,091
TRA83T 32,882 10,668
531,221 970,481 431,955

- - 1,360,200

1,645,415 321,180 2318787

1,779 2,180 248,287

3,078,140 1,370,081 4,458,316

10,000

135478

26,083

+ 50,500

- . 60,518
18,377 26,511 -
12,400 12,017 -

774,594 12,405 26,626

69,000 - 731,000

) x 200,000
103,716 - 39,659

- £ 160,000

- 160,000

= 4230878

- - 22,565
(19,485) 43,124 39,938

51,625 - 7

- 4,009

96,180 - 232,768
249,598 437,651 358,751
1,356,005 531,708 6,497,780
- 7,129

105,000 £
- 2,700,000 2,101,557
- 8,659
100,000 147,553
- 34,509
- 2,905,000 2,300,007
16,123,016 § 12,360,713 $ 31,152,627
(Concluded)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Sewer Maintenance & Operation
Personal Services
Expenses
Capital Outlay
Fringe Benefits
Total

MWRA Sewer Assessment
Intergovernmental

Debt Maturities & Interest

Retirement

Employee Benefits

Transfer - Workers Compensation Fund

Transfer - General Fund

Total Sewer Enterprise Fund

Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
$ 4,100 $ 1,961,534 (24,368)
264,585 1,263,303 -
636,364 906,500 -
- 448,415 (23,001)
905,049 3,579,752 (47,369)
19,722,652
1,421,918
365,737 2,485
71,069
150,000 44,884
850,000
$ 905,049 % 27,161,128 -
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Encumbrances/

FY 2012 Budget Total Revised Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2012 Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance

1,941,266 $ 1,941,266 $ 1,771,873 § - ) 169,393
1,527,888 1,527,888 812,103 451,683 264,102
1,542,864 1,542,864 211,322 1,322,081 9,461
425,414 425414 398,830 - 26,584
5,437,432 5,437,432 3,194,128 1,773,764 469,540
19,722,652 19,722,652 19,546,086 176,566
1,421,918 1,421,918 1,309,699 112,219
368,222 368,222 366,979 1,243
71,069 71,069 71,069

194,884 194,884 194,884
850,000 850,000 679,518 170,482
28,066,177 $ 28,066,177 $ 25,291,294 § 1,773,764 $§ 1,001,119
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Water Maintenance & Operation
Personal Services
Expenses
Capital Outlay
Fringe Benefits

Total
Debt Matutities & Interest
Retitement
MWRA/DEP Assessments & Charges
Budget Reserve
Transfet - Sewer Fund
Transfer - General Fund
Transfer - Wotkers Compensation Fund

Total Water Enterprise Fund

Continued FY 2012 FY 2012
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
$ 4,800 $ 2,153,620 (88,439)
176,044 1,074,134 (20,000)
412,086 256,000 -
- 486,951 (34,577)
592,930 3,970,705 (143,016)
3,466,410
497,536 -
8,907,649 67,136
7,790 (7,136)
808,330
750,000
150,000 83,016
$ 592,930 § 18,558,420
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Encumbrances/

FY 2012 Budget Total Revised Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2012 Budget Expended Approptiatons Fund Balance
2,069,981 2,069,981 § 1,832,672 § - 8 237,309
1,230,178 1,230,178 735,039 286,719 208,420
668,086 668,086 115,458 531,256 21,372
452,374 452,374 410,614 c 41,760
4,420,619 4,420,619 3,093,783 817,975 508,861
3,466,410 3,466,410 3,466,409 1
497,536 497,536 489,685 7,851
8,974,785 8,974,785 8,966,357 8,428
654 654 654

808,330 808,330 808,330

750,000 750,000 750,000 -

233,016 233,016 233,016 =
19,151,350 § 19,151,350 § 17,807,580 $ 817975 § 525,795
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Newton’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosutes, and requited
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends (pages 123 - 128)

These schedules contain trend information to belp the reader understand how the City’s financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity (pages 129 - 132)

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenne source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity (pages 133 - 136)

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and
the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the futnre.

Demographic and Economic Information (page 137)

This schedule offers demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the City'’s
Jfinancial activities take place.

Operating Information (pages 138 - 139)

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader nnderstand how the information in the City’s financial
report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is detived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
{ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.,

Restricred ...
Unrestricred

Total governmental activibes ner assets. .,

Business-Type Activities

Invesred in capiral assets, net of relared debt..

Resrocred
Unrestricred

Total business-type acovinics ner assets

Primary Government

Invesred in capital assers, net of related debt

Restrcred
Unrestncted,

Toral pnmary government ner assets.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
. 92639519 § 123155756 $ 153522317 § 153,034916 § 167543474 § 174706210 § 150,650,131 § 194301691 § 211763420 § 220,231,642
13,669,675 14,029,054 21,270,042 15,267,985 13,842,544 35,459,940 104,838,430 52,363,403 34,006,760 34,560,724
24,407,942 34,366,681 35,865,065 48,962,078 67,671,362 39781710 (226554 _(27,083933)  _ (65309,262) _ (93,548,399
§_130717,136 § 171,551,491 § 210657424 § 217,264,979 § 249057380 $ 249.947,860 § 253223017 $ 219,581,161 § 180550918 § 161,243,967
$ 34035510 § 29625363 § 29,802,672 § 31,085,365 § 32701330 § 46,364,172 § 32694954 § 38627779 § 46802526 $ 49,055,462
6,475,918 6,624,240 8,410,167 9,007,804 10,418,683 6,591,929 15,657,948 13,497,989 7,321,657 6,834,944
8,628,722 11,844,840 11936,815 13,583,611 13,295771 9,359,270 12,871,360 9,980,661 15,055,372 21,130,465
LS 49,140,150 §__ 4B094,443 §_ 50,149,654 § 53,676,780 § 56415784 §_ 62,305371 § 61224262 § 62106429 §_ 69,179,554 $_ 77,020,871
$ 126675029 § 152781,119 § 183324989 $ 184,120,281 § 200244804 § 221070382 $ 183345085 § 232920470 § 258565946 § 269,287,104
20,145,593 20,653,294 29,680,200 24,275,789 24,261,227 2041869 120,496,378 65.861,392 1847 41,395,668
33,036,664 46,211,521 47,801,880 62,545,689 80,967,133 49,140,980 10,605,816 (17,003,272)  _ (50253,891) _ (72417.934)
$_179,857,286_§_219,645934 §_ 260,807,078 § 270941759 § 30547364 $ 312253231 $_314M7279 § 281,687,590 §_240730472 § 238,264,838




GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Expenses
General government
Public safery
Educanon
Public works .
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Debr service - interest..

Total expenses.

Program Revenues
Chacges for services,. .,.... .

Operating grants and contributions .

Capital grants and contabutions
Total program revenues
Net (expense)/revenue

General Revenues and

Other Changes in Net Assets

Real estate and personal
nroperty faxes

Motor vehicle and other
excise tases

Hotel/imotel tases

Meal raxes

Penalties and interest on taxes

Payments in lieu of taxes

Community presecvation surcharges .

Grants and contrbutions not
restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment income... ..
Gan (Loss) on sale of
capiral assets...
Other........
Transfers, net

Total general revenues and
other changes i net assets

Change in net assets....ccoouuiiienns

.3

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 0k 2009 2010 2011 2012
§ 19132571 § 20594439 § 19275760 § 24,609,250 § 20,617,999 § 25791496 § 22381716 $ 24623302 § 26974952 § 21,992,988
40,635,284 40,102,814 41,690,193 43,062,252 44,207,931 48,896,370 52,614,816 52,168,801 55,800,259 56,061,495
157,020,633 162,268,826 175,722,669 181,638,581 188,026,627 218,716,994 236,024,500 245946308 252,413,006 252,922,994
18,987,391 19,755,181 23,440,299 21,666,417 21,643,562 25,208,763 27,229,098 26,138,843 28,410,758 24,221,365
9,119,333 8,470,667 8,864,530 8,979,409 9,273,626 9,980,301 10,463,388 10,672,057 10,757,372 10,684,932
11,805,253 12,252,669 14,253,032 13,802,334 13,471,254 15,864,538 16,806,140 16,245,112 15,092,035 16,216,945
2,055,115 2,121,882 2,570,332 2,350,756 2,237,287 2,494,422 4,375,013 7,234,167 7,670,746 7,559,469
258,755,580 265,566,478 _ 285,816,815 296,109,008 _ 299,478,286 346,976,964 _ 370,094,671 383,028,590 397,119,128 _ 389,660,188
19,697,646 19,253,150 20,056,263 21,298,907 22,854,391 21,185,123 21,413,394 20,969,889 21,915,225 25,732,684
44,209,235 43,365,401 48,562,260 50,529,662 54,150,398 60,500,259 66,344,326 65,706,164 66,976,636 65,780,261
2,686,298 1,810,615 36,589,529 642,315 11,118,572 21,684,895 30,179,116 1,960,084 1,764,258 2,519,356
66,593,179 64,429,166 105,208,052 72,470,884 88,123,361 103,370,277 117,936,836 88,636,137 90,656,119 94,032,301
(192,162,401) _(201,137,312) _(180,608,763) _(223,638,124) _(211,354,925) _(243,606,687) _(252,157,835) _(294,392,453) _(306,463,009) _(295,627,887)
178,891,217 187,446,868 192,457,450 200,966,839 209,105,186 211,886,334 226,800,860 232774689 239761554 249,340,011
10,006,839 10,537,142 11,202,714 10,803,654 10,396,428 10,859,789 10,479,922 9,860,220 10,541,624 10,514,832
1,151,838 851,157 979,194 1,060,052 1,138,921 1,103,549 1,108,199 1,168,005 1,588,882 1,814,792
. 382,934 1,308,191 1,403,261
1,027,184 957,072 1,166,429 830,030 1,049,712 1,055,344 1,223,300 1,026,507 1,038,225 1,146,496
449,556 340,010 529,600 553,920 2,851,122 767439 273,359 3,270,902 515,471 529,294
1,813,888 1,829,757 1,893,219 1,963,982 2,032,942 2,114,805 2,193,701 2,288,314 2,352,389 2,431,863
6,447,414 7,572,440 7,988,751 8,353,727 9,289,181 8,705,545 7,435,280 5,801,287 5,596,391 5,263,525
1,485,848 949,028 1,687,125 3,290,981 4,757,698 4,306,424 2,610,098 934,313 454,365 278,106
- (48,600) 36,000 10,702 - . - 24,347 32,280 -
665,612 1,065,172 554,259 1,133,664 1,302,478 2,522,970 1,761,048 1,752,802 3,002,856 2,169,238
1,230,245 1,305,717 1,219,955 1,278,128 1,223,658 1,264,968 1457,225 1,376,187 1,240,538 1,429,518
203,169,641 212,805,763 219,714,696 230,245,679 _ 243,147,326 244,587,167 _ 255,342,992 260,750,597 267,432,766 _ 276,320,936
11,007,240 $_ 11,668451 $_ 39,105933 § 6,607,555 $ 31,792,401 § 980,480 § 3,185,157 §_ (33,641,856) §_ (39,030,243) § _ (19,306,951)




BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Expenses
Sclwer
Water

Total expenses

Peogram Revenues
Chinges for seres
(& Jrans and
Capital grants and conrrilntions

Total program revenued. ...
et fevpensel/revenoe. .

General Revenues and Transfen

Gain on sale of capital asser . . ..o .oeun

Transfers, ner

Change in netassens. ..icnmniaimaiiis wrisans

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 200 2010 04 2012
§ 1770000 § ISIGTARY § ITHOLTH0 S LEJDATAD S J003A7TR 21308637 § LRI S 20MT92 § 23468371 § 24953457
0138605 0,465,385 10,145,997 10,439,117 11,467,754 1221270 13,021,395 13,780,087 14,260,631 15,185,784
261 RER 27632508 22937, 746 2 HIRGT 31,301,532 33420471 353504330 I 37,729,002 40,130, 241
28,300,528 204002,083 2070376 ILBELS ALARA 080 034,143 WG RASITE 45,171,479 ARITV,T0H
G480 758,501 1,269,546 #8241 £35,097 #4428 #37,561 TA294R BaT 004 0975
076 51,004 139,450 120,415 1,544,700 120,855 1260851 5331 M,182 489,333
b TR KA ] 27,542,570 31.212912 V4,149,151 35,464,109 4057543 15,879,145 39,383,057 HiH2665 49,410,070
3015316 210,018 3,275,100 4805254 3963062 71543555 3761160 1055578 8,313,663 970,435
- - . ¥ a 2776 - -
(1,131,230) {1,255,717) (1,219,955) (1,278,128) (1,223.6586) (1,264,968) (1,457,225) (1,376,187) (1,240,538) (1,429,518)
$__LASI0k0 §_ (\Ms707) § 2055210 § 3527136 5 2930004 5 SASUSRY §_ (1L0RLI0Y) § RE2.167_§ 7073135 § _ THHMT




PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (MCCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

l.\__\'i'TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total expenses.

Toral program revenues.

Net {expertse) /revenye ... ...

Total gencral revenues, transfers

and other changes in net assets. ...

< % 12891326 9 __ 10622744 $__ 41,161,144 $ 10249912 §__ 34,531405 §

Change in net asse

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
$ 285643674 § 293,199,046 § 31375456t § 325918453 § 330079818 § 380397835 § 405507900 § 420156669 § 434848130 § 429,799,429
96,496,589 92,271,744 136,420,964 107,200,814 123,587,555 143,945,703 153,816,181 128,019,794 136,698,784 143,442,377
(189,147,085 (200927,302  (I71,333597) (218717639  (07,392263) (236,452,137  (251,781,719) (292,136,875) (208,149,346) (286,357,052
202,038,411 211,550,046 218,494,741 228,967,551 241,923,668 243,322,199 253,885,767 259,377,186 266,192,228 274,891,418

6,870,067 $ 2,104,048 § (32,759,689) $ {31,957,118) § (11,465,634}




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FUND BALANCES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Fund
Reserved
Uniresatved
Restricted
Commtted
Assnoned.
Unissypned ...

FToral general fund

All Other Governmenial Funds

Reserved,

Unreserved, reporned m:
Specil revente funds
Camnal projects funds
Permanent funde

Nonspendable

Restncted .

Commutted

Unassigned

Total all other governmental funds

$_ (9793723) $_(26319,929) §

2003 2004 20415 2006 2007 2008 2008 20010 2011 (1) Az
$ 4049314 § 5125252 § 3496513 § K170 S BEBATI 5 SAOLIGE § 4595043 § 5740263 S - 5
13,111,188 12,161,196 10,125,954 16,117,152 19,724,693 10,342,052 15,574,235 13,560,242 . .
. . : . . . ‘ 928,722 PIR.274
R - ’ E - - 14,877,088 9,816,666
B R - 844,441 2,583,061
- - - - 14,123,323 14,886,340
$__17,160,502 $__ 17,286,448 $_13,822467 $_20294872 $_23,609407 $ 19433216 $_ 20,169,278 §_ 19312545 §_ 30,773,574 §__ 26,224,341
$ 28702420 § 4675200 §  TABEHSR 5 TIIAONI S GIRLASS § TO047TR § 8153960 5 25920689 3 S
7,369,358 BI0R505 7,651,781 6,828,092 7213248 10,478,029 13,253,604 10,704,933 -
(46,879,327 (%9.972,245) (B420,471) 1 450,147 17,319,824 38,560,162 3,308,737 28,167,213 .
223, M5 BORAT1 12,798 874,461 925,527 817,614 36,678 40,024 - -
£ ) p - E . . . 445,570 246,814
28,949,163 8617210
) = H6, K94 1,745,200
- - - - - - - - (354,498) -

6431966 §_ 16486603 § 315640454 § 57,760,583 §

115,447,988 8 65,538,859 § 29967!129 $ SD!§09!243

I fund bal Is Board S

(1) Starting in fiseal year 2011 go

are being d in ac dancé with G 1A ing Stand:

#54, Fiund Balance Reporting and Gorernmental Fimd Type Definitions -
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2003 2004 2005 2006 AT 24N 2041 2010 2011 2012
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes $ 179,025,142 $ 187,056,480 $ 192,554,388 § 200165525 § 207245638 § 211435422 § 224437442 § 233,726,177 § 240,732,647 § 248,503,570
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 10,645,450 10,258,795 11,467,867 11,298,282 10,197,596 11,131,712 10,098,579 10,222,534 10,463,796 10,567,479
Hotel/motel tax 1,151,838 851,157 979,194 1,060,052 1,138,921 1,103,549 1,108,199 1,16R,095 1,588,882 1,814,792
Meals rax - - - - 382934 1,308,191 1,403,261
Pavments in lieu of taxes 377,867 340,010 194,563 418,202 411,841 358,957 489,108 3,095,059 439,721 479,017
Community preservanon surcharges 1,768,225 1,830,144 1,878,091 1,978,999 2,027,379 2,107,392 2,207,442 2,296,523 2,365,422 2,427,905
Charges for services 11,242,611 11,847,663 11,765,228 11,895,186 14,110,021 14,088,742 14,209,678 14,821,694 14,674,078 17,340,467
Intergovernmental 53,219,152 55,057,266 85,837,606 60,266,994 75,564,011 78,760,492 122,879,420 75,443,469 73,856,678 73,036,706
Special assessments . . . - 215216 157,281 218,438 158,481 254,638 350,639
Penalues and interest on taxes.. 1,027,184 957,072 1,225,224 830,030 1,049,712 1,055,344 1,223,300 1,026,507 1,038,224 1,146,496
Licenses and permuts 4,566,185 4,896,721 4,991,489 7,172,004 5,764,582 4,928,179 4,575,496 4,564,508 5,523,613 6,081,388
Fines and forfeitures 1,717,200 1,916,239 1,987,816 2,002,406 1,850,503 1,899,661 2,022,175 2,101,518 1,907.47 2,017,085
Contributions. . 1,368,799 645,007 1,462,588 1,187,036 796,807 1,395,023 1,320,527 1,185,340 1,382,243 1,299,748
Investment income 1,315,562 1,031,017 1,985,227 3,362,563 4,960,859 4,435,423 2,642,189 1,016,818 554,473 271,250
Muiscellaneous /other.., 1,278,662 678,394 588,220 1,326,054 947,985 1,813,990 1,686,507 667,540 1,676,863 1,222,231
TOTAL REVENUES 268,703,877 277,365,971 317,117,501 302,963,333 326,281,071 334,671,167 389,118,500 351,877,197 357,766,940 367,962,634
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemment 17,364,672 24,829,089 20,272,046 21,671,422 18,456,441 22,190,508 21,756,050 22,007,737 27,495,142 21,216,365
Pubhic safetv, 31,900,736 33,442,336 33,461,775 33,207,890 36,540,065 36,960,093 37,438,138 37,999,263 37,725,281 39,687,309
Educauon. 158,403,020 158,699,064 156,983,456 157,219,646 166,363,295 202,577,476 252,917,406 5 214,802,244 196,486,485
Public works 19,195,401 20,323,463 23,574,662 20,074,536 23,001,792 24,844,231 24,944,049 26,357,440 24,730,797 21,918,256
Health and human services 3,763,331 3,215,469 3,565,435 3,594,966 4,054,211 3,989,849 4,080,313 4,305,785 4,177,515 4,123,498
Culture and recreanon 10,462,029 11,044,089 12,376,821 12,156,563 14,441,900 12,837,823 12,438,606 12,637 414 11,232,808 13,839,046
Renirement benefits 29,244,524 32,609,146 36,643,546 39,366,562 42,079,659 44,134,609 47,480,693 49,940,948 53,157,157
Property and liability insurance, 1,464,628 1,638,348 1,596,923 1,621,121 1,666,576 1,690,977 1,891,488 1,676,169 1,445,803
Claims and udgmenrs 118,032 290,227 176,472 214,058 143,335 97,254 250,509 100433 160,733 58,504
I lealth insurance subsidy 173495 -
Orher - 24,080 = .
State and counry charges 5,081,422 5,086,760 5,045,783 5209013 5,375,365 5512027 5,433,169 5,619,317 5472,487 5,503,956
Delit service
Principal 4,878,900 4,281,100 5,118,200 5,595,500 8,472,050 6,146,900 7,652,100 8,548,500 9,460,500 9,408,367
Interest 1,929,122 2,744,328 2483216 2215170 _ 2,129,315 2,378,302 3,094,574 7,079,256 7,509,703 7,574,440
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 283,807,817 298,203,419 301,304,335 302,146,447 322,897,499 363,384,129 419,997,095 430,702,676 392,370,470 377,430,983
I1{NCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES, {15,103,940) 20,837,448) 15,813,166 816,886 3,383,572  _ (28712,962) (30,878,595) (78,825.479) (39,603,230} 9,468,349
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers . 8,254,035 9,279,721 7,768,303 8,195,281 9,793,750 12,584,287 15,539,377 8,860,150 6,386,643 8,413,437
Proceeds ofbonds and notes aii 5,700,000 5,000,000 11,500,000 13,835,000 10,600,000 48,792,000 R6,010,000 25,548,000 13,770,000 5,734,000
Premium from issuance of bonds and NOTESyyqyycasss umpmiss - 375,267 406,462 293,090 92,732 262,441 1,557,255 815,357 168,147 131,379
Sale of capital assets .. . - 36,000 26,446 40,752 49,909 - 42,491 36,262 67,610
Transfers out... {7,023,790) {7,697,615) (6,236,017) 6,639,571 (8,292,510) (11,031,737) (13,804,570) (1,206,381) (4,868,523 6,585,196,
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 6,930,245 6,957,373 13,474,748 15,710,246 12,234,724 50,656,900 89,302,062 28,059,617 15,492,529 7,761,230
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Proceeds of steuctured sertlement confract - - 2,850,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. ..o $ 8,173,695 $ (13,880,075 § 29,287,914 _$_ 16,527,132 $ 18468,296 $ 21943938 § 58423467 § {50,765,862) § _(24,110,701) $_ (1,707,119)
DIBT SERVICE ENPENDITURES AS A PERCENTAGF
OF NONCAPITA)L EXPENDITURES 2% 24% a5 LI 23% 2T AT AN




ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Assessed Value (2)

Commercial and Total Total Estimated Assessed Value
Fiscal Residential Industrial Personal Assessed Direct Actual as a Percentage
Year Real Property Real Property Property Value "Tax Rate Value (3) of Actual Value
2003 § 13,350,364,729 § 1,478,001,571 § 188,708,900 S 15,017,075200 S 11.83 § 15,843,209,000 94.79%
2004 15,105,379,601 1,504,901,799 214,760,200 16,825,041,600 10.98 19,131,654,600 87.94%
2005 17,046,470,917 1,614,228,983 194,282,500 18,854,982,400 10.16 19,131,654,600 98.55%
2006 18,038,525,657 1,630,652,443 197,645,600 19,866,823,700 9.99 21,590,027,600 92.02%
2007 18,780,465,279 1,691,031,121 195,725,500 20,667,221,900 9.95 21,590,027,600 95.73%
2008 18,478,928,698 1,767,239,702 211,461,100 20,457,629,500 10.44 22,207,139,600 92.12%
2009 18,659,283,807 1,788,640,793 266,624,600 20,714,549,200 10.72 22,207,139,600 93.28%
2010 18,384,685,100 1,819,972,600 283,174,000 20,487,831,700 11.25 22,506,213,100 91.03%
2011 18,113,668,363 1,830,045,937 289,095,700 20,232,810,000 11.80 22,506,213,100 89.90%
2012 18,276,909,150 1,851,072,350 336,017,900 20,463,999,400 12.10 21,744,090,700 94.11%

Source: City of Newton Annual Tax Recap Sheet

(1) Does not include valuation affected by residental exemption

(2) As of January 1st

(3) Estimated actual value is based on equalized valuations determined biennially by the Commissioner of Revenue
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DIRECT PROPERTY TAX RATES (1) (2)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Commetcial

Fiscal Residential and Industrial Total
Year Real Property Real Property Direct (3)
2003 1092 § 2063 $ 20.63 11.83
2004 10.20 19.37 19.37 10.98
2005 9.48 18.02 18.02 10,16
2006 9.36 17.72 17.72 9.99
2007 9.33 17.64 17.64 9.95
2008 9.70 18.46 18.46 10.44
2009 9.96 19.00 19.00 10,72
2010 10.41 19.93 19.93 11.25
2011 10.90 20.89 20.89 11.80
2012 11.17 21.32 21.32 12.10

Source: City of Newton Tax Recap Sheets
(1) Rates are applicable to each $1,000 of assessed value

(2) Per the initiatives of Proposition 2 1/2 adopted by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, the City cannot levy more than 2.5 percent of the total full and
fair cash value of all taxable real and personal property. The City's levy is also
limited in that it cannot increase more than 2.5 percent from the priot year, with
certain exceptions for new growth or through overrides and exclusions adopted

by City votets.

(3) Calculated by dividing the net tax levy by total assessed value divided by 1,000

130



PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
Amount of Total Amount of Total
Taxpayer of Tax Rank Tax Levy of Tax Rank Tax Levy
NSTAR Electric - Flectric Utility $ 2,188,905 1 0.88% S - s
Riverside Project, LLC - Office 1,855,548 2 0.75% 1,693,393 1 0.95%
CHSP Newton, LL.C - Hotel 1,277,300 3 0.52% 928,350 3 0.52%
Mayflower Atrium, LLC - Retail 1,275,414 4 0.52% 1,340,950 2 0.75%
Julian Cohen & Daniel Rothenberg Trust - Retail 1,241,383 5 0.50% 860,504 5 0.48%
Verizon, New England Inc. - Telecommunications 1,086,250 6 0.44%
National Grid - Natural Gas Urility 1,002,582 7 0.41% - :
Thomas White Trust - Office 897,958 8 0.36% 713,222 7 0.40%
Daniel Rothenberg - Retail 887,540 9 0.36% 863,407 4 0.49%
NS Wells Acquisitions LLC - Office 834,263 10 0.34% - .
Schroder Newton Limited Partnership - Office 730,067 6 0.41%
Wells Avenue Senior Holding LILC - Office 629,716 8 0.35%
Two Newton Place Acquisitions LLC - Office - 431,167 9 0.24%
Lasell College - Senior Independent Living 415,381 10 0.23%
Total $ 12,547,143 5.07% S 8,606,157 4.82%

Source: City of Newton Board of Assessors.
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Total
Current Percent of Actual Collections
Fiscal Net Tax Tax Net Levy Subsequent Total Tax as a % of
Year Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections Net Levy (1)
2003 § 177,652,048 % 177,072,455 99.67% $ 2,588,516 % 179,660,971 101.13%
2004 184,772,348 184,463,684 99.83% 2,193,032 186,656,716 101.02%
2005 191,516,639 189,884,213 99.15% 2,341,150 192,225,363 100.37%
2006 198,431,418 197,604,301 99.58% 1,845,616 199,449,917 100.51%
2007 205,603,998 204,425,747 99.43% 2,445,083 206,870,830 100.62%
2008 213,670,594 211,782,357 99.12% 2,220,075 214,002,432 100.16%
2009 222,124,895 221,179,256 99.57% 1,757,081 222.936,337 100.37%
2010 230,471,466 228,861,998 99.30% 1,768,005 230,630,003 100.07%
2011 238,752,520 237,347,484 99.41% 1,899,940 239,247,424 100.21%
2012 247 532,017 246,717,069 99.67% . 246,717,069 99.67%

Source: Annual Tax Recap Sheet and General Ledger records

(1) Total collections can exceed 100% due to the City's conservative statutory reserve for abatements, which reduces the

net tax levy.
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RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
General State General MWRA/ Total

Fiscal Obligation Pension Obligation MWPAT Primary Per

Year Bonds Loan Bonds Loans Government Capita (1)
2003 $ 29,614,650 $ 2,600,000 § 1,080,450 § 27,979,244 § 61,274,344 § 790
2004 30,333,550 2,600,000 491,250 21,908,488 55,333,288 696
2005 36,715,350 2,600,000 266,250 22,627,199 62,208,799 778
2006 44,954,850 2,600,000 176,250 23,158,874 70,889,974 844
2007 49,682,800 - 80,000 24,790,065 74,552,865 903
2008 92,327,900 - 40,000 22,117,941 114,485,841 1,415
2009 170,685,800 - 6,000,000 24,259,834 200,945,634 2,418
2010 187,685,300 : 5,900,000 23.261,750 216,847,050 2,597
2011 191,994,800 - 8,275,000 21,449,014 221,718,814 2,639
2012 188,320,433 - 9,627,000 19,699,017 217,646,450 2,556

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule located in the Statistical Section for personal income
and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.
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RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Less: Total Net
General Resources General Percentage of Percentage of
Fiscal Obligation Restricted for Bonded Actual Taxable Estimated
Year Bonds Debt Principal Debt Value of Property (1) Personal Income (2)
2003 30,695,100 30,695,100 0.19% 0.87%
2004 30,824,800 30,824,800 0.16% 0.85%
2005 36,981,600 36,981,600 0.19% 1.01%
2006 45,131,100 - 45,131,100 0.21% 0.96%
2007 49,762,800 - 49,762,800 0.23% 1.08%
2008 92,367,900 - 92,367,900 0.42% 2.04%
2009 170,685,800 (881,707) 169,804,093 0.76% 3.66%
2010 187,685,300 (749,640) 186,935,660 0.83% 4.01%
201 191,994,800 (683,320) 191,311,480 0.85% 4.07%
2012 188,320,433 (2,946,430) 185,374,003 0.85% 3.90%

(1) See the "Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" schedule located in the Statistical
Section for property value data.

(2) See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule located in the Statistical Section for personal income
and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.
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DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2012

Debt
Governmental Unit Outstanding

Fsnmated
Percentage
Applicable (1)

Estimarted
Share of
Overlapping
Debt

Massachuserts Water Resourees Authority. oo, S 6,127,190,000

A R TN o a0 R L S L s U o e U s

Toul direct and overlapping debt.. oo B SR S s S A A SRR

Sources: MWRA, City of Newton Treasurer’s Office

4.9%/4.5%

S

285,263,561
217,646,450
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LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Fgualized valuntion. v S 21,744,090,700 $ 22,506,213,100 § 22,506,213,100 S 22,207,139,600 § 22,207,139,600
Normal debt limit (5% of equalized valuation)......... 1,087,204,535 1,125,310,655 1,125,310,655 1,110,356,980 1,110,356,980
[Debr applicable to limi:
Total bonded debto........ooinaien, I —— 217,646,450 221,718,814 216,847,050 200,945,634 114,485,841
Less: General obligation bonds exempted by
authority of state legislature..................... (19,699,017) (29,724,014) (29,161,750) (30,259,834) (22,157,941)
Total net debt applicable to mit................... 197,947,433 191,994,800 187,685,300 170,685,800 92,327,000
Legal debt margin........... P g Y NS $_ 889,257,102 % 933,315,855 5 937,625,355 § 939,671,180 §__ 1,018,029,080
Toml net debt applieable to the limit as
a percentage of normal debt limit. ... 18.2% 17.1% 16.7% 15.4% 8.3%
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Listimated Median Public
Median Per Capita Personal Family School Unemployment

Year Population Age Income Income Income Iinrollment Rate (%)

2002 77,517 387 § 45,708 3,543,147,036 $ 105,289 11,276 3.9%
2003 79,515 387 45,708 3,634,471,620 105,289 11,267 4.1%
2004 79,980 38.7 45,708 3,655,725,840 105,289 11,268 3.5%
2005 84,031 38.7 55,891 4,696,576,621 124,893 11,415 3.3%
2006 82,578 387 55,891 4,615,366,998 124,893 11,501 3.7%
2007 80,917 387 55,891 4,522,532,047 124,893 11,570 3.9%
2008 83,112 38.7 55,891 4,645,212,792 124,893 11,570 6.3%
2009 83,501 387 55,891 4,666,954,391 124,893 11,607 6.5%
2010 84,024 387 55,891 4,696,185,384 124,893 11,775 5.0%
2011 85,146 38.7 55,891 4,758,895,086 124,893 12,172 4.1%

Sources: Population from City census

Per capita income, median age, and median family income is from U.S Census for 2000 and 2005
Unemployment rates from Massachusetts Division of Unemployment Assistance for September of each year.
School enrollment represents October 1 total enrollment per Newton Public Schools.

137



EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
LEmployees as of June 30
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
lunction/Program
General government 131 133 125 129 135
Public safety .oooonnrinn, an 373 379 362 383
Fidueation. ... 1,285 1,195 1,268 1,283 1,217
Pulihe works: . cooviiinita b g 126 131 139 143 143
Health and human services........... 45 48 48 48 50
Culture and recreation..,............. 79 82 93 100 102
Water 29 31 27 27 28
Sewer 27 32 36 36 36
Total..oooii 2,093 2,025 2,115 2,128 2,094

Source: City of Newton payroll
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CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Function/Program
Public safety
Police
StAtoNS. ..o e i 1 1 1 1 1
Vehicles. ..o 69 69 69 69 69
Fire
StAHONS. .o 6 6 6 6 6
Firefighteing Vehicles...................... 9 9 9 9 9
Education
Public school buildings......................... 21 21 21 21 21
Public works
Streets (miles)..........ooooi i 310 310 310 310 310
Streetlights. ..o 8,595 8,595 8,595 8,595 8,595
Traficsignals................oco 98 98 98 98 98
Parking meters. ..o 1,671 1,671 1,671 1,671 1,671
Culture and recreation
Public libraries
Main libraty. ... 1 1 1 1 1
Branch libraries.......oviveiiiiiiiiianinnn, - - - : 4
Park & playground Acreage.................... 590 590 590 590 590
Outdoor swimming facilities................... 2 2 2 2 2
Indoot swimming facilities..................... 1 1 1 1 1
Public street trees 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Water
Water mains (miles)..............coovieiin... 300 300 300 300 300
Fire hydrants...............cocoieiinn, 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400
Storage capacity (thousands of gallons)....... 26,000,000 26,000,000 26,000,000 26,000,000 26,000,000
Sewer
Sanitary sewers (miles)................oo 300 300 300 300 300
Sewer pump Stations. ......o.vieviiiniiiiiinn, 10 10 10 10 10
Stormdrains (miles).............oooiiiiiiiinnn 324 324 324 324 324

Soutces: Various departments of the City of Newton
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